T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

Central & South

Planning
Committee
Date: WEDNESDAY, 18 MAY 2016
Time: 7.00 PM
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -
CIVIC CENTRE,
HIGH STREET, UXBRIDGE
uBs8 1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This Agenda is available online at:
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=123&Year=0

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Membership to be determined

Published: Tuesday, 10 May 2016

Contact: Jon Pitt
Tel: 01895 277655
Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meetin _

g g g Watch a [®)73d broadcast of this
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting meeting on the Council's YouTube
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived Channel: Hillingdon London
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report Zhose fllttslrl\?ilng shguld bed aware tf;}t the

H H H H OunNCil WIll TitmM and recorad proceeaings

on the, pu.bllc part of the mee_tmg' Any mgllwdual or for both official record and resident digital
organisation may record or film proceedings as long engagement in democracy.
as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking i ]

Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with

0
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short wa \,)/>
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 1 Unbridg

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the %&Ega ﬁ

Centre. For details on availability and how to book rube and b

. . . Paviligns ™
parking space, please contact Democratic Service shogging sagions <
Please enter from the Council’s main reception Centre / r—LJ Intu =

where you will be directed to the Committee Roon

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use.

Mizinning

car park

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarn
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt.
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs,
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security
Officer.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more people who live, work or study in the
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in
support of or against an application. Petitions
must be submitted in writing to the Council in
advance of the meeting. Where there is a
petition opposing a planning application there is
also the right for the applicant or their agent to
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s), the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the

petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1

2
3
4
5

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To Sign and Receive the Minutes of the Meeting Held on 31 March 2016
Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items of business marked Part | will be considered in
Public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

PART | - Members, Public and the Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the

Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation
6 | 14 Moorfield Road, Brunel First floor rear extension. 5-18
Cowley -
Recommendation: Approval 208 - 211
69313/APP/2016/203
Applications without a Petition
Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation
7 | 4 Moorfield Road, Brunel Three storey building to create 6 19 - 34
Cowley - x 2-bed self contained flats with
associated parking involving 212 - 221
42162/APP/2016/915 demolition of existing house

(Outline application with some
matters reserved).

Recommendation: Refusal




8 | 4 Moorfield Road, Brunel 4 x 3-bed, semi detached 35-50
Cowley - dwellings with associated parking
and amenity space involving 222 - 231
42162/APP/2016/912 demolition of existing house
(Outline application with some
matters reserved).
Recommendation: Refusal
9 | Brunel University, Brunel Variation of condition 2 51-64
Kingston Lane - (Submitted Plans) of planning
permission Ref: 232 - 240
532/APP/2016/210 532/APP/2014/2161 dated
24/02/2015 to alter the parking
layout (Installation of 52
additional parking spaces).
Recommendation: Approval
10| Brunel University, Brunel Variation of condition 2 65 -76
Kingston Lane - (Submitted Plans) of planning
permission Ref: 241 - 245
532/APP/2016/211 532/APP/2014/2163 dated
24/02/2015 to alter the parking
layout (Installation of 42
additional parking spaces).
Recommendation: Approval
11| Hayes Football Club Charville Erection of two linked portacabins | 77 - 86
Yard - for use as a day nursery.
246 - 250
29439/APP/2016/322 Recommendation: Approval
12| 1 Salcombe Way, Charville Erection of a lean-to structure 87 - 94
Hayes - (Retrospective).
251 - 257
48976/APP/2016/520 Recommendation: Approval
13| 49 Central Avenue, Townfield | Change of use from a 6 person 95-108
Hayes - house in multiple occupation (Use
Class C4) to a 10 person house 258 - 262

38444/APP/2016/744

in multiple occupation (Sui
Generis).

Recommendation: Approval




14| 86 East Avenue, Townfield | Change of use from retail (Use 109 - 118
Hayes - Class A1) to a nursery (Use Class
D1). 263 - 267
40159/APP/2015/4610
Recommendation: Refusal
15| 94 Hercies Road, Uxbridge Extension of roof to create 119 - 126
Uxbridge - North additional habitable roof space to
include 2 new side dormers and 268 - 272
19969/APP/2016/757 enlargement of existing dormers
(Part Retrospective).
Recommendation: Refusal
16| 133B High Street, Uxbridge Retention of this outbuilding to 127 - 138
Uxbridge - North the rear as built to be used as a
community centre/place of 273 - 276
68976/APP/2016/253 worship.
Recommendation: Refusal
17| 133B High Street, Uxbridge Retention of this outbuilding to 139 - 146
Uxbridge - North the rear as built to be used as a
community centre/place of 277 - 280
68976/APP/2016/254 worship (Listed Building
Consent).
Recommendation: Refusal
18| 27 Kingston Avenue, Yiewsley Single storey side extension. 147 - 154
Yiewsley -
Recommendation: Approval 281 - 285

67220/APP/2015/3631

PART Il - MEMBERS ONLY

The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or

exempt information under paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Local

Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.
ENFORCEMENT REPORT

19
20
21
22
23

ENFORCEMENT REPORT

ENFORCEMENT REPORT

ENFORCEMENT REPORT

ENFORCEMENT REPORT

PART | - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee -

155 - 166
167 - 176
177 - 184
185 - 196
197 - 206

207 - 286




Agenda Item 3
Minutes ﬁ%@

CENTRAL & SOUTH PLANNING COMMITTEE

31 March 2016 1 L

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

NORWARS

INGDON

LONDON

Committee Members Present:

Councillors lan Edwards (Chairman), David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman), Shehryar Ahmad-
Wallana, Roy Chamdal, Alan Chapman, Janet Duncan, Manjit Khatra, Brian Stead and
John Oswell (as substitute)

LBH Officers Present:

Alex Chrusciak (Planning Service Manager), Richard Phillips (Principal Planning
Officer), Manmohan Ranger (Transport Consultant), Nicole Cameron (Legal Advisor),
Alex Quayle (Democratic Services Officer)

56. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies were received from ClIr Dhillon, who was substituted by Clir Oswell.

57. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)

None.

58. | TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD 28 JANUARY
2016 AND 16 FEBRUARY 2016 (Agenda ltem 3)

The minutes of the meetings held 28 January 2016 and 16 February 2016 were
agreed.

59. | MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item
4)

None.

60. | TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART | WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda ltem 5)

It was noted that items in Part | would be considered in public, and items in Part Il
would be considered in private.

61. | 11A WOODSTOCK GARDENS, HAYES - 6670/APP/2015/1036 Action by
(Agenda Item 6)

Officers introduced the report and noted the addendum.

A petitioner spoke in objection to the application, and raised the
following points:

Page 1




e Refuse would be located by the petitioner's own outside wall,
and the petitioner reported that they were already clearing
rubbish from this area on a weekly basis.

e The resident located to the north of the application site (number
26) would lose natural light.

e The access road would be difficult for emergency services to
navigate, as well as the heavy lorries required to service the
building site, and neighbours were concerned about preserving
access to garages

e Council policy was that a 3-bed property should have 2 parking
spaces.

e The petitioner indicated that the photos displayed to Members
did not accurately represent the parking situation as
experienced by residents, and due to congestion the turn into
the access road would be very narrow when cars were parked.

¢ |t was unclear how the amenity space would be divided between
private and shared space.

In response to points raised by the petitioner, officers responded:

e That the amenity space was a combination of shared and
private space.

e That the property to the north would potentially be
overshadowed by the development, but with limited loss of light
due to existing trees. The application complied with Council
policy of preserving a 45 degree angle for light, and there were
no grounds for refusal on this issue.

e That the access to the garage would be preserved, and the
width of the road at 3 metres complied with standards.

e Though officers had considered the parking arrangements, they
had concluded that the development would not lead to a loss of
parking or greater competition for existing spaces.

e That the refuse storage area marked was just for collection day,
and not the regular location. This would be formally managed by
a waste management process which should prevent rubbish
dumping.

Members raised concerns about the detail of the plans they were
scrutinising, including the plan of the amenity space, parking and
turning points, as well as distance to neighbouring properties. A further
question was raised regarding the impact of light on neighbouring
properties, resulting in the Chairman recommending deferral to allow
officers to supply more information and clarify concerns.

A motion for deferral was moved, seconded, and upon being put to a
vote was unanimously agreed.

Resolved:

- That the item was deferred.

62.

1 HOWS ROAD UXBRIDGE - 70108/APP/2016/95 (Agenda Item 7)

This item was withdrawn.

Action by

Page 2




63.

CRIMSON COURT, 1390 UXBRIDGE ROAD - 11982/APP/2015/4013
(Agenda Item 8)

Officers introduced the report and provided an overview of the
retrospective application.

Members concerns centred on two lights which had been installed but
not yet activated, and the potential impact of light pollution on
neighbours. It was requested that a condition be included to mitigate
impact on residents. Officers suggested that the condition specify that
lights were directed away from residential accommodation on De Salis
Road.

Officers reminded members that regardless of granting planning
permission, residents still had recourse to complain to the
Environmental Protection Unit and that the Council has powers under
the Environmental Protection Act 1990 to overcome a nuisance caused
by light and that planning permission did not affect this.

Resolved:
- That the application be approved, subject to the additional

condition that lights are directed away from housing on De Salis
Road.

Action by

64.

LAND REAR OF CRESCENT PARADE UXBRIDGE ROAD -
70895/APP/2015/4349 (Agenda Item 9)

Officers provided an overview of the application and noted the
addendum. Officers commented that the 1 bedroom units were 0.5
square metres under the stipulated 50 square metres floor space as
well as 1.5 square metres for storage space, the additional patio and
balcony area meant this was not a consideration.

Members commented that they anticipated local residents would be
pleased with the replacement of the current building yard. A Member
requested clarification of the distance between the south of the
proposed development and the residential accommodation above
Crescent Parade, to which officers responded that at 15.4 metres it
was in excess of minimum standard distances.

The officer recommendation for approval was moved, seconded, and
upon being put to a vote was unanimously agreed.

Resolved:

- That the application be approved, subject to the addendum.

Action by

65.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 10)

1. That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer’s
report was agreed.

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the

Action by

Page 3




reasons for it outlined in this report into the public domain, solely
for the purposes of issuing the formal breach of condition notice
to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is
likely to reveal the identity of an individual and b) contains information
which reveals that the authority proposes to give, under an enactment,
a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a
person. The authority believes that the public interest in withholding the
Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to
the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.17 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Alex Quayle on 01895 250692. Circulation of these minutes
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 4




Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 14 MOORFIELD ROAD COWLEY
Development: First floor rear extension

LBH Ref Nos: 69313/APP/2016/203

Drawing Nos: PL/ASB/B2AMD
PL/ASB/A2AMD

Date Plans Received: 19/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 25/01/2016

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1  Site and Locality

The application site comprises of a large two storey detached dwelling fronting the western
side of Moorfield Road, Cowley. The property benefits from planning permission for the
erection of a first floor side extension and raising of the roof, and benefits from an attached
single garage with off road parking and a substantial size rear garden measuring
approximately 45m deep.

The property falls within a residential area of Cowley comprising of a variety of housing
types including terraced, semi-detached and bungalows. The site also backs onto the
Metropolitan Green Belt and a Nature conservation Site of Borough Grade ii Local
Importance.

1.2 Proposed Scheme
Householder consent is sought for a first floor rear extension.

The proposed first floor rear extension would be constructed partially above the existing
single storey rear extension to measure 3.65m in depth, 6.6m in width and would be
characterised by a hipped roof set 1m below the main ridgeline of the existing dwelling.

The proposed extension would be finished in materials to match the existing dwelling.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
34264/APP/2012/1322 14 Moorfield Road Cowley Uxbridge

3 x two storey, 3-bed terrace dwellings with habitable roofspace including associated parking and
amenity space, installation of 3 x vehicular crossovers to front involving demolition of existing
detached bungalow

Decision Date: 05-09-2012 Refused Appeal:
34264/APP/2012/3016 14 Moorfield Road Cowley Uxbridge

2 x two storey, 3-bed semi-detached dwellings including associated parking and amenity space,
involving demolition of existing detached bungalow and garage

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 5



Decision Date: 14-01-2013 NFA Appeal:
34264/APP/2013/244 14 Moorfield Road Cowley Uxbridge

2 x two storey, 3-bedroom, semi-detached dwellings with associated parking and amenity space,
involving demolition of existing detached bungalow and garage (Resubmission).

Decision Date: 11-06-2013 Withdrawn Appeal:
34264/APP/2014/869 14 Moorfield Road Cowley Uxbridge

Erection of a single storey rear extension, which would extend beyond the rear wall of the original
house by 4 metres, for which the maximum height would be 4 metres, and for which the height of
the eaves would be 2.4 metres

Decision Date: 22-04-2014 NFA Appeal:
69313/APP/2013/1907 14 Moorfield Road Cowley

2 x single storey side extensions (Application for a Certificate of Lawful Development for a
Proposed Development)

Decision Date: 27-08-2013 Refused Appeal:23-MAY-14  Allowed
69313/APP/2013/1908 14 Moorfield Road Cowley

Erection of a single storey rear extension, which would extend beyond the rear wall of the original
house by 8 metres, for which the maximum height would be 4 metres, and for which the height of
the eaves would be 2.4 metres

Decision Date: 09-08-2013 Refused Appeal:
69313/APP/2013/2661 14 Moorfield Road Cowley

Erection of a single storey rear extension, which would extend beyond the rear wall of the original
house by 8 metres, for which the maximum height would be 4 metres, and for which the height of
the eaves would be 2.4 metres

Decision Date: 24-10-2013 Refused Appeal:
69313/APP/2013/3880 14 Moorfield Road Cowley

Erection of a single storey rear extension, which would extend beyond the rear wall of the original
house by 6 metres, for which the maximum height would be 4 metres, and for which the height of
the eaves would be 2.4 Metres

Decision Date: 07-02-2014 Refused Appeal:
69313/APP/2014/1561 14 Moorfield Road Cowley

Single storey detached outbuilding to rear for use as a gym/store (Application for a Certificate of
Lawful Development for a Proposed Development)

Decision Date: 02-07-2014 Approved Appeal:
69313/APP/2014/1566 14 Moorfield Road Cowley

Erection of a single storey rear extension, which would extend beyond the rear wall of the original
house by 4.5 metres, for which the maximum height would be 4 metres, and for which the height
of the eaves would be 2.4 metres

Decision Date: 16-06-2014 Approved Appeal:
69313/APP/2014/196 14 Moorfield Road Cowley

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 6



Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 2no semi-detached two storey houses served by
existing accesses

Decision Date: 03-04-2014 NFA Appeal:
69313/APP/2014/2213 14 Moorfield Road Cowley

2 x two storey, 3-bed semi detached dwellings with associated parking and amenity space to
include the installation of bin stores to sides involving demolition of existing bungalow.

Decision Date: 29-01-2015 Refused Appeal:
69313/APP/2014/2335 14 Moorfield Road Cowley

Erection of a single storey rear extension, which would extend beyond the rear wall of the original
house by 5.5 metres, for which the maximum height would be 4 metres, and for which the height
of the eaves would be 2.4 metres

Decision Date: 11-08-2014 Approved Appeal:
69313/APP/2015/3137 14 Moorfield Road Cowley
First floor extension to side and alterations to elevations

Decision Date: 06-01-2016 Approved Appeal:
69313/APP/2015/669 14 Moorfield Road Cowley

Raising of roof to create first floor

Decision Date: 21-04-2015 Approved Appeal:
Comment on Planning History

The application site benefits from an extensive planning history comprising of roof
alterations, single storey and first floor extensions and a detached outbuilding.

The property has also been refused permission for the subdivision of the property to create
2 x 3 bedroom semi-detached dwellings on a number of occasions.

2. Advertisement and Site Notice

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

2.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
3. Comments on Public Consultations
EXTERNAL

A total of 5 adjoining and nearby neighbouring properties were consulted via letter dated
27.01.16 including a site notice displayed to the front of the premises on 28.01.16.

Following submission of amended plans, the adjoining neighbours were re-consulted via
letter dated 04.03.16.

A total of 5 comments and objections received from the occupiers of the adjoining and
nearby neighbouring residents:

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



A petition in opposition of the proposal was also signed by 23 neighbouring residents and
submitted on 5 Feb 2016.

Following re-consultation on the amended plans, a second petition was submitted and
signed by 20 neighbouring residents on 11 March 2016.

The issues raised can be summarised as follows:

1. Overbearing, overdevelopment and loss of light and amenity to occupants of No.12;

2. Would result in the creation of a 6 bedroom dwelling with only 2 on road and 2 off road
parking spaces;

3. Unsuitable for disabled occupiers as plans show no ground floor bathroom or toilet;

4. Site Notice posted with fewer than 21 days notice for opposition, and no letters sent out
by 29.02.16.

5. Height measurements of No.12, 14 and 16 are incorrect;

6. More bedrooms would mean more occupants at risk from flooding,

7. Building works have blocked the pavement and caused disruption.

8. Could be converted into two dwellings

OFFICER COMMENTS:

Overbearing, over development and loss of light: The proposed extension would retain a
significant separation distance from adjoining properties, would be set below the main
ridgeline and would not impede a 45 degree line of sight taken from the closest first floor
rear window of No.12. It is considered by reason of the size, scale, and siting of the
proposed extension, it would not result in a detrimental impact upon the residential
amenities and light levels of the adjoining neighbours.

No revised Design & Access statement: A revised Design and Access Statement was not
necessary as the proposal would result in the loss of one bedroom. The remainder of the
original Design and Access Statement would still be relevant.

Risk of Flooding: The Flood and Water Management Team were consulted and requested
a Flood Risk Assessment by way of Condition, before the commencement of works. They
also seek a flood warning and evacuation plan.

Insufficient parking spaces: Policy AM14 seeks a maximum of two car parking spaces per
dwelling. The site would benefit from a single garage space and a single off road space. A
condition would also be imposed to ensure the garage is retained for the parking of cars
and not for any other purpose.

Unsuitable for disabled persons, by lack of bathrooms and toilets at ground floor level: The
current application is for a first floor rear extension, with the ground floor layout previously
approved.

Site Notice posted with fewer than 21 days notice for opposition: The Site Notice was
displayed to the front of the premises on the 28 January 2016, with an expiry date displayed
on the site notice showing the 26th of February 2016. The Site Notice indicates a total of 29
days to submit comments and objections in addition to accepting comments after the
expiry date. Adjoining neighbours were also re-consulted on 4th March 2016 for a period of
14 days following the submission of amended plans.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



Could be divided into two dwellings: The Local Planning Authority has previously refused a
number of applications for the subdivision of the application property into two separate
dwellings, however the current application seeks a first floor extension which is what is
being considered.

Works causing disruption to roads: Not considered to be a material planning consideration
and would be covered by other legislation.

INTERNAL
Flood and Water Management Team Officer:

The proposal is for a first floor extension therefore the normal Environment Standing advice
requiring flood protection for extensions is not applicable. However with the increase in
residential provision at the property a FRA would be useful to inform them of the
appropriate action to be taken in a flood event. No objection subject to conditions regarding
flood risk and sustainable water management.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface

water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main planning issues are the effect of the development on the character and
appearance of the original building, the street scene, the impact on the residential amenity
of the adjoining neighbours and the location of the site within Flood Zone 3.

Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part two (Saved UDP Policies) requires alterations
and extensions to existing buildings to harmonise with the scale, form and architectural
composition of the original building. Policy BE13 requires the layout and appearance of
extensions to harmonise with the existing street scene and Policy BE19 ensures any new
development complements or improves the amenity and character of the area.

The Council's Adopted SPD the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential
Extensions (December 2008) contains design guidance for all types of extensions which
should appear subordinate in scale to the original building.

Section 6.0 states that rear and first floor rear extensions should not abut or come close to
the shared boundary with the adjoining house(s). Any extension at first floor level should not
extend beyond a 45 degree line of sight taken from the nearest of the first floor window of
any room of the neighbouring property. The extension should always appear subordinate to
the original house, and extensions up to 4m to detached properties will normally be
acceptable.

The proposed first floor extension would follow the existing south building line to project
3.65m beyond the rear elevation, would measure 6.6m in width and would be characterised
by a hipped roof set 1m below the main ridgeline of the original dwelling. The proposed first
floor rear extension by reason of its size, scale, design and roof form is considered to be a
subordinate addition and would harmonise with the character and appearance of the
original dwelling and visual amenities of the street scene.

The proposed development would therefore be in accordance with Policy BE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE15
and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

Policy BE20 requires any new development to be laid out so as to protect the daylight and
sunlight levels of existing houses. Policy BE21 requires new extensions by virtue of their
siting, bulk and proximity to not result in a significant loss of residential amenity to
neighbouring properties and Policy BE24 requires new extensions to protect the privacy of
the occupiers and their neighbours.

The application site comprises of a large two storey detached dwelling, with adjoining
neighbours to either flank elevation.

16 Moorfield Road forms a part of a terrace block to the northern flank elevation which
benefits from a two storey rear element and an elongated single storey rear extension
along the shared boundary. It is considered as the proposed extension would be sited to
the opposite site of the main dwelling and given the separation distance between the
proposed extension and this dwelling, the proposal would not result in an adverse impact
upon the residential amenities and light levels of the occupiers of No.16 Moorfield Road.

No. 12 forms half of a semi-detached pair to the south side of the application site and is
separated by an off road parking area measuring approximately 2.5m in width, in addition to
being set in from the side of the shared boundary by an additional 1.1m. The proposed

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



extension would follow the southern building line of the main dwelling to retain the existing
separation distance, would measure a maximum of 3.65m in depth and would ensure that
a 45 degree line of sight taken from the closest first floor rear window of No.12 would not
be impeded.

It is considered by reason of the size, siting and separation distance between the adjoining
neighbours at No. 12 and 16 Moorfield Road, the proposed first floor extension would not
result in a loss of residential amenity, loss of light, overlooking and overshadowing and
would accord with Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Policy BE23 states that sufficient external amenity
space should be retained to protect the amenity of existing and future occupants which is
usable in terms of its shape and siting. The supporting text relating to this policy
emphasises the importance of protecting private amenity space and considers it a key
feature of protecting residential amenity.

Paragraph 3.13 of the SPD recommends that a dwelling with four+ bedrooms should have
at least 100sq.m. The proposed extension would be at first floor level and therefore would
not impinge upon the existing rear amenity area which measures in excess of 400sg.m
and is thus in accordance with both HDAS and Local Plan Policy BE23.

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Policy AM7 considers the traffic generation of proposals
and will not permit development that is likely to prejudice the free flow of traffic or
pedestrian safety generally. Policy AM14 states the need for all development to comply with
the Council's adopted parking standards. The Council's maximum parking requirement for
a dwelling of this size is 2 spaces. The PTAL score for the site is 1b (low) and as a result it
is considered that the maximum level of spaces should be provided.

The application site benefits from an existing attached single garage, in addition to an off
road parking space along the southern flank elevation. It was considered necessary within
the previous application to prevent the use of the garage from being used for any other
purpose. The traffic generated in association with the proposal is unlikely to have a
significant effect on general traffic conditions in the immediate vicinity or the parking
requirements for the site and for this reason, the proposal is considered to comply with the
aims of Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Local Plan.

The site lies within Flood zone 3. The Flood and Water Management team were consulted
and have not objected to the proposal, given that it is for a first floor extension, but have
suggested conditions requiring submission of further details. These conditions are
attached.

In conclusion, the proposal accords with Policies BE1 and EM6 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies and Policies AM7, AM14, BE13, BE15, BE19, BE20,
BE21, BE23 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Extensions.

The application is thus, recommended for approval.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers PL/ASB/A2AMD and
PL/ASB/B2AMD.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 HO4 Materials

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building
in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012)

4 HO5 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order
with or without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 12 or
16 Moorfield Road.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 RCU3 Loss of Garage(s) to Living Accommodation (Not Garage Courts

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 55 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
the garage shall be used only for the accommodation of private motor vehicles incidental
to the use of the dwellinghouse as a residence.

REASON

To ensure that adequate off-street parking to serve the development is provided and
retained, in accordance with policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

6 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



Prior to commencement, a Flood Risk Assessment shall be submitted to, and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, and shall provide an appropriate flood warning and
evacuation plan. Thereafter the development shall be implemented and
retained/maintained in accordance with these details for as long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure future residents are aware of the risk and the action required to ensure they are
safe in the event of a flood, to comply with Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy 5.12 of the London Plan (2015), the National
Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and the Planning Practice Guidance (March
2014).

7 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it incorporates sustainable urban drainage in
accordance with the hierarchy set out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will;

i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and:

ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification. The
scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water
through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iii. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

iv. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development. Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained
in accordance with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled and is handled as close to its source as
possible to ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in compliance
with Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (Nov 2012),
Policies 5.12, 5.13 and 5.15 of The London Plan (2015), the National Planning Policy
Framework (March 2012) and the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014).

INFORMATIVES

1 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2015). On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2 The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway
repairs, including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the
Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations,
Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to
additional surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation
measures

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

3 You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
approved drawings as humbered above. The development hereby approved must
be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any
deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local
Planning Authority.

4 You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
development that results in any form of encroachment.

5 Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at
any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved
are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7 The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
- carry out work to an existing party wall;
- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls.
The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by
the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission
does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the
specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
should consult a solicitor.

9 Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours
of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public
health nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek
prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate
any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
adjoining premises.

10 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take
appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in
action being taken under the Highways Act.

11 To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
insulation.

12 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made
good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Contact Officer: Naim Poptani Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



N
7\ Shelte

;
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
N
> L7 ]s]
——'_:“-_ -

100019283

b Sta NN v

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary 14 Moorfield Road OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. c°w|ey Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . L . i ™
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 69313/APP/2016/203 1:1,250 K
Unless the Act provides a relevant @f 5
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: o s
© Crown copyright and database < =
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Central & soﬁ’ﬂge 18 May 2016 ++l LLINGDON
LONDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 4 MOORFIELD ROAD COWLEY UXBRIDGE

Development: Demolition of existing building and erection of a three storey building to provid
6 x 2-bed self contained flats with associated parking (Outline application)

LBH Ref Nos: 42162/APP/2016/915

Drawing Nos: 10
11
12
13
14 Rev. A
2
3
16
Flood Risk Assessment
4
5
Design and Access Statement

Date Plans Received: 03/03/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 08/03/2016
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks outline planning permission for the erection of a three storey
building to create 6 x 2-bed self contained flats with associated parking involving
demolition of existing house. The outline application seeks approval for access, layout
and scale. Appearance and landscaping are matters reserved for future consideration.

The proposal is considered unacceptable in principle given that the principle of additional
dwellings within the flood plain would fail to meet the Sequential Test for such
development set out in the National Planning Policy Framework as stated in Policy EM6 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan. The proposal would also be likely to impede the flow of flood
water and reduce the flood plain storage capacity of the River Pinn, increasing the risk of
local flooding with associated safety implications for persons at risk.

It is also considered that the development would detract from the character and
appearance of the area. The three storey flat roofed building would not relate to the
established layout and character of the area.

The proposal would also result in a loss of residential amenity to occupants of adjacent
dwellings by way of an unacceptable loss of outlook and privacy. The proposed layout
would also fail to provide amenity space of sufficient size and quality commensurate to the
size and layout of the proposed units, resulting in an over-development of the site.

In addition, the proposal would result in a danger and inconvenience to highway and
pedestrian users, to the detriment of public and highway safety and has failed to
demonstrate that the development will safeguard existing trees on the site.

2. RECOMMENDATION

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed additional dwellings within the flood plain would fail to meet the Sequential
Test for such development set out in the National Planning Policy Framework and would
also be likely to impede the flow of flood water and reduce the flood plain storage capacity
of the River Pinn, increasing the risk of local flooding with associated safety implications
for persons at risk. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE1 and EM6 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies OE7 and
OES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan Policies
(November 2012) and Policy 5.12 of the London Plan (2011).

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its excessive height and bulk, siting, three storey
flat roofed design, layout, and site coverage, would result in a cramped development of the
site, which is visually incongruous (given the setting) and would fail to harmonise with the
existing local and historic context of the surrounding area. The principle of intensifying the
residential use of the site, as well as the proposed loss of existing private rear garden area
would have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and local distinctiveness of
the residential area as a whole. The proposal is detrimental to the visual amenity and
character of the surrounding and contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE19 and H12 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of
the London Plan, The Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance -
Housing (November 2012), NPPF (March 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by virtue of its size, scale, bulk, height and proximity, would
be detrimental to the amenities of the adjoining occupiers at 2 and 6 Moorfield Road and
Chaucer, Cowley Road, by reason of overdominance, visual intrusion, loss of light,
overshadowing, loss of outlook and loss of privacy. Therefore the proposal would be
contrary to policies BE19, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

4 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal would provide a driveway of sub-standard width resulting in danger and
inconvenience to highway and pedestrian users, to the detriment of public and highway
safety. Therefore the proposal is in conflict with Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

5 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal fails to provide outdoor amenity space of sufficient size and quality
commensurate to the size and layout of the said units. As such the proposal would
provide a substandard form of accommodation to the detriment of the amenity of future
residents contrary to Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Layouts.

6 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



In the absence of a Tree Survey and Arboricultural Implication Assessment to
BS5837:2012 standards, the application has failed to demonstrate that the development
will safeguard existing trees on the site and further fails to demonstrate protection for and
long-term retention of the trees. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 3.3 (2015) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.15 (2015) Water use and supplies

LPP 7.1 (2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. The
Council's supports pre-application discussions.

We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the application
as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and negotiation
could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises of a detached extended bungalow located on the south
eastern side of Moorfield Road which lies within the Developed Area and Floor Zone 3 as
defined within the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). The
application property occupies a substantial plot extending to approximately 50m in depth.
There are a number of mature trees within the rear garden.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks outline planning permission for the erection of a three storey building
to create 6 x 2-bed self contained flats with associated parking involving demolition of
existing house The outline application seeks approval for access, layout and scale.
Appearance and landscaping are matters reserved for future consideration.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

42162/APP/2016/912 4 Moorfield Road Cowley Uxbridge

Demolition of existing building and erection of 4 x 3-bed, semi-detached dwellings with associat:
parking and amenity space (Outline application)

Decision:

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



Comment on Relevant Planning History

Application reference 42162/APP/2016/912 for the erection of 4 x 3-bed, semi detached
dwellings with associated parking and amenity space involving demolition of existing house
(Outline application with some matters reserved) is also submitted for consideration.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1
PT1.EM6

(2012) Built Environment
(2012) Flood Risk Management

Part 2 Policies:

BE13
BE19
BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24
BE38

H4
OE7
OES8

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.8
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.15
LPP 7.1

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Mix of housing units
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

(2015) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2015) Quality and design of housing developments
(2015) Housing Choice

(2015) Flood risk management

(2015) Sustainable drainage

(2015) Water use and supplies

(2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

12 neighbours were consulted by letter dated 8.3.16 and a site notice was displayed to the front of
the site which expired on 9.4.16.

6 letters of objection have been received raising the following concerns:

1. Unacceptable on flooding grounds

2. Out of keeping with development in the locality

3. Overdevelopment

4. Dangerous access and inadequate width of driveway
5. Increased demand for on street parking

6. Loss of privacy and outlook

Environment Agency:
Objection to the granting of permission in principle.

The site is located in Flood Zone 3b (functional floodplain) which is defined by the London Borough of
Hillingdon's Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. Table 3 of the Flood Zone and Flood Risk Tables sets
out flood risk vulnerability and flood zone compatibility and states that development falling within the
'more vulnerable' category such as residential 'should not be permitted' within flood zone 3b.

Therefore following the National Planning Policy Guidance, 'more vulnerable' development is not
compatible with areas classified as flood zone 3b.

Ward Councillor:

Requests that the application is considered by the Committee.
Internal Consultees
Highways Officer:

A new access 2.5m wide (scaled dimension) for the length proposed is not considered adequate for
a shared surface between pedestrians and vehicles. Objections are raised on highway grounds.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



Floodwater Officer:

The application should be refused as the applicant does not demonstrate that it is appropriate in
location and that flood risk is suitably mitigated as required by and Policy EM6 Flood Risk
Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy 5.12 Flood Risk
Management of the London Plan (2015) and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and
the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014).

EPU:
No objection.
Tree Officer:

No tree survey has been submitted and none of the existing trees on, or close to, the site have been
shown on plan. Car parking has been indicated along the southern boundary which occupies a
significant area of the garden and an area which will be influenced by the existing trees. Trees are
material planning consideration and it is possible that a tree survey will indicate that the current
layout is unacceptable.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

In order to establish the acceptability of the principle of developing this site for residential
purposes, it is necessary consider the principle in the light of currently adopted and
emerging policy.

Paragraph 7.29 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 suggests that backland development
may be acceptable in principle subject to being in accordance with all other policies,
although Policy H12 does resist proposals for tandem/backland development which may
cause undue disturbance or loss of privacy.

The London Plan (2015) provides guidance on how applications for development on garden
land should be treated within the London Region. The thrust of the guidance is that back
gardens can contribute to the objectives of a significant number of London Plan policies
and these matters should be taken into account when considering the principle of such
developments. Policy 3.5 of the London Plan supports development plan-led presumptions
against development on back gardens where locally justified by a sound local evidence
base.

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, November 2012 now provides
further guidance on the interpretation of existing policies within the London Plan as regards
garden development. Paragraph 1.2.23 advises that when considering proposals which
involve the loss of gardens, regard should be taken of the degree to which gardens
contribute to a communities' sense of place and quality of life (Policy 3.5), especially in
outer London where gardens are often a key component of an area's character (Policies
2.6 and 2.7). The contribution gardens make towards biodiversity also needs to be
considered (Policies 7.18 and 7.19) as does their role in mitigating flood risk (Policies 5.12
and 5.13). Gardens can also address the effects of climate change (Policies 5.9 - 5.11).

The NPPF (March 2012), at paragraph 53, advises that LPAs 'should consider the case for
setting out policies to resist inappropriate development of residential gardens, for example
where development would cause harm to the local area.'

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



The Council has also adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
(November 2012). Policy BE1 advises that new development, in addition to achieving a
high quality of design, should enhance the local distinctiveness of the area, contribute to
community cohesion and sense of place and make a positive contribution to the local area
in terms of layout, form, scale and materials and seek to protect the amenity of surrounding
land and buildings, particularly residential properties. Specifically, the policy advises that
development should not result in the inappropriate development of gardens and green
spaces that erode the character and biodiversity of suburban areas and increase flood risk.

Within the Council's emerging Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(Proposed Submission Version, September 2014), paragraph 4.16 advises that the
Council, in general will not accept proposals for development on back garden land. Policy
DMH®6: Garden and Backland Development states:

"There is a presumption against the loss of back gardens due to the need to maintain local
character, amenity space and biodiversity. In exceptional cases a limited scale of backland
development may be acceptable, subject to the following criteria:

- rear garden land which contributes either individually or as part of a larger swathe of
green space to the amenity of residents or provides wildlife habitats must be retained;

-neighbouring residential amenity and privacy of existing homes and gardens must be
maintained and unacceptable light spillage avoided;

- vehicular access or car parking should not have an adverse impact on neighbours in
terms of noise or light. Access roads between dwellings and unnecessarily long access
roads will not normally be acceptable;

- development on backland sites must be more intimate in mass and scale and lower than
frontage properties;

- Features such as trees, shrubs and wildlife habitat, which are important to character,
appearance or wildlife must be retained or re-provided.'

While there is in general no objection to the principle of an intensification of use on existing
residential sites it is considered that in this instance the loss of substantial proportion of the
back garden in this location would be detrimental to the local and historical context of the
area and would have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area.

It is also considered that the development appears very cramped within its site boundary,
with no outdoor amenity area. It would not relate to the established open and spacious
character of the area and would set an unwanted precedent of similar development, the
cumulative effect of which is severely detrimental to the character and appearance of the
wider area.

When balanced against the limited contribution the developments would make toward
achieving housing targets in the borough it is considered that the principle of the proposed
residential development is contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE19 and H12 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the
London Plan, guidance within The London Plan Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance
(November 2012) and the NPPF (March 2012).

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

The application site is also located within Flood Zone 3b (Functional Floodplain of the
nearby River Pinn). According to table 2 of the Planning Practice Guidance 'residential
development is defined as more vulnerable use. In Table 3 more vulnerable development is
not permitted in Flood Zone 3b. For these reasons therefore, the proposal would conflict
with the objectives of the NPPF, and Policies OE7, OE8 and EMG6 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan in regard to flooding matters.

Density of the proposed development

The London Plan (2015) in Table 3.2 suggests that an appropriate residential density for
this site which has a PTAL score of 2 and a suburban setting would range from 150-250
habitable rooms per hectare (hr/ha) and 40-80 units per hectare (u/ha) for units with a
typical size of 3.1-3.7 habitable rooms per unit (hr/u). The Council's HDAS: Residential
Layouts further advises that larger rooms over 20sqm and capable of subdivision should
be counted as 2 rooms.

The scheme equates to a density of 120 u/ha and 480 hr/ha which exceeds with the
Mayor's guidance. However, density guidelines are of limited use on small infill sites as it
will be more important to ensure that the scheme successfully harmonises with its
neighbours whilst still affording appropriate living conditions for its future occupants. This is
dealt with in an other relevant sections of this report.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Furthermore policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) resist any development
which would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the
design of existing and adjoining sites.

The proposal would replace the existing bungalow on the application site and introduce a
three storey flat roofed building measuring 9m in height. The building would measure 23m
in depth with three rows of side facing windows in the northern elevation, a blank wall in the
southern elevation and windows in the front and rear. The character of the area is defined
by a mixture of both single storey and two storey dwellings with hipped and gabled roofs.
There are no examples of three storey flat roofed flatted buildings within the vicinity. Having
regard to the excessive height of the proposed building and its flat roofed design and
unsympathetic fenestration details, the proposal would result in a incongruous form of
development which would be severely detrimental to the character and appearance of the
wider area. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE19 and BE22 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the Council's
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts and Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of
the London Plan.

Impact on neighbours

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks to
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in a number of ways. The effect of the

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



siting, bulk and proximity of a new building on the outlook and residential amenity of these
adjoining occupiers are considered under Policy BE20, whilst potential impacts on
daylight/sunlight (Policy BE21) and privacy (Policy BE24) are also assessed.

Paragraph 4.9 of the SPD, the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential
Layouts (July 2006) further advises that all residential developments and amenity spaces
should receive adequate daylight and sunlight and that new development should be
designed to minimise the negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing. It goes on to
advise that 'where a two storey building abuts a property or its garden, adequate distance
should be maintained to overcome possible domination'. Generally, 15m will be the
minimum acceptable distance between buildings. Furthermore a minimum of 21m
overlooking distance should be maintained.

Paragraph 4.9 of the adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006) gives advice
that adequate distance should be maintained to overcome possible domination of
neighbouring properties, particularly where a two or more storey building abuts a property
or its boundary. It specifies that a minimum acceptable distance to minimise the negative
impact of overbearing and overshadowing is 15m.

Paragraph 4.11 of the HDAS SPD gives advice on sunlight and daylight considerations,
and that the 45 degree line of sight principle will be applied to new development, to ensure
the amenity of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are protected. Paragraph 4.12 of
the HDAS SPD requires a minimum of 21m distance between facing habitable room
windows in new and adjacent properties to prevent overlooking and loss of privacy.

The proposed building would project approximately 12m to the rear of the two storey
element of adjacent property, 6 Moorfield Road. Given this projection at three storey height,
the proposal would result in a serious loss of light and outlook to the occupants of this
property. Furthermore, three rows of windows in the northern elevation looking toward the
rear gardens with oblique views towards the rear elevation of Number 6, would result in an
unacceptable loss of privacy to the occupants of this property. Concerns are also raised in
respect of the impact upon the occupants of number 2 Moorfield Road which would
achieve a separation distance of 8m from its rear windows, and adjacent bungalow,
Chaucer, Cowley Road, which would achieve a separation distance of approximately 11m.
It is considered that the proposed building, at a height of 9m, would result in an overly
dominant, visually intrusive and an un-neighbourly form of development, resulting in a
material loss of residential amenity. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to policies
BE19, BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012), the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015 and they
have been adopted by The Mayor of London in the form of Housing Standards Minor
Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016). This sets out how the existing policies
relating to Housing Standards in The London Plan should be applied from March 2016.
Table 3.3 sets out how the minimum space standards stemming from the policy specified
in the 2012 Housing SPG should be interpreted in relation to the national standards.

Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 of The London Plan (March 2015), specify that the minimum
internal floor space area/standard for a 2 bedroom (4 person) flat is 70 square metres. The

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



7.10

7.11

7.12

713

714

nationally described space standards defines the Gross Internal Area (GIA) or internal floor
space area of a dwelling as 'the total floor space measured between the internal faces of
perimeter walls that enclose a dwelling. This includes partitions, structural elements,
cupboards, ducts, flights of stairs and voids above stairs. At a floor space of 70 square
metres the proposed flats would adhere to this minimum standard.

The proposal identifies no outdoor amenity space for the flats whereas the Council's
minimum requirement is for 25sqm per flat. Therefore The proposal fails to provide amenity
space of sufficient size and quality commensurate to the size and layout of the said units.
As such the proposal would provide a substandard form of accommodation for future
residents contrary to Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and to the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Policy AM7 considers the traffic generation of proposals
and will not permit development that is likely to prejudice the free flow of traffic or
pedestrian safety generally.

The submitted plans show the provision of 9 x parking spaces (1.5 spaces per dwelling)
along the side boundary accessed by a single width driveway. The Highways Officer has
raised an objection to application reference 42162/APP/2016/912 on the grounds that a
new access 2.5m wide for the length proposed is not considered adequate for a shared
surface between pedestrians and vehicles. The same access and driveway is proposed
under this application. The proposal therefore, due to the substandard width of the
proposed shared driveway would result in danger and inconvenience to highway and
pedestrian users, to the detriment of public and highway safety. Therefore the proposal is
in conflict with Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Urban design, access and security

The issues are addressed in the section above.
Disabled access

No issue raised
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two Policy BE38 seeks the protection and retention of existing
trees and landscape features of merit and considers where appropriate the provision of
additional landscaping as part of a proposed development.

Whilst the application is in outline form, with landscaping being a reserved matter for future
consideration, the current application does seek approval for the layout of the development.
It is noted that there are a number of trees within the rear garden and adjacent to the site
boundary, which are of visual amenity merit. The trees have not been identified on the
proposed layout plan and the application form confirms that no trees are to be removed to
facilitate the development. The proposed car parking spaces and dwellings to the rear of
the site would be sited in close proximity to these trees. As such in the absence of a Tree
Survey and Arboricultural Implication Assessment to BS5837: 2012 standards, the
application has failed to demonstrate that the development will safeguard existing trees on
the site and further fails to demonstrate protection for and long-term retention of the trees.
The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.15 Sustainable waste management

Provision for the siting of suitable refuse storage facilities could be made the subject of
conditions should the application have been considered acceptable in all other respects.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

No issues raised.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site falls within Flood Zone 3b (Functional Floodplain of the nearby River Pinn.
According to table 2 of the Planning Practice Guidance 'residential development is defined
as more vulnerable use. In Table 3 more vulnerable development is not permitted in Flood
Zone 3b.

Policy EM6 of the Local Plan requires that all proposals for new development within Flood
Zones 3 should be accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment that provides evidence of
the Sequential Test for such development in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework. Policy OE7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan states that in areas liable to flooding,
planning permission will not be granted for new development without flood protection
measures (in consultation with the Environment Agency). In addition, permission will not be
granted for development which would result in an increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run off unless attenuation measures (Policy OES8).

No evidence has been provided that such development could not take place elsewhere
outside of the flood plain or that it can otherwise be treated as an exception and therefore
the proposal fails to meet this general test. The Council has to be able to accept that the
benefits of the development outweigh this risk by determining there is no available land at a
lower risk of flooding. It is for the applicant to satisfy the Council as to why a new
development should be located in this area. Without suitable evidence the Council should
look to alternative sites at a lower risk to fulfil its housing needs. The majority of the
Borough is outside of flood zones 2 and 3, including its main centres. The Council's
housing land studies suggest that there are many locations across the Borough not at risk
of flooding.

To overcome the objection the applicant would need to demonstrate that there is clear
justification for developing this area ahead of sites at a lower risk of flooding. The
Floodwater Management Officer has further advised that the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment does not meet the requirements of a site specific flood risk assessment and
does not include a detailed assessment of the risk to and from the site. It also does not
demonstrate that the proposal does not increase the flood risk to the surrounding area and
in accordance with the requirements of the exception test reduce that risk as well as
managing the flood risk to the property. The proposal expands the building footprint within
the functional floodplain. This footprint would take up space otherwise occupied by flood
water and increase flood risk to the surrounding properties and adjacent school. No
mitigation is provided for this loss. The resilience measures provided is considered limited
in detail and there is no detailed flood evacuation plan provided for the development.

For these reasons therefore, the proposal would conflict with the objectives of the NPPF
and Policies OE7, OE8 and EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan in regard to flooding matters.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



The comments raised through the consultation process are addressed above.
7.20 Planning obligations

The Council's Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule was adopted on 1st
August 2014. The additional habitable floor space created will be chargeable at £95 per
square metre.

On the 1st April 2012 the Mayoral Community Structure Levy came into force. The London
Borough of Hillingdon falls within Charging Zone 2, therefore, a flat rate fee of £35 per
square metre would be required for each net additional square metre added to the site as
part of the development.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

No other issues raised.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks outline planning permission for the erection of a three storey building
to create 6 x 2-bed self contained flats with associated parking involving demolition of
existing house. The outline application seeks approval for access, layout and scale.
Appearance and landscaping are matters reserved for future consideration.

The proposal is considered unacceptable in principle given that the principle of additional
dwellings within the flood plain would fail to meet the Sequential Test for such development
set out in the National Planning Policy Framework as stated in Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan. The proposal would also be likely to impede the flow of flood water and reduce
the flood plain storage capacity of the River Pinn, increasing the risk of local flooding with
associated safety implications for persons at risk. It is also considered that the
development would detract from the character and appearance of the area. The three
storey flat roofed building would not relate to the established layout and character of the
area. The proposal would also result in a loss of residential amenity to occupants of
adjacent dwellings by way of an unacceptable loss of outlook and privacy. The proposed
layout would also fail to provide amenity space of sufficient size and quality commensurate
to the size and layout of the proposed units, resulting in an over-development of the site. In
addition, the proposal would result in a danger and inconvenience to highway and
pedestrian users, to the detriment of public and highway safety and has failed to
demonstrate that the development will safeguard existing trees on the site.

11. Reference Documents

The London Plan (2015).

Hillingdon Local Plan Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Mayor of London's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2012)
Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Parking Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts (July 2006)

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon (January 2010)
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



helter), ||
.

El Sub Sta

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Site Address:
4 Moorfield Road
Cowley
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
42162/APP/2016/915 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & SoGfi9e 34 May 2016

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

TILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 4 MOORFIELD ROAD COWLEY UXBRIDGE

Development: Demolition of existing building and erection of 4 x 3-bed, semi-detached
dwellings with associated parking and amenity space (Outline application)

LBH Ref Nos: 42162/APP/2016/912

Drawing Nos: 2
6
7
8
9
3
4
5
F

lood Risk Assessment

Date Plans Received: 03/03/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 07/03/2016
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks outline planning permission for the erection of 4 x 3-bed, semi
detached dwellings with associated parking and amenity space involving demolition of
existing house. The outline application seeks approval for access, layout and scale.
Appearance and landscaping are matters reserved for future consideration.

The proposal is considered unacceptable in principle given that the principle of additional
dwellings within the flood plain would fail to meet the Sequential Test for such
development set out in the National Planning Policy Framework as stated in Policy EM6 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies. The proposal would also be likely
to impede the flow of flood water and reduce the flood plain storage capacity of the River
Pinn, increasing the risk of local flooding with associated safety implications for persons at
risk.

It is also considered that the development would detract from the character and
appearance of the area. The buildings would not relate to the established layout and
character of the area.

The proposal would also result in a loss of residential amenity to occupants of adjacent
dwellings by way of an unacceptable loss of light and outlook. The proposal would also
provide an indoor living area of an unsatisfactory size for the occupiers of the units and
would thus give rise to a substandard form of living accommodation to the detriment of the
residential amenity of future occupiers. The proposed layout would also fail to provide
amenity space of sufficient size and quality commensurate to the size and layout of the
proposed units, resulting in an over-development of the site.

In addition, the proposal would result in a danger and inconvenience to highway and
pedestrian users, to the detriment of public and highway safety and has failed to
demonstrate that the development will safeguard existing trees on the site.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed additional dwellings within the flood plain would fail to meet the Sequential
Test for such development set out in the National Planning Policy Framework and would
also be likely to impede the flow of flood water and reduce the flood plain storage capacity
of the River Pinn, increasing the risk of local flooding with associated safety implications
for persons at risk. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE1 and EM6 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies OE7 and
OES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan Policies
(November 2012), Policy 5.12 of the London Plan (2015) and The National Planning
Practice Guidance.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its excessive height, bulk, siting (in a rear
garden), design, layout, and site coverage, would result in a cramped development of the
site, which is visually incongruous (given the setting) and would fail to harmonise with the
existing local and historic context of the surrounding area. The principle of intensifying the
residential use of the site, as well as the proposed loss of existing private rear garden area
would have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and local distinctiveness of
the residential area as a whole. The proposal is detrimental to the visual amenity and
character of the surrounding and contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE19 and H12 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of
the London Plan, The Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance -
Housing (November 2012), NPPF (March 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by virtue of its size, scale, bulk, height and proximity, would
be detrimental to the amenities of the adjoining occupiers at 2 Moorfield Road and
Chaucer, Cowley Road, by reason of overdominance, visual intrusion, and loss of outlook.
Therefore the proposal would be contrary to policies BE19 and BE21 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

4 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal would provide a driveway of sub-standard width resulting in danger and
inconvenience to highway and pedestrian users, to the detriment of public and highway
safety. Therefore the proposal is in conflict with Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

5 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal fails to provide outdoor amenity space of sufficient size and quality
commensurate to the size and layout of the said units. As such the proposal would
provide a substandard form of accommodation to the detriment of the amenity of future
residents contrary to Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Layouts.

6 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



The proposal would provide an indoor living area of an unsatisfactory size for the
occupiers of the units and would thus give rise to a substandard form of living
accommodation to the detriment of the residential amenity of future occupiers, contrary to
Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 of the London Plan As amended by the Housing Standards Minor
Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016) and The Mayor of London's adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (November 2012).

7 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

In the absence of a Tree Survey and Arboricultural Implication Assessment to
BS5837:2012 standards, the application has failed to demonstrate that the development
will safeguard existing trees on the site and further fails to demonstrate protection for and
long-term retention of the trees. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 3.3 (2015) Increasing housing supply

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.15 (2015) Water use and supplies

LPP 7.1 (2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. The
Council's supports pre-application discussions.

We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the application
as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and negotiation
could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises of a detached extended bungalow located on the south
eastern side of Moorfield Road which lies within the Developed Area and Floor Zone 3 as
defined within the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). The
application property occupies a substantial plot extending to approximately 50m in depth.
There are a number of mature trees within the rear garden.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks outline planning permission for the erection of 4 x 3-bed, semi
detached dwellings with associated parking and amenity space involving demolition of
existing house. The outline application seeks approval for access, layout and scale.
Appearance and landscaping are matters reserved for future consideration.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



42162/APP/2016/915 4 Moorfield Road Cowley Uxbridge

Demoilition of existing building and erection of a three storey building to provide 6 x 2-bed self
contained flats with associated parking (Outline application)

Decision:

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Application reference 42162/APP/2016/915 for the erection of a three storey building to
create 6 x 2-bed self contained flats with associated parking involving demolition of existing
house (Outline application with some matters reserved) is also submitted for
consideration.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water

run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 3.3 (2015) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.15 (2015) Water use and supplies

LPP 7.1 (2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

12 neighbours were consulted by letter dated 8.3.16 and a site notice was displayed to the front of
the site which expired on 7.4.16.

6 letters of objection have been received raising the following concerns:

1. Unacceptable on flooding grounds

2. Out of keeping with development in the locality

3. Overdevelopment

4. Dangerous access and inadequate width of driveway
5. Increased demand for on street parking

6. Loss of privacy and outlook

Environment Agency:

Objection to the granting of permission in principle.

The site is located in Flood Zone 3b (functional floodplain) which is defined by the London Borough of
Hillingdon's Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. Table 3 of the Flood Zone and Flood Risk Tables sets
out flood risk vulnerability and flood zone compatibility and states that development falling within the

'more vulnerable' category such as residential 'should not be permitted' within flood zone 3b.

Therefore following the National Planning Policy Guidance, 'more vulnerable' development is not
compatible with areas classified as flood zone 3b.

Ward Councillor:

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



Requests that the application is considered by the Committee.

Internal Consultees
Highways Officer:

A new access 2.5m wide (scaled dimension) for the length proposed is not considered adequate for
a shared surface between pedestrians and vehicles. Objections are raised on highway grounds.

Floodwater Officer:

The application should be refused as the applicant does not demonstrate that it is appropriate in
location and that flood risk is suitably mitigated as required by and Policy EM6 Flood Risk
Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy 5.12 Flood Risk
Management of the London Plan (2015) and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and
the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014).

EPU:

No objection.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

In order to establish the acceptability of the principle of developing this site for residential
purposes, it is necessary consider the principle in the light of currently adopted and
emerging policy.

Paragraph 7.29 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 suggests that backland development
may be acceptable in principle subject to being in accordance with all other policies,
although Policy H12 does resist proposals for tandem/backland development which may
cause undue disturbance or loss of privacy.

The London Plan (2015) provides guidance on how applications for development on garden
land should be treated within the London Region. The thrust of the guidance is that back
gardens can contribute to the objectives of a significant number of London Plan policies
and these matters should be taken into account when considering the principle of such
developments. Policy 3.5 of the London Plan supports development plan-led presumptions
against development on back gardens where locally justified by a sound local evidence
base.

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, November 2012 now provides
further guidance on the interpretation of existing policies within the London Plan as regards
garden development. Paragraph 1.2.23 advises that when considering proposals which
involve the loss of gardens, regard should be taken of the degree to which gardens
contribute to a communities' sense of place and quality of life (Policy 3.5), especially in
outer London where gardens are often a key component of an area's character (Policies
2.6 and 2.7). The contribution gardens make towards biodiversity also needs to be
considered (Policies 7.18 and 7.19) as does their role in mitigating flood risk (Policies 5.12
and 5.13). Gardens can also address the effects of climate change (Policies 5.9 - 5.11).

The NPPF (March 2012), at paragraph 53, advises that LPAs 'should consider the case for
setting out policies to resist inappropriate development of residential gardens, for example
where development would cause harm to the local area.’

The Council has also adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



(November 2012). Policy BE1 advises that new development, in addition to achieving a
high quality of design, should enhance the local distinctiveness of the area, contribute to
community cohesion and sense of place and make a positive contribution to the local area
in terms of layout, form, scale and materials and seek to protect the amenity of surrounding
land and buildings, particularly residential properties. Specifically, the policy advises that
development should not result in the inappropriate development of gardens and green
spaces that erode the character and biodiversity of suburban areas and increase flood risk.

Within the Council's emerging Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(Proposed Submission Version, September 2014), paragraph 4.16 advises that the
Council, in general will not accept proposals for development on back garden land. Policy
DMH®6: Garden and Backland Development states:

"There is a presumption against the loss of back gardens due to the need to maintain local
character, amenity space and biodiversity. In exceptional cases a limited scale of backland
development may be acceptable, subject to the following criteria:

- rear garden land which contributes either individually or as part of a larger swathe of
green space to the amenity of residents or provides wildlife habitats must be retained;

- neighbouring residential amenity and privacy of existing homes and gardens must be
maintained and unacceptable light spillage avoided;

- vehicular access or car parking should not have an adverse impact on neighbours in
terms of noise or light. Access roads between dwellings and unnecessarily long access
roads will not normally be acceptable;

- development on backland sites must be more intimate in mass and scale and lower than
frontage properties;

- Features such as trees, shrubs and wildlife habitat, which are important to character,
appearance or wildlife must be retained or re-provided.'

While there is in general no objection to the principle of an intensification of use on existing
residential sites it is considered that in this instance the loss of substantial proportion of the
back garden in this location would be detrimental to the local and historical context of the
area and would have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area.

It is also considered that the development appears very cramped within its site boundary,
with limited amenity area. It would not relate to the established open and spacious
character of the area and would set an unwanted precedent of similar backland
development, the cumulative effect of which is severely detrimental to the character and
appearance of the wider area.

When balanced against the limited contribution the developments would make toward
achieving housing targets in the borough it is considered that the principle of the proposed
residential development is contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE19 and H12 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the
London Plan, guidance within The London Plan Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance
(November 2012) and the NPPF (March 2012).

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

The application site is also located within Flood Zone 3b (Functional Floodplain of the
nearby River Pinn). According to table 2 of the Planning Practice Guidance 'residential
development is defined as more vulnerable use. In Table 3 more vulnerable development is
not permitted in Flood Zone 3b. For these reasons therefore, the proposal would conflict
with the objectives of the NPPF, and Policies OE7, OE8 and EMG6 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan in regard to flooding matters.

Density of the proposed development

The London Plan (2015) in Table 3.2 suggests that an appropriate residential density for
this site which has a PTAL score of 2 and a suburban setting would range from 150-250
habitable rooms per hectare (hr/ha) and 40-80 units per hectare (u/ha) for units with a
typical size of 3.1-3.7 habitable rooms per unit (hr/u). The Council's HDAS: Residential
Layouts further advises that larger rooms over 20sqm and capable of subdivision should
be counted as 2 rooms.

The scheme equates to a density of 80 u/ha and 400 hr/ha which exceeds with the Mayor's
guidance. However, density guidelines are of limited use on small infill sites as it will be
more important to ensure that the scheme successfully harmonises with its neighbours
whilst still affording appropriate living conditions for its future occupants. This is dealt with
in other relevant sections of this report.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Furthermore policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) resist any development
which would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the
design of existing and adjoining sites.

The proposal would replace the existing bungalow on the application site and introduce a
form of two storey dwellings along the frontage, in line with the development along Moorfield
Road with a pair of semi detached dwellings across the entire width of the site towards the
rear. The dwellings would have a half hipped roof design and the frontage building would
have a ridge height of 10.05m with the rear building measuring 8.9m in height. The
character of the area is defined by a mixture of both single storey and two storey dwellings
with hipped and gabled roofs. There are no examples of half-hipped roofs within the vicinity.
Having regard to the excessive height of the proposed dwellings, their spread across the
entire width of the site (at the rear) and the backland layout of the rear houses, the proposal
would result in a incongruous form of development which would be severely detrimental to
the character and appearance of the wider area. The proposal is therefore contrary to
Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012),
Policies BE13, BE19 and BE22 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012), the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Layouts and Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of the London Plan.

Impact on neighbours

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks to

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in a number of ways. The effect of the
siting, bulk and proximity of a new building on the outlook and residential amenity of these
adjoining occupiers are considered under Policy BE20, whilst potential impacts on
daylight/sunlight (Policy BE21) and privacy (Policy BE24) are also assessed.

Paragraph 4.9 of the SPD, the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential
Layouts (July 2006) further advises that all residential developments and amenity spaces
should receive adequate daylight and sunlight and that new development should be
designed to minimise the negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing. It goes on to
advise that 'where a two storey building abuts a property or its garden, adequate distance
should be maintained to overcome possible domination'. Generally, 15m will be the
minimum acceptable distance between buildings. Furthermore a minimum of 21m
overlooking distance should be maintained.

Paragraph 4.9 of the adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006) gives advice
that adequate distance should be maintained to overcome possible domination of
neighbouring properties, particularly where a two or more storey building abuts a property
or its boundary. It specifies that a minimum acceptable distance to minimise the negative
impact of overbearing and overshadowing is 15m.

Paragraph 4.11 of the HDAS SPD gives advice on sunlight and daylight considerations,
and that the 45 degree line of sight principle will be applied to new development, to ensure
the amenity of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are protected. Paragraph 4.12 of
the HDAS SPD requires a minimum of 21m distance between facing habitable room
windows in new and adjacent properties to prevent overlooking and loss of privacy.

Whilst the proposal would result in a separation distance of 23m between the two pairs of
semi-detached properties, and between the rear windows of adjacent number 6 and the
rear pair of dwellings, concerns are raised in respect of the impact upon the occupants of
number 2 Moorfield Road which would achieve a separation distance of 8m from its rear
windows, and adjacent bungalow, Chaucer, Cowley Road, which would achieve a
separation distance of approximately 11m. It is considered that the proposal would result in
an overly dominant, visually intrusive and an un-neighbourly form of development, resulting
in a material loss of residential amenity. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to
policies BE19, BE20, and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and to the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015 and they
have been adopted by The Mayor of London in the form of Housing Standards Minor
Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016). This sets out how the existing policies
relating to Housing Standards in The London Plan should be applied from March 2016.
Table 3.3 sets out how the minimum space standards stemming from the policy specified
in the 2012 Housing SPG should be interpreted in relation to the national standards.

Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 of The London Plan (March 2015), specify that the minimum
internal floor space area/standard for a 3 bedroom, 3 storey (4 person)house should be 90
sq.m and a two storey three bedroom (4 person house) 84m2. The nationally described
space standards defines the Gross Internal Area (GIA) or internal floor space area of a

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



7.10

711

7.12

713

714

dwelling as 'the total floor space measured between the internal faces of perimeter walls
that enclose a dwelling. This includes partitions, structural elements, cupboards, ducts,
flights of stairs and voids above stairs. At a floor space of 80 square metres and 82 square
metres, all four dwellings would fail to comply with this minimum standard and would result
in an unacceptable form of living accommodation in conflict with policy 3.5 of the London
Plan.

The proposal identifies an outdoor amenity space for each dwelling measuring
approximately 20 square metres, whereas the Council's minimum requirement is for
60sgm per dwelling. Therefore The proposal fails to provide amenity space of sufficient
size and quality commensurate to the size and layout of the said units. As such the
proposal would provide a substandard form of accommodation for future residents contrary
to Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and to the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Policy AM7 considers the traffic generation of proposals
and will not permit development that is likely to prejudice the free flow of traffic or
pedestrian safety generally.

The submitted plans show the provision of 6 x parking spaces (1.5 spaces per dwelling)
along the side boundary (between the two pairs of dwellings) accessed by a single width
driveway. The Highways Officer has raised an objection to the proposal on the grounds that
a new access 2.5m wide for the length proposed is not considered adequate for a shared
surface between pedestrians and vehicles. The proposal therefore, due to the substandard
width of the proposed shared driveway would result in danger and inconvenience to
highway and pedestrian users, to the detriment of public and highway safety. Therefore the
proposal is in conflict with Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

Urban design, access and security

The issues are addressed in the section above.
Disabled access

No issue raised.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two Policy BE38 seeks the protection and retention of existing
trees and landscape features of merit and considers where appropriate the provision of
additional landscaping as part of a proposed development.

Whilst the application is in outline form, with landscaping being a reserved matter for future
consideration, the current application does seek approval for the layout of the development.
It is noted that there are a number of trees within the rear garden and adjacent to the site
boundary, which are of visual amenity merit. The trees have not been identified on the
proposed layout plan and the application form confirms that no trees are to be removed to
facilitate the development. The proposed car parking spaces and dwellings to the rear of
the site would be sited in close proximity to these trees. As such in the absence of a Tree
Survey and Arboricultural Implication Assessment to BS5837: 2012 standards, the
application has failed to demonstrate that the development will safeguard existing trees on
the site and further fails to demonstrate protection for and long-term retention of the trees.
The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.15 Sustainable waste management

Provision for the siting of suitable refuse storage facilities could be made the subject of
conditions should the application have been considered acceptable in all other respects.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

No issues raised.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site falls within Flood Zone 3b (Functional Floodplain of the nearby River Pinn.
According to table 2 of the Planning Practice Guidance 'residential development is defined
as more vulnerable use. In Table 3 more vulnerable development is not permitted in Flood
Zone 3b.

Policy EM6 of the Local Plan requires that all proposals for new development within Flood
Zones 3 should be accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment that provides evidence of
the Sequential Test for such development in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework. Policy OE7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan states that in areas liable to flooding,
planning permission will not be granted for new development without flood protection
measures (in consultation with the Environment Agency). In addition, permission will not be
granted for development which would result in an increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run off unless attenuation measures (Policy OES8).

No evidence has been provided that such development could not take place elsewhere
outside of the flood plain or that it can otherwise be treated as an exception and therefore
the proposal fails to meet this general test. The Council has to be able to accept that the
benefits of the development outweigh this risk by determining there is no available land at a
lower risk of flooding. It is for the applicant to satisfy the Council as to why a new
development should be located in this area. Without suitable evidence the Council should
look to alternative sites at a lower risk to fulfil its housing needs. The majority of the
Borough is outside of flood zones 2 and 3, including its main centres. The Council's
housing land studies suggest that there are many locations across the Borough not at risk
of flooding.

To overcome the objection the applicant would need to demonstrate that there is clear
justification for developing this area ahead of sites at a lower risk of flooding. The
Floodwater management Officer has further advised that the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment does not meet the requirements of a site specific flood risk assessment and
does not include a detailed assessment of the risk to and from the site. It also does not
demonstrate that the proposal does not increase the flood risk to the surrounding area and
in accordance with the requirements of the exception test reduce that risk as well as
managing the flood risk to the property. The proposal expands the building footprint within
the functional floodplain. This footprint would take up space otherwise occupied by flood
water and increase flood risk to the surrounding properties and adjacent school. No
mitigation is provided for this loss. The resilience measures provided is considered limited
in detail and there is no detailed flood evacuation plan provided for the development.

For these reasons therefore, the proposal would conflict with the objectives of the NPPF
and Policies OE7, OE8 and EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan in regard to flooding matters.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



The comments raised through the consultation process are addressed above.
7.20 Planning obligations

The Council's Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule was adopted on 1st
August 2014. The additional habitable floor space created will be chargeable at £95 per
square metre.

On the 1st April 2012 the Mayoral Community Structure Levy came into force. The London
Borough of Hillingdon falls within Charging Zone 2, therefore, a flat rate fee of £35 per
square metre would be required for each net additional square metre added to the site as
part of the development.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

No other issues raised.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks outline planning permission for the erection of 4 x 3-bed, semi
detached dwellings with associated parking and amenity space involving demolition of
existing house. The outline application seeks approval for access, layout and scale.
Appearance and landscaping are matters reserved for future consideration.

The proposal is considered unacceptable in principle given that the principle of additional
dwellings within the flood plain would fail to meet the Sequential Test for such development
set out in the National Planning Policy Framework as stated in Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies. The proposal would also be likely to impede the
flow of flood water and reduce the flood plain storage capacity of the River Pinn, increasing
the risk of local flooding with associated safety implications for persons at risk. It is also
considered that the development would detract from the character and appearance of the
area. The buildings would not relate to the established layout and character of the area.
The proposal would also result in a loss of residential amenity to occupants of adjacent
dwellings by way of an unacceptable loss of light and outlook. The proposal would also
provide an indoor living area of an unsatisfactory size for the occupiers of the units and
would thus give rise to a substandard form of living accommodation to the detriment of the
residential amenity of future occupiers. The proposed layout would also fail to provide
amenity space of sufficient size and quality commensurate to the size and layout of the
proposed units, resulting in an over-development of the site. In addition, the proposal would
result in a danger and inconvenience to highway and pedestrian users, to the detriment of
public and highway safety and has failed to demonstrate that the development will
safeguard existing trees on the site.

11. Reference Documents

The London Plan (2015).

Hillingdon Local Plan Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Mayor of London's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2012)

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Parking Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts (July 2006)
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon (January 2010)
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



helter), ||
.

El Sub Sta

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Site Address:
4 Moorfield Road
Cowley
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
42162/APP/2016/912 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & SoGfi9e 20 May 2016

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

TILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address BRUNEL UNIVERSITY KINGSTON LANE HILLINGDON

Development: Variation of condition 2 (Submitted Plans) of planning permission Ref:
532/APP/2014/2161 dated 24/02/2015 to alter the parking layout (Installation «
52 additional parking spaces)

LBH Ref Nos: 532/APP/2016/210

Drawing Nos: 6604.202C
6604.203C
6604.204C
6604.205C
6604.206C
6604.207C
6604.208C
6604.201C

Date Plans Received: 19/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 18/02/2016
1. SUMMARY

This application is being referred to the Planning Committee because the proposal
constitutes a minor development in a site located within the Green Belt.

This application seeks a variation of Condition 2 (Submitted Plans) of planning permission
reference 532/APP/2014/2161, which was granted on 24/02/2015 for the installation of 52
additional parking spaces. The requirement for additional parking spaces with permission
532/APP/2014/2161 was identified as a result of the loss of 111 parking spaces arising
from the proposal to construct a BCAST Science Park facility in the south-west corner of
the site, which houses the Brunel University campus.

This application proposes minor alterations to the layout of the approved parking spaces,
and would result in a reduction of the number of the approved spaces from 52 to 49. The
proposed alterations incorporate the provision of 4 disabled parking spaces, set-back of
spaces from a new pavement to avoid conflict with existing manhole services, removal of
foliage and installation of tree protection measures, retention and installation of
existing/new lamp-posts, installation of SUDS complaint grid system with gravel infill and
installation of new pavement and dropped kerbs with tactile paving.

The principle of the provision of additional parking spaces in the related car park location
as well as in the floodplain (Flood Zone 2) has already been considered acceptable with
permission 532/APP/2014/2161, and subject to the inclusion of an appropriate
landscaping condition, it is considered that the revisions to the layout of the car park and
spaces would not detract from the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding
natural and built environment, which lie within the Green Belt. Furthermore the proposals
are considered acceptable on flooding/drainage grounds and would not have any adverse
impact upon neighbouring residential amenity.

Accordingly, the application is recommended for approval.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COomM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 6604.205C,
6604.206C, 6604.207C and 6604.208C, and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as
long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and The London Plan (2015).

3 COM8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

4 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Hard Surfacing Materials

2.b External Lighting

2.c Other structures

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 5% of all parking spaces are served
by electrical charging points)

2.e Car Parking provision for wheelchair users (a minimum of 10% of the spaces should
be shown to be available)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies BE13, BE38,
AM13 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

5 COM10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs' Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 "Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

6 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, no development shall take place on site until details
of the incorporation of sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set out
in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan, have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and
thereafter permanently retained and maintained.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policies EM6 and OES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Policy 5.12 of the London Plan (2015).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

EMG6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development

OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

PR22 Brunel University

LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is occupied by grass verges and open space around the Gardeners
Compound to the west of the River Pinn, and to the north of the Southern Perimeter Road
on the Brunel University campus (off Kingston Lane).

The areas affected include an area of grass/open space, with trees, adjacent to the River
Pinn, an existing verge (with trees) immediately to the north of the Southern Perimeter
Road and an existing verge outside the Joseph Lowe building.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks a variation of Condition No. 2 (Submitted Plans) of planning
permission reference 532/APP/2014/2161, which was granted on 24/02/2015 for the
installation of 52 additional parking spaces. The requirement for additional parking spaces
with permission 532/APP/2014/2161 was identified as a result of the loss of 111 parking
spaces arising from the proposal to construct a BCAST facility in the south-west corner of
the site, which houses the Brunel University campus.

This application proposes minor alterations to the layout of the approved parking spaces,
and would result in a reduction of the number of the approved spaces from 52 to 49. The
proposed alterations incorporate the provision of 4 disabled parking spaces, set-back of
spaces from a new pavement to avoid conflict with existing manhole services, removal of
foliage and installation of tree protection measures, retention and installation of
existing/new lamp-posts, installation of SUDS complaint grid system with gravel infill and
installation of new pavement and dropped kerbs with tactile paving.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



3.3

It is instructive to note that in addition to permission 532/APP/2014/2161, permissions were
also granted (references 532/APP/2014/2163 and 532/APP/2014/2160) on 24/02/2015 for
the installation of 42 additional parking spaces and 15 additional spaces elsewhere in the
Campus respectively.

Relevant Planning History

532/APP/2014/2161 Brunel University Kingston Lane Hillingdon

Installation of 52 additional parking spaces

Decision: 27-11-2014  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

532/APP/2014/2161 - Installation of 52 additional parking spaces
Decision: Approved on 24/02/2015.

532/APP/2014/2163 - Installation of 42 additional parking spaces (originally submitted as 56
spaces but amended throughout the course of the application).
Decision: Approved on 24/02/2015.

532/APP/2014/2160 - Installation of 15 additional parking spaces.
Decision: Approved on 24/02/2015.

An outline planning permission for the development of the Campus (reference
532/APP/2002/2237), granted in April 2004, allowed for a total provision of 2,598 car
parking spaces. However, a Travel Plan forms part of the approved application
documentation and required the level of car parking to be reduced to 2,088 spaces across
the Campus by the end of the 2012.

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1

Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

Part 2 Policies:
AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016

PART 1

- MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 56



BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

OoL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

PR22 Brunel University

LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

3 neighbouring properties (1 & 1A Church Road and 15 Cleveland Road), the Cleveland Road
Residents Association, the Cleveland Neighbourhood Watch and the Environment Agency were
consulted by letter dated 22/02/2016, and a site notice was displayed in the area on 02/03/2016.

One letter of objection has been received from a neighbouring property, the contents of which are
summarised below:

- Concerned that the maximum number of 2088 parking spaces, which was imposed at the time of
the Campus expansion in 2004 would be exceeded, as subsequent large building developments
have led to significant increases in traffic levels in the area. Number of parking spaces should be
revised downwards to encourage other sustainable modes of transport.

Environment Agency - No comments to make.

Internal Consultees
Drainage Officer:

The proposal for some additional car parking spaces is acceptable. Plan I/P4A show the new car
parking bays are in flood zone 1. They have indicated they will be a Suds compliant grid system with
gravel infill. These are acceptable.

However the other proposals are shown to be partly within the floodplain and no information has
been submitted to show that these will be safe.

A Flood Risk Assessment was submitted as a technical note on the original application by Arup
Dated June 5th 2014. The FRA states that the site is already signed up for the EA flood warnings.
Section 8 called Proposed Flood management plan states "The additional flood risk associated with
new car park spaces will therefore need to be added to the Brunel University site wide Flood
Management Plan." A copy of this management plan should be submitted to the Council to
demonstrate that the risk to these spaces and their occupants will be managed appropriately

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



additional spaces in the floodplain can be considered. The River Pinn responds rapidly to rain and so
the warning time is limited for any action to be taken to remove cars from this area.

Plan I/P4B show an intensification of parking bays in flood Zone 2 and in an area shown as being at
risk of surface water flooding on the Environment Agency mapping. There is also indicated two
charging bays for electric cars. These would either need to be designed to be used in flood water or
moved to the area marked on plan I/P4A which is out of the flood zone.

Plan 1/P4C show an intensification of parking bays closer to the water course which are in flood zone
2 and at risk of surface water flooding.

Plan 1/P4D shows an intensification of parking bays adjacent to the water course in flood zone 2 in
an area shown to be at risk of surface water flooding.

CASE OFFICER COMMENTS:

The comments and objection of the Drainage Officer in relation to the siting of parking spaces in the
natural floodplain (Flood Zone 2) is noted. However, it is instructive to note that permission
532/APP/2014/2161 permits the provision of parking spaces in the floodplain, and the proposed
reduction of spaces in this application is such that one of the approved spaces in the floodplain
would be removed. As such, refusal of permission for the proposed variation would not be justified
on such grounds. Furthermore, the FRA submitted with that application was considered acceptable
and a condition was imposed with the permission requiring the incorporation of sustainable urban
drainage, and the submission, approval and installation/permanent retention of related details. Given
that this application proposes a variation to the approved layout of the parking spaces, and the
applicants have not yet discharged the related condition, it is considered expedient to impose the
same condition to this decision. In relation to the concern regarding the electric charging points - this
can be addressed under the requirements of suggested Condition 4.

Highways Officer:

The variation seeks/results in a decrease in the approved car parking provision of 52 spaces to 49
spaces. No objections on highway grounds.

Trees Officer:

This application seeks minor amendments of plans approved under application ref. 2014/2161 on 17
July 2014 (my previous comments made 17 July 2014). The amendments include the provision of
disabled parking spaces and take into account existing services manholes.

No objection subject to the imposition of a suitable condition in respect of the submission and
approval of a landscape scheme (Condition code COM9).

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of the installation of the approved 52 additional parking spaces within the
Brunel Campus has already been considered acceptable with permission
532/APP/2014/2161, and when considered against Policies AM2, AM7 and AM14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy 6.13 of
The London Plan.

The provision of the car parking spaces forms part of the overall allocation of car parking
spaces on this site and their presence is considered not to be detrimental to the openness

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

of this Major Developed Site in the Green Belt. This application proposal, which proposes a
variation to that permission is therefore considered acceptable in principle.
Density of the proposed development

Not applicable, as the application does not incorporate a residential development.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is not located within any Archaeological Priority Zone, Conservation Area or Area
of Special Local Character. The site does not comprise any statutorily or locally listed
buildings, so there are no adjacent or host heritage assets that would be adversely
impacted on.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Policies OL1 and OL5 of the Local Plan (Part Two) are relevant to this development given
that Brunel University Campus is a Major Developed Site within the Green Belt. These
policies will only allow proposals which are not detrimental to the visual amenities of the
Green Belt. It is considered that measures such as the use of Grasscrete or similar
product and the siting of the car parking spaces adjacent to a wide and mature landscaping
belt serves to protect the visual amenities of the Green Belt, and in the overall context of
this Major Developed Site and is in accordance with Policies OL1 and OL5 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (Novemeber 2012).

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

It was proposed with application/permission 532/APP/2014/2161 that the use of materials
such as Grasscrete or similar products would be used in the surfacing of the parking
spaces. Those materials were considered acceptable, and given that the same materials,
as well as the use of tactile permeable paving is also proposed, it is considered that the
materials and the complementary soft landscaping are appropriate, and would protect the
visual amenities of the Green Belt, and maintain the character and appearance of the area.
It is thus considered that the proposed car parking spaces would not adversely affect the
visual amenities and openness of Green Belt land in the overall context of this Major
Developed Site, and is in accordance with the relevant policies of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part One (Strategic Policies) and Part Two (Saved UDP Policies) (November 2012).
Impact on neighbours

It is considered that the proposed revision to the layout of the approved parking spaces and
resultant reduction of spaces from 52 to 49 spaces are such that the proposal would not
generate any adverse impacts in respect of the residential amenity of neighbouring
residential occupiers.

In this regard, it is considered that there is an adequate separation distance between the
car parking spaces and any nearby residential properties. Furthermore, tree screening
along the perimeter of Brunel University Campus serves to protect the residential amenity
of adjoining residential occupiers.

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable, as the application does not incorporate a residential development.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The objection from the adjacent neighbour in respect of traffic pressures in the area and
revising the maximum number of parking spaces on the campus downwards is noted.

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



711

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Local Plan specifies that new development will
only be permitted where it is in accordance with the Council's adopted Car Parking
Standards.

Permission 532/APP/2014/2014/2161 permitted the provision of 52 parking spaces, given
that existing spaces were lost as a result of the construction of the BCAST Science Park.
With the provision of all 113 spaces lost as a result of the Science Park, it was considered
as part of that permission that the overall parking provision will still be under the total travel
plan target of 2088 spaces set in 2004. This application proposal would result in a further
reduction of the approved spaces by 3 spaces, and the Highways Officer has not raised
any objection in this regard.

The proposed revisions to the layout of the car park have been considered acceptable by
both the Highways and Trees Officers, and it does not constitute an unacceptable design,
which would otherwise have adversely impacted on the amenity of the area.

As such, it is considered that the proposal would not result in any detrimental impact on the
surrounding local road network, or have any adverse impact on highway and/or pedestrian
safety. This addresses the objection from the neighbour.

Urban design, access and security

The design aspect of the proposal for the revised layout of the approved car parking
spaces has been addressed in sections of this report above.
Disabled access

Disabled access has been provided throughout the parking provision of the Brunel
University Campus. This is considered consistent with the details approved under the
outline planning permission for the Brunel University Campus.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable, as the application does not incorporate a residential development.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of merit and the
provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

The Landscape Officer has not expressed any objection to the proposed minor alterations
to the car parking spaces, and has recommended the imposition of a suitable condition in
respect of securing the retention of existing planting and/or replacement planting, to ensure
that the proposal preserves and enhances the character and local distinctiveness of the
surrounding natural and built environment.

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Part of the wider Brunel University Campus falls within Environment Agency Flood Zone 2
due to its proximity to the River Pinn. The applicant had previously submitted a Flood Risk
Assessment (FRA) with approved application 532/APP/2014/2161. The technical notes in
the FRA submitted with that approved application adequately considered the control of
surface water on site by using grasscrete or other such material, which would be
permeable. Furthermore consideration of the risks should the access flood, have also been

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

considered and are proposed to be controlled through an emergency plan implemented by
the University. Given that this application proposal incorporates the reduction of the
approved spaces by 3 (including 1 in the floodplain), it is considered that the proposal
would not have any adverse implications for localised flood risk, subject to the imposition of
a suitable condition.

Concern regarding the electric charging points can be addressed under the requirements
of suggested Condition 4.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

The reduction of the number of parking spaces provided and the nature of their use are
such that the proposal would not result in any worsening trip generations over and above
what is presently experienced on the site, and as such, there would be no adverse
implications for noise and/or air quality issues.

Comments on Public Consultations

The representation received from an adjacent neighbouring resident has been addressed
within the main body of this application report.
Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

This application proposes minor alterations to the layout of the approved parking spaces,
and would result in a reduction of the number of the approved spaces from 52 to 49. The
proposed alterations incorporate the provision of 4 disabled parking spaces, set-back of
spaces from a new pavement to avoid conflict with existing manhole services, removal of
foliage and installation of tree protection measures, retention and installation of
existing/new lamp-posts, installation of SUDS complaint grid system with gravel infill and
installation of new pavement and dropped kerbs with tactile paving.

The principle of the provision of additional parking spaces in the related car park location as
well as in the floodplain (Flood Zone 2) has already been considered acceptable with
permission 532/APP/2014/2161, and subject to the inclusion of an appropriate landscaping
condition, it is considered that the revisions to the layout of the car park and spaces would
not detract from the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding natural and built
environment, which lie within the Green Belt. Furthermore the proposals are considered
acceptable on flooding/drainage grounds and would not have any adverse impact upon
neighbouring residential amenity.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (March 2015)

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon

Contact Officer: Victor Unuigbe Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



L1

Cooling Tower

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

2

N2 2NN

=0

L
W

0

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale: ¢
532/APP/2016/210 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH

. . OF HILLINGDON
Brunel University Residents Services

Kingston Lane Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Central & SoGftye 64 May 2016

LONDON




Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address BRUNEL UNIVERSITY KINGSTON LANE HILLINGDON

Development: Variation of condition 2 (Submitted Plans) of planning permission Ref:
532/APP/2014/2163 dated 24/02/2015 to alter the parking layout (Installation «
42 additional parking spaces)

LBH Ref Nos: 532/APP/2016/211

Drawing Nos: 6604.213D
6604.212C
6604.209C
Date Plans Received: 19/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

Date Application Valid: 15/02/2016
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks a variation of Condition No. 2 (Submitted Plans) of planning
permission reference 532/APP/2014/2163, which was granted on 24/02/2015 for the
installation of 42 additional parking spaces. The requirement for additional parking spaces
with permission 532/APP/2014/2163 was identified as a result of the loss of 111 parking
spaces arising from the proposal to construct a BCAST Science Park facility in the south-
west corner of the site, which houses the Brunel University campus.

This application proposes minor alterations to the layout of the approved parking spaces,
and would result in a reduction of the number of the approved spaces from 42 to 37. The
proposed alterations incorporate the provision and marking of 4 disabled parking spaces,
relocation of an existing exit to a previous entrance location, re-instating of a car park
entrance, use of recessed white bricks to mark new spaces, extension of pathway with
dropped kerb and tactile paving, provision of tree protection measures and re-turfing of
removed hardstanding in areas outside of some parking bays.

The principle of the provision of additional parking spaces in the related car park location
as well as in the floodplain (Flood Zone 2) has already been considered acceptable with
permission 532/APP/2014/2163, and subject to the inclusion of an appropriate
landscaping condition, it is considered that the revisions to the layout of the car park and
spaces would not detract from the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding
natural and built environment, which lie within the Green Belt. Furthermore the proposals
are considered acceptable on flooding/drainage grounds and would not have any adverse
impact upon neighbouring residential amenity.

Accordingly, the application is recommended for approval.
2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 6604.209C and
6604.213D, and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and The London Plan (2015).

3 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100)

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Hard Surfacing Materials

2.b External Lighting

2.c Other structures

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 5% of all parking spaces are served
by electrical charging points)

2.e Car Parking provision for wheelchair users (a minimum of 10% of the spaces should
be shown to be available)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies BE13, BE38,
AM13 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

4 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, no development shall take place on site until details
of the incorporation of sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set out
in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan, have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and
thereafter permanently retained and maintained.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policies EM6 and OE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Policy 5.12 of The London Plan (2015).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management
OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt
PR22 Brunel University
LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



4 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site forms part of the wider Brunel University Campus (off Kingston Lane)
and is occupied by an unsurfaced area of open land between the St John's Building and the
Eastern Gateway, bounded to the east by Kingston Lane and to the west by the Brunel
estate road. The area is currently used for (unmarked) overflow parking, which extends into
the area to the east. This is bounded to the south with a grass verge with some tree
planting. There is also some vegetation and screening to the northern and eastern
boundaries.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks a variation of Condition No. 2 (Submitted Plans) of planning
permission reference 532/APP/2014/2163, which was granted on 24/02/2015 for the
installation of 42 additional parking spaces. The requirement for additional parking spaces
with permission 532/APP/2014/2161 was identified as a result of the loss of 111 parking
spaces arising from the proposal to construct a BCAST facility in the south-west corner of
the site, which houses the Brunel University campus.

This application proposes minor alterations to the layout of the approved parking spaces,
and would result in a reduction of the number of the approved spaces from 42 to 37. The
proposed alterations incorporate the provision and marking of 4 disabled parking spaces,
relocation of an existing exit to a previous entrance location, re-instating of a car park
entrance, use of recessed white bricks to mark new spaces, extension of pathway with
dropped kerb and tactile paving, provision of tree protection measures and re-turfing of
removed hardstanding in areas outside of some parking bays.

It is instructive to note that in addition to permission 532/APP/2014/2163, permissions were
also granted (references 532/APP/2014/2161 and 532/APP/2014/2160) on 24/02/2015 for
the installation of 52 additional parking spaces and 15 additional spaces elsewhere in the
Campus respectively.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

532/APP/2014/2163 Brunel University Kingston Lane Hillingdon

Installation of 42 additional parking spaces

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



Decision: 27-11-2014  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

532/APP/2014/2163 - Installation of 42 additional parking spaces (originally submitted as 56
spaces but amended throughout the course of the application).
Decision: Approved on 24/02/2015.

532/APP/2014/2161 - Installation of 52 additional parking spaces
Decision: Approved on 24/02/2015.

532/APP/2014/2160 - Installation of 15 additional parking spaces.
Decision: Approved on 24/02/2015.

An outline planning permission for the development of the Campus (reference
532/APP/2002/2237), granted in April 2004, allowed for a total provision of 2,598 car
parking spaces. However, a Travel Plan forms part of the approved application
documentation and required the level of car parking to be reduced to 2,088 spaces across
the Campus by the end of the 2012.

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1

Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

Part 2 Policies:

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

OoL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016

PART 1

- MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 69



OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

PR22 Brunel University

LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

7 neighbouring properties (30, 31, 32, 33, 34 & 35 Turnpike Lane and 15 Cleveland Road), the
Cleveland Road Residents Association, the Cleveland Neighbourhood Watch and the Environment
Agency were consulted by letter dated 22/02/2016, and a site notice was displayed in the area on
02/03/2016.

One letter of objection has been received from a neighbouring property who is concerned that the
maximum number of 2088 parking spaces, which was imposed at the time of the Campus
expansion in 2004 would be exceeded, as subsequent large building developments have led to
significant increases in traffic levels in the area. Number of parking spaces should be revised
downwards to encourage other sustainable modes of transport.

Environment Agency - No comments to make.

Internal Consultees
Drainage Officer:

The proposed site for some of the parking spaces as shown on the amended plan indicates that two
of the spaces lie partly in Flood Zone 3 and Flood Zone 2.

Additional spaces within the floodplain should not be encouraged in addition to those already in
place. It is not shown how the risks to these spaces will be managed, therefore increasing risk to the
occupants and their property.

A condition of permission 532/APP/2014/2163 requested a Flood Management Plan to be
implemented. A copy of this plan should be provided before considering any further applications for
additional car parking within the floodplain.

CASE OFFICER COMMENTS:

The comments and objection of the Drainage Officer in relation to the siting of parking spaces in the
natural floodplain (Flood Zone 2) is noted. However, it is instructive to note that permission
532/APP/2014/2163 permits the provision of parking spaces in the floodplain, and the proposed
reduction of spaces in this application is such that three of the approved spaces in the floodplain
would be removed. As such, refusal of permission for the proposed variation would not be justified
on such grounds. Furthermore, the FRA submitted with that application was considered acceptable
and a condition was imposed with the permission requiring the incorporation of sustainable urban
drainage, and the submission, approval and installation/permanent retention of related details. Given
that this application proposes a variation to the approved layout of the parking spaces, and the

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



applicants have not yet discharged the related condition, it is considered expedient to impose the
same condition to this decision.

Highways Officer:

42 car parking were approved. The variation seeks to reduce them to 37. No objections are raised
on highway grounds.

Trees Officer:

This application involves minor amendments to the plans approved under application reference
2014/2163, on 25 June 2014. No objection subject to the imposition of a suitable condition in respect
of the submission and approval of a landscape scheme (Condition code COM9).

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of the installation of the approved 42 additional parking spaces within the
Brunel Campus has already been considered acceptable with permission
532/APP/2014/2163, and when considered against Policies AM2, AM7 and AM14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy 6.13 of
The London Plan (2015).

The provision of the car parking spaces forms part of the overall allocation of car parking
spaces on this site and their presence is considered not to be detrimental to the openness
of this Major Developed Site in the Green Belt. This application proposal, which proposes a
variation to that permission is therefore considered acceptable in principle.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable, as the application does not incorporate a residential development.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is not located within any Archaeological Priority Zone, Conservation Area or Area
of Special Local Character. The site does not comprise any statutorily or locally listed
buildings, so there are no adjacent or host heritage assets that would be adversely
impacted on.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Policies OL1 and OL5 of the Local Plan (Part Two) are relevant to this development given
that Brunel University Campus is a Major Developed Site within the Green Belt. These
policies will only allow proposals which are not detrimental to the visual amenities of the
Green Belt. It is considered that measures such as the use of Grasscrete or similar
product and the siting of the car parking spaces adjacent to a wide and mature landscaping
belt serves to protect the visual amenities of the Green Belt, and in the overall context of
this Major Developed Site and is in accordance with Policies OL1 and OL5 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

It was proposed with application/permission 532/APP/2014/2163 that the use of materials
such as Grasscrete or similar products would be used in the surfacing of the parking
spaces. Those materials were considered acceptable, and given that the same materials,
as well as the use of tactile permeable paving is also proposed, it is therefore considered
that the materials and the complementary soft landscaping are appropriate, and would
protect the visual amenities of the Green Belt, and maintain the character and appearance

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



of the area. It is thus considered that the proposed car parking spaces would not adversely

affect the visual amenities and openness of Green Belt land in the overall context of this

Major Developed Site, and is in accordance with the relevant policies of the Hillingdon Local

Plan: Part One (Strategic Policies) and Part Two (Saved UDP Policies) (November 2012).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

It is considered that the proposed car parking spaces would not generate any adverse
impact in respect of the residential amenity of adjoining residential occupiers. In this regard
it is considered that there is an adequate separation distance between the car parking
spaces and the residential properties on Cleveland Road. Furthermore, tree screening
along the perimeter of Brunel University Campus serves to protect the residential amenity
of adjoining residential occupiers.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable, as the application does not incorporate a residential development.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The objection from the adjacent neighbour in respect of traffic pressures in the area and
revising the maximum number of parking spaces on the campus downwards is noted.

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Local Plan specifies that new development will
only be permitted where it is in accordance with the Council's adopted Car Parking
Standards.

Permission 532/APP/2014/2014/2163 permitted the provision of 42 parking spaces, given
that existing spaces were lost as a result of the construction of the BCAST Science Park.
With the provision of all 113 spaces lost as a result of the Science Park, it was considered
as part of that permission that the overall parking provision will still be under the total travel
plan target of 2088 spaces set in 2004. This application proposal would result in a further
reduction of the approved spaces by 5 spaces, and the Highways Officer has not raised
any objection in this regard.

The proposed revisions to the layout of the car park have been considered acceptable by
both the Highways and Trees Officers, and it does not constitute an unacceptable design,
which would otherwise have adversely impacted on the amenity of the area.

As such, it is considered that the proposal would not result in any detrimental impact on the
surrounding local road network, or have any adverse impact on highway and/or pedestrian
safety. This addresses the objection from the neighbour.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

The design aspect of the proposal for the revised layout of the approved car parking
spaces has been addressed in sections of this report above.
7.12 Disabled access

Disabled access has been provided throughout the parking provision of the Brunel
University Campus. This is considered consistent with the details approved under the
outline planning permission for the Brunel University Campus.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable, as the application does not incorporate a residential development.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Saved Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

(November 2012) seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate.

The site is occupied by an unsurfaced area of open land between the St John's Building
and the Eastern Gateway, bounded to the east by Kingston Lane and to the west by the
Brunel estate road. The area is currently used for (unmarked out) overflow parking. The
Landscape Officer has not expressed any objection to the proposed minor alterations to
the car parking spaces, and has recommended the imposition of a suitable condition in
respect of securing the retention of existing planting and/or replacement planting, to ensure
that the proposal preserves and enhances the character and local distinctiveness of the
surrounding natural and built environment.

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Part of the wider Brunel University Campus falls within Environment Agency Flood Zone 2
due to its proximity to the River Pinn. The applicant had previously submitted a Flood Risk
Assessment (FRA) with approved application 532/APP/2014/2163. The technical notes in
the FRA submitted with that approved application adequately considered the control of
surface water on site by using grasscrete material, which is permeable. Furthermore,
consideration of the risks should the access flood, have also been considered and are
proposed to be controlled through an emergency plan implemented by the University. Given
that this application proposal incorporates the reduction of the approved spaces by 5
spaces (including 3 in the floodplain), it is considered that the proposal would not have any
adverse implications for localised flood risk, subject to the imposition of a suitable
condition.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

The reduction of the number of parking spaces provided and the nature of their use are
such that the proposal would not result in any worsening trip generations over and above
what is presently experienced on the site, and as such, there would be no adverse
implications for noise and/or air quality issues.

Comments on Public Consultations

The representation received from an adjacent neighbouring resident has been addressed
within the main body of this application report.
Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



This application proposes minor alterations to the layout of the approved parking spaces,
and would result in a reduction of the number of the approved spaces from 42 to 37. The
proposed alterations incorporate the provision and marking of 4 disabled parking spaces,
relocation of an existing exit to a previous entrance location, re-instating of a car park
entrance, use of recessed white bricks to mark new spaces, extension of pathway with
dropped kerb and tactile paving, provision of tree protection measures and re-turfing of
removed hardstanding in areas outside of some parking bays.

The principle of the provision of additional parking spaces in the related car park location as
well as in the floodplain (Flood Zone 2) has already been considered acceptable with
permission 532/APP/2014/2163, and subject to the inclusion of an appropriate landscaping
condition, it is considered that the revisions to the layout of the car park and spaces would
not detract from the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding natural and built
environment, which lie within the Green Belt. Furthermore the proposals are considered
acceptable on flooding/drainage grounds and would not have any adverse impact upon
neighbouring residential amenity.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (March 2015)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon

Contact Officer: Victor Unuigbe Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



L1

Cooling Tower

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

2

N2 2NN

=0

L
W

0

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale: ¢
532/APP/2016/211 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH

. . OF HILLINGDON
Brunel University Residents Services

Kingston Lane Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Central & SoGfi9e 76 May 2016

LONDON




Agenda ltem 11

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address HAYES FOOTBALL CLUB YARD KINGSHILL AVENUE HAYES
Development: Erection of two linked portacabins for use as a day nursery

LBH Ref Nos: 29439/APP/2016/322

Drawing Nos: 4871-2
4871-3
4871-1B
Design & Access Statement

Date Plans Received: 26/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 15/02/2016
1. SUMMARY

This application sought planning permission for the erection of two linked portacabins to
the rear of Hayes, Football Club Yard, Kingshill Avenue.

The proposed portacabins would be sited to the rear of the existing building on site, and
would not appear visible to the surrounding area or street scene. The structure would be
single storey in height and would appear intimate in scale and mass.

On balance, the proposal is considered to have provided sufficient information to establish
the very special circumstances required to justify development within the Green belt and
will have an acceptable impact upon the visual amenity of the application site and the
character of the surrounding area.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2 COomM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 4871-2 and 4871-3
and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 COm7 Materials (Submission)
No development shall take place until details of all materials and external finishes have

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development

OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,

Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

This applications is located on the northern side of Kingshill Avenue, Hayes and seeks the
erection of two linked portacabins to the rear of two existing building erected at Hayes
Football Club Yard.

Both of the existing buildings are set considerably far back from the surrounding street, and
the belt of trees and landscaping which borders the application site results in the existing
buildings not appearing overly dominant within the surrounding character area. The existing
clubhouse at the application site has been extended previously to allow the incorporation of
the Youth Centre.

The site lies within the Green Belt as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the erection of two linked portacabins for use as a day nursery. The
resultant structure measures 13.1m in width, 8.1m in depth and 3m in height.

The nursery would accommodate a maximum of 35 children and would be open between
8am to 4pm on weekdays during normal term times.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

29439/APP/2009/1770 Brook House Football Club Kingshill Avenue Hayes

Details in compliance with conditions 3 (materials), 4 (cycle storage), 5 (landscape scheme), 7
(landscape maintenance), 11 (disabled parking), 12 (sustainable urban drainage), 14 (travel pla
and 17 (youth centre management plan) of planning permission ref.29439/APP/2009/411 dated
28/05/2009: Alterations and extension to existing football clubhouse to provide new youth centre
facilities.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



Decision: 04-07-2012  Approved

29439/APP/2009/2068 Brook House Football Club Kingshill Avenue Hayes

Details in compliance with conditions 8 (site survey) and 10 (tree protection) of planning
permission ref. 29439/APP/2009/411 dated 28 May 2009: Alterations and extension to existing
football clubhouse to provide new youth centre facilities.

Decision: 24-06-2011 NFA

29439/APP/2009/411 Brook House Football Club Kingshill Avenue Hayes

Alterations and extension to existing football clubhouse to provide new youth centre facilities.

Decision: 12-05-2009  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

29439/APP/2009/1770 - Details in compliance with conditions (approved)
29439/APP/2009/411 - Alterations and extension to the clubhouse (approved)

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

4 neighbouring properties were consulted with an expiry date of 9 March. No response was received
from the neighbouring properties.

A second site notice has been displayed and this expires on 29 April 2016.

Internal Consultees
Trees/Landscaping - No objections

Highways - The site has a low PTAL (1b) indicative of high car use. The proposal should include a
transport assessment report considereing traffic generation from the proposed nursery and the
cumulative assessment with the Youth Club and Football Club. The proposed provision of 12 car
park spaces should be justified and a layout plan provided. Additional information was supplied and
the Highways Officer confirmed that he raises no objection, given that the large Football Club car
park will be available for use by parents.

Officer response: The Agent has provided details within the Design and Access Statement and
confirms that the nursery would operate between 8.00 am and 4.00 pm every weekday during term
time. The existing car park is spacious and used principally by the football supporters at the
weekends and public holidays, entirely free of traffic during the opening hours of the nursery. Also a
large proportion of children would arrive on foot from the nearby housing areas and car parking
demand would therefore be small. Since the Youth Club and Football Club operate exclusively during
the evenings and weekends there would be no effect on the small volume of traffic associated with
the nursery.

Access Officer - No response

Flood and Water Management - The site is in flood zone 1 but sits in between two water courses
and part of the wider site lies in flood zone 2. There are no objections as the new units are raised
slightly above ground level which will provide some protection.

Green Spaces Division - No response

Hillingdon Families' Information Service - We do have a shortage of childcare places in this area. In
particular there are a lack of spaces to meet the local authority's statutory duty to provide free
childcare for disadvantaged two year olds. 79 two year olds living in this area are eligible but there
are only 22 places available, meaning that there are not sufficient places for 57 two year olds. There
is also a shortfall in neighbouring wards.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development
The National Planning Policy Framework states that the essential characteristics of Green

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Belts are their openness and their permanence. Therefore, the provision of new buildings in
the Green Belt is inappropriate except in very special circumstances. These can include
limited infilling or partial redevelopment of previously developed sites. This is an existing
developed site, which is currently used as a football club and a youth club for the local
community.

The proposed development is to provide a children's nursery school in an area identified in
need of additional nursery school provision. The applicant states that they have tried
without success to find an alternative suitable location within the Barnhill Estate. This site
already provides certain community facilities and is within convenient walking distance of
the catchment area.

Although there are existing buildings on the site, the applicant states that these are not
suitable to provide an adequately safe environment for young children, which would comply
with Ofsted requirements. This includes toilet facilities, storage requirements and direct
access from the only available room to outside, meaning they could not provide a free flow
environment.

The proposed development is relatively small in scale in the context of the wider site. It will
fit discretely behind the existing buildings, out of site of the road and in an area currently
occupied by some storage containers which will be removed. Given the backdrop of the
structure against the other buildings within a site enclosed within well established
hedgerows, it is not considered the proposal would significantly increase of the built up
appearance of the site or harm the visual amenity of the Green Belt.

On balance: it is considered that the combination of the lack of appropriate alternative sites
in the local area; the inability to accommodate the use in the existing building due to a lack
of facilities; and the identified need for childcare provision in this area, taken together
demonstrate sufficient very special circumstances to allow for this development in the
Green Belt.

Density of the proposed development

This is not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

This is not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

This is not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

The proposal would involve installation of a portacabin within an established Youth Club
and Football Club. The proposed structure will be set to the rear of the existing buildings
and will not be visible from outside of the site and the wider Green Belt. Policy OL4 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks to ensure
that any development is not disproportionate, does not injure the visual amenities of the
Greenbelt and does not create a 'built-up appearance'. Therefore the proposal is
considered acceptable.

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design.

The proposed portacabin structure is relatively modest in scale and will be finished in

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



7.08

7.09

7.10

711

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

natural colours, details of which could be conditioned to ensure it would harmonise with
surrounding area.

Portacabins are normally associated with temporary structures and therefore would only
normally be allowed for a temporary period give their poor visual appearance. However in
this instance, in addition to the finish being controlled by condition, the proposed
development would be adequately screened by the existing planting and would not be
unduly prominent or visible to the wider area.

On balance therefore it is considered that the proposed development would not detract
from the visual amenities of the street scene and character and appearance of the area in
accordance with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -Strategic Policies
(November 2012) and Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Impact on neighbours

Policies BE19, BE20 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seek to ensure that the amenities of adjoining occupiers are protected in
new developments.

The siting of the proposed development would ensure it would be located a considerable
distance away from the neighbouring residential properties and would not be visible from
outside of the application site. It is considered that the proposed development would not
impact on the amenities of the adjoining occupiers in terms of visual intrusion, overlooking,
loss of daylight or loss of sunlight in accordance with Policies BE19, BE20 and BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Living conditions for future occupiers

This is not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Highways initially raised concerns over the potential cumulative increase in traffic to the
site. However it is noted that the use of the proposed nursery would not take place at the
same times as the use of the site for the Youth Club or the Football Club, as the nursery
will operate during the day in term times, whilst the other uses are primarily during the
evenings, weekends and holiday periods. Therefore it is not considered that there would be
any significant cumulative increase on the existing use of the site and thus would not
impact upon parking provision, traffic or pedestrian safety in accordance with Policy AM7
and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
Urban design, access and security

Not relevant to this application.
Disabled access

Ramped entrances suitable for disabled access over level thresholds would be installed to
the front and rear of the building. The Access Officer has not submitted any objection to the
proposal.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not relevant to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

No trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected by the proposal.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not applicable to this application
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application
Comments on Public Consultations

Not applicable to this application
Planning obligations

Not relevant to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not relevant to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons outlined above and given that the development complies with the
aforementioned policies of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies November 2012), this application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012).
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2.

The London Plan.

Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.
National Planning Policy Framework.

Contact Officer: Liz Arnold Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



rosvenor Playing Field

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Hayes Football Club Yard

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
29439/APP/2016/322 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & SoGft9e 86 May 2016

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

TLLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 12

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 1 SALCOMBE WAY HAYES
Development: Erection of a lean-to structure (Retrospective)

LBH Ref Nos: 48976/APP/2016/520

Drawing Nos: Proposed Front and Rear Elevations
Proposed Floor Plan
Proposed Side Elevation
Supporting Photographs
Block Plan (1:500) Received 23-03-2016
Location Plan (1:1250) Received 23-03-2016

Date Plans Received: 09/02/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 24/02/2016
Date Application Valid: 23/03/2016

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1  Site and Locality

The application property comprises of a modest two storey end terraced dwelling located
on the south western side of Salcombe Way which lies within the Developed Area as
identified within the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). A
Council owned footway runs between the side boundary of the application site and the flank
wall of the adjacent property, 50 Portland Road, leading to the rear gardens of the terrace in
Portland Road. The timber lean-to providing bin, bicycle and general storage, which is the
subject of this retrospective application, has been built between the flank wall of the
application property and the footway.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks retrospective planning permission for the erection of a lean-to
structure. The lean-to structure is constructed of timber with a felt roof. The maximum
height of the roof is 2.42m and the maximum width is 1.37m. The lean-to structure has
locked doors which would open over the adjacent footway and is used for general storage,
bicycle storage and bin storage.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Planning History

There is no planning history of relevance to this application.
2. Advertisement and Site Notice

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



12 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 3.3.16 and a site notice was
displayed to the front of the site which expired on 4.4.16. No response received.

Ward Councillor: Requests that the application is reported to committee for consideration.

Housing Services: No objection subject to a condition requiring the doors to remain shut
and locked when not in use.

Tree and Landscape Officer: No objection

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new

planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments
5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main considerations are the design and impact on the character of the existing
property, the impact upon the streetscene and locality and the impact upon the amenities
of adjoining occupiers.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Furthermore policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) resist any development
which would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the
design of existing and adjoining sites.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



The Council's HDAS states requires side extensions to not exceed two thirds the width of
the original dwelling. They should not also exceed 3.4m in height. This is to ensure that the
extension appears subordinate to the main house.

Both in terms of its height and width, the lean-to accords with the above criteria and
therefore would appear subordinate to the main property. Whilst the materials do not match
those on the original dwelling, given its scale and being discrete in its siting with the three
storey wall of the adjacent building providing a good screen from a number of public
viewpoints locally, it is considered that it does not have a negative impact upon the visual
amenity of the site or the surrounding area in compliance with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and policies BE13 and BE15 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Given that the flank wall of the adjacent building is blank, the lean-to does not harm the
amenity of nearby residents through loss of daylight. Therefore, it is considered that the
proposed development would not constitute an un-neighbourly form of development in
compliance with Policies BE19, BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The bicycle store and bin store both have doors opening over the adjacent footpath which
leads to the rear gardens of the adjacent dwellings. This footpath is Council owned and
notice has been served in respect of this encroachment. The doors are currently locked by
way of padlocks. The Council's Housing Services Department has raised no objection to
the proposal subject to a condition requiring the doors to this structure being closed and
locked when not in use to avoid any obstruction of this footway.

The parking provision would remain unaffected by the proposal.

The application is recommended for approval.

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall not be retained out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, Proposed Floor Plan,
Proposed Side Elevation and Proposed front and Rear Elevations.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

2 NONSC Non Standard Condition
The door to the bicycle and bin store, shall remain closed and locked when not in use.

REASON

To ensure that there is no obstruction of the adjacent footpath and to avoid any conflict
with use by pedestrians in accordance with Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



INFORMATIVES

1 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2015). On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Part 1 Policies:
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision

of new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



3 You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any
deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local
Planning Authority.

4 You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
development that results in any form of encroachment.

5 Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at
any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved
are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7 The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
- carry out work to an existing party wall;
- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining

building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls.
The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by
the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1TUW.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



8 Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission
does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the
specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
should consult a solicitor.

9 Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours
of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public
health nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek
prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate
any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
adjoining premises.

10 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take
appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in
action being taken under the Highways Act.

11 To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
insulation.

12 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made
good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



”.-"Rising Bolla|
g
,

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

1 Salcombe Way

Hayes

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref:
48976/APP/2016/520

Scale:

1:1,000

Planning Committee:

Central & Soh@we 94

Date:
May 2016

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

ILORNS
TLLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 13

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 49 CENTRAL AVENUE HAYES

Development: Change of use from a 6 person house in multiple occupation (Use Class C4)
to a 10 person house in multiple occupation (Sui Generis)

LBH Ref Nos: 38444/APP/2016/744

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statement
49CA-HMO-1 Rev 1.C
HMO Management Supervision Plar
49CA-HMO-3 Rev 1.C
49CA-HMO-2 Rev 1.C

Date Plans Received: 23/02/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 26/02/2016
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for a change of use from from a 6 person
house in multiple occupation (Use Class C4) to a 10 person house in multiple occupation
(Sui Generis). The proposal is not considered to detract from the character and
appearance of the Central Avenue Area of Special Local Character (ASLC) and, subject to
the imposition of conditions to secure compliance with the submitted Management Plan,
would not result in an unacceptable loss of residential amenity to occupants of
neighbouring dwellings. The proposal does not raise any highway safety concerns and it
therefore recommended for approval.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plan and document, number 49CA-
HMO-3 Rev 1.0 and HMO Management Supervision Plan received 22.2.16

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The development shall not be occupied until the proposed cycle parking as shown on the
proposed site plan, Drawing No. 49CA-HMO-3 Rev 1.0 has been provided. Thereafter, the
proposed cycle parking provision shall be maintained and retained at all times for the

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



occupants of the site.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of secure cycle storage provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM9 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan . (July 2011).

4 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the physical works and
management arrangements are completed/in place in accordance with the specified
supporting plans and/or documents:

(i) HMO Management Procedure (HMO Management Supervision Plan received 22.2.16)
(ii) Parking Arrangements (as set out within plan no: 49CA-HMO-3 Rev 1.0)

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies AM14, OE1 and
BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices
(November 2012) and Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2015).

5 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Landscape Maintenance

2.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

2.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

3. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policies BE13 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)
The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

H2 Restrictions on changes of use of residential properties

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,

Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:
The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

5 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing
the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory
booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Residents Services
Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

6 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:20009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality
The application site is located on the west side of Central Avenue and is occupied by a two

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



storey end of terrace dwelling with a two storey side and single storey rear extension and
rear dormer extension. The site is situated within the Developed Area and Central Avenue
Area of Special Local Character (ASLC) as identified in the policies of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for a change of use from from a 6 person
house in multiple occupation (Use Class C4) to a 10 person house in multiple occupation
(Sui Generis). The submitted plans propose the following:

- 1 communal kitchen,

- 1 communal living/dining room,

- 2 shared shower-rooms with WC,

- 1 shared bathroom,

- 1 shared WC facility,

- 2 en-suite bedrooms

- 1 sheltered cycles storage (7 bicycles)
- soft landscaped front and rear garden
- front driveway for 4 cars

- 2 refuse storage bins

The size of the bedrooms proposed are as follows:

Bedroom 1 - 12.8m2
Bedroom 2 - 12.4m2
Bedroom 3 - 9.5m2
Bedroom 4 - 9.5m2
Bedroom 5 - 8.7m2
Bedroom 6 - 15.0m2
Bedroom 7 - 10.0m2

3.3 Relevant Planning History

38444/APP/2014/2222 49 Central Avenue Hayes

Erection of a single storey rear extension, which would extend beyond the rear wall of the origin
house by 6 metres, for which the maximum height would be 3.6 metres, and for which the heigh
of the eaves would be 3 metres

Decision: 04-08-2014 PRN

38444/APP/2015/1554 49 Central Avenue Hayes

Conversion of garage to habitable room involving alterations to rear elevation and replacement
window to front (Part Retrospective)

Decision: 30-06-2015  Approved

38444/APP/2015/166 49 Central Avenue Hayes

Conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include a rear dormer, 3 front rooflights and conver:
of roof from hip to gable end (Application for a Certificate of Lawful Development for a Proposec
Development)

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



Decision: 11-03-2015  Approved

38444/APP/2015/187 49 Central Avenue Hayes

Conversion of garage into habitable room with replacement window (Application for a Certificate
Lawful Development for an Existing Development)

Decision: 21-04-2015 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History
The following planning history is considered to be of relevance to this application:

38444/APP/2015/1554 - Conversion of garage to habitable room involving alterations to
rear elevation and replacement window to front (Part Retrospective) APPROVED

38444/APP/2015/187 - Conversion of garage into habitable room with replacement window
(Application for a Certificate of Lawful Development for an Existing Development) was
refused for the following reason:

The development does not constitute Lawful Development under Section 191 of Town and
Country Planning Act 1990, Section 191 as amended by Section 10 of the Planning and
Compensation Act 1991 as the Applicant has not demonstrated that, on the balance of
probability, the use has existed and been continuous for at least a period of four years, prior
to the date of this application and the development does not constitute permitted
development by virtue of the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 as condition 3 of 38444/APP/86/0678 for the original
development of the garage stated that the garage cannot be used other than for the parking
of private motor vehicles.

38444/APP/2015/166 - Conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include a rear dormer,
3 front rooflights and conversion of roof from hip to gable end (Application for a Certificate
of Lawful Development for a Proposed Development). APPROVED

38444/APP/2014/2222 - Erection of a single storey rear extension, which would extend
beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6 metres, for which the maximum height

would be 3.6 metres, and for which the height of the eaves would be 3 metres.
APPROVED.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



AM14

New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

H2 Restrictions on changes of use of residential properties

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

The Townfield Tenants Residents Association and 7 neighbouring properties were consulted by

letter dated 3.3.16 and a site notice was displayed to the front of the site which expired on 4.4.16

1 letter of objection has been received from the Hayes Village Conservation Area Panel raising
concerns about the extensions to this property which were carried out on the assumption that the
property was a single private dwellinghouse. The property should be retained as a larger single
private dwelling which are in demand in this area. HMO's detract from the character of the area,

often leading to parking problems.

The application has been called to committee for consideration by the Ward Councillor.

Internal Consultees

HMO Housing Officer: No objection
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development
Paragraph 2.8 of the SPG HMO 2004 advises that policies H2 and H3 seek to safeguard

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

existing housing in the borough. In this respect, it should be noted that the Council does not
consider the change of use of a HMO to sui generis to represent a loss of residential
accommodation and as such the proposal would not be in conflict with the above
mentioned policies. Hence the principle of the change of use from an existing House in
Multiple Occupancy (C4) to a larger House in Multiple Occupancy (sui generis) is
considered acceptable, subject to the proposal meeting all other guidelines.

Paragraph 3.5 of the SPG states that terraced properties with minimum gross floor area
(GFA) of 120m2 can be considered for conversion. The proposal property is an end terrace
and has a total GFA of 165m2. Hence this property would be considered suitable for the
conversion. The principle of the development is therefore considered acceptable.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application site lies within the Central Avenue Area of Special Local Character (ASLC).
Policy BE5 resists development which would adversely affect Areas of Special Local
Character. The proposal would not result in any external alterations to the property itself.
The submitted plans propose the introduction of soft landscaping to the frontage which
would be of visual benefit to the ASLC.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Furthermore policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) resist any development
which would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the
design of existing and adjoining sites. Policy BE5 seeks to resist development which would
adversely affect the character of Areas of Special Local Character.

The proposal does not involve any external alterations to the building. The submitted plans
show the introduction of a soft landscaped area to the frontage which would be an
improvement to the character and appearance of the street scene. As a result it is
considered that the proposal would not have a negative impact upon the visual amenity of
the site or the surrounding area in compliance with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and policies BE5, BE13 and BE15 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Impact on neighbours

In assessing applications for HMOs, the Council will seek to ensure that the change of use
will not be detrimental to the residential amenity of the area, including whether the dwelling
is large enough and that any increase in the number of residents will not have an adverse
impact on noise levels and the level of amenity neighbouring residents can reasonably be
expected to enjoy. Under Policy OE1, uses which are likely to become detrimental to the
amenities of the surrounding properties or area generally because of noise are not
permitted and uses which have the potential to cause noise nuisance will need to be
mitigated (Policy OE3).

Policy OE1 states permission will not normally be granted for uses and structures which

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



are, or are likely to become, detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding
properties or the area generally due to their siting or appearance, the storage or display of
items, traffic generation and congestion, and noise and vibration emissions.

Although properties used by single families are equally capable of becoming run down,
many landlords do not live on-site and so physical problems with converted properties can
go undetected for some time without proper management supervision. The transient nature
of many converted properties, because of the relatively short duration of tenancies, also
increases the need for the effective management and maintenance of properties.
Regardless of the interior condition of a property, outwardly visible signs of poor
management and maintenance (such as unkempt gardens) tend to have a detrimental
effect on the overall street scene and level of residential amenity.

Effective management control, whether it be carried out by housing associations,
managing agents or applicants themselves, is crucial to maintaining a satisfactory
environment for tenants and for achieving a good tenant/neighbour relationship. The
applicant has submitted a Management Plan with this application which the Council's
Housing Servicing Manager has advised is acceptable. It is recommended that this
management plan be conditioned accordingly to ensure that occupants of nearby dwellings
do not suffer an unacceptable loss of amenity in accordance with Policies OE1 and OE3 of
the Local Plan.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The guidance contained within the Council's SPG on Houses in Multiple Occupation
advises that the occupancy levels for semi-detached houses should be a maximum of 10
and will be required to provide a ground floor habitable room over 10m2, other than a
kitchen for communal living purposes. The proposal complies with this advice with the
provision of a kitchen diner measuring 22.5 square metres and a separate communal living
room measuring 15 square metres. All bedrooms are considered to be of an acceptable
size with an acceptable layout and the future occupants of the property would enjoy a
satisfactory level of residential amenity in accordance with the requirements of the
Supplementary Planning Guidance Houses in Multiple Occupation and other non-self
contained housing (2004).

The Council's SPG on HMOs require the provision of 15 square metres of external amenity
space for each habitable room (excluding those used for communal living purposes).
Therefore, the proposed development would be required to provide 105 square metres of
external amenity space. A total of 189 square metres of external amenity space is
provided and this would therefore comply with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012).

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Local Plan considers the traffic generated by proposals but states that
permission will not be granted where the free flow of traffic or conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety are likely to be prejudiced. Policy 4.7 within the SPG 'Houses in
Multiple Occupation’ offers the following advice in terms of parking for HMOs:

"The Council will require the provision of up to 1 off-street parking space for every 2
habitable rooms, excluding those used for communal living purposes. The submitted plan
shows the provision of 4 parking spaces within the frontage which would meet this
requirement. The submitted plans also confirm the provision of 7 secure cycle spaces
which will be conditioned accordingly. The proposal is therefore considered acceptable in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



711

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Urban design, access and security

The issues are addressed in the sections above.
Disabled access

No issues raised.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

The proposal includes the provision of two 240L wheelie bins with permanent enclosure,
located to the rear of the property.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

The issues are addressed in the sections above.
Comments on Public Consultations

An objection has been raised from the Hayes Village Conservation Panel raising concerns
that the property is being used as an HMO with a licence for operating as such. The
application property can be used as a small HMO (C4) with a maximum occupancy of 6
residents as permitted development. The current application seeks permission for a
change of use of this property from a C4 use to a sui generis use to increase the number
of occupants and thus does not result in a change in the nature of the use.

Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

No other issues raised.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for a change of use from from a 6 person
house in multiple occupation (Use Class C4) to a 10 person house in multiple occupation
(Sui Generis). The proposal is not considered to detract from the character and
appearance of the Central Avenue Area of Special Local Character (ASLC) and, subject to
the imposition of conditions to secure compliance with the submitted Management Plan,
would not result in an unacceptable loss of residential amenity to occupants of
neighbouring dwellings. The proposal does not raise any highway safety concerns and it
therefore recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012)

The London Plan (March 2015)

Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Parking Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts (July 2006)
Supplementary Planning Guidance Houses in Multiple Occupation and other non-self
contained housing (2004)

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



- Gz

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

49 Central Avenue

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
38444/APP/2016/744 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

Central & SO 107| May 2016

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



Agenda ltem 14

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 86 EAST AVENUE HAYES
Development: Change of use from retail (Use Class A1) to a nursery (Use Class D1)

LBH Ref Nos: 40159/APP/2015/4610

Drawing Nos: A102
Location Plan (1:1250)
Supporting Photographs
A101

Date Plans Received: 17/12/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 15/02/2016
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the change of use from retail (Use Class
A1) to nursery (Use Class D1). The proposal would result in the separation of retail
properties by more than 12m and as such would fail to retain the retail function and
attractiveness of the secondary shopping area of the Hayes Town Centre. Furthermore in
the absence of details in respect of operating hours and noise surveys the applicant has
failed to provide a robust case to support the proposed use. It is considered necessary to
provide a noise survey to quantify the existing noise levels and the noise levels associated
with the nursery use and to demonstrate that the proposed opening hours would not
detract from residential amenity. In addition, the applicant has failed to demonstrate that
the proposal would not result in additional on-street parking which would be detrimental to
highway and pedestrian safety.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal, by reason of the loss of a retail unit and the concentration of non-retail uses
that would result, would erode the retail function of the secondary shopping area of the
Hayes Town Centre thereby harming the vitality and viability of the centre. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policy S12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary
Development Plan Saved Polices (November 2012) and Policy 2.15 of the London Plan
(2015).

2 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

In the absence of information relating to operating hours, details of numbers of children
and staff and parking provision, the applicant has failed to demonstrate that the proposal
would not result in additional on-street parking which would be detrimental to highway and
pedestrian safety. The proposal is thus contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development has failed to demonstrate that unacceptable levels of noise
and disturbance to surrounding residential occupiers would not occur. In the absence of
any noise surveys or noise mitigations measures, the proposed development is

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



considered to result in noise and disturbance to the detriment of the amenity of adjoining
occupiers, contrary to Policies OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE26 Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings

BE28 Shop fronts - design and materials

R10 Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social,
community and health services

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

OE4 New or improved roads or railways - mitigation measures

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OE®6 Proposals likely to result in pollution

S1 New retail development within the shopping hierarchy

S5 Proposals for new or expanded markets or other retail use of open
land

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas

S12 Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,

Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies
On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. The
Council's supports pre-application discussions.

We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the application
as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and negotiation
could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application property comprises of a ground floor vacant former retail use located on
the south eastern side of East Avenue which lies within Hayes Town Centre as identified
within the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). The Council's
Town Centre Surveys confirm that the application property has been used as a tuition
centre (D1) use for the period 2014-2015. However no planning permission was granted for
this use. The authorised use of the application property is retail and hence the application is
assessed as such.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the change of use from retail (Use Class A1)
to nursery (Use Class D1). The submitted plans show the provision of 3 classrooms and a
reception area and 4 x toilets. The application site does not include any external space or
on site parking. The application forms confirm that there will be 2 full time employees and 4
x part-time employees. No details have been provided about number of children or hours of
operation.

The proposed development would lead to the loss of existing A1 retail space. Therefore the
application has been referred to the Planning Committee for consideration in accordance
with the requirements of the Council's Scheme of Delegation.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

There is no planning history of relevance to this application.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE26 Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings

BE28 Shop fronts - design and materials

R10 Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community
and health services

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

OE4 New or improved roads or railways - mitigation measures

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OEG6 Proposals likely to result in pollution

S1 New retail development within the shopping hierarchy

S5 Proposals for new or expanded markets or other retail use of open land

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

S12 Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

11 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 16.2.16 and a site notice was displayed to
the front of the site which expired on 17.3.16.

1 letter of comment has been received requesting that access to the nursery is achieved via East

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 112



Avenue and not the alleyway linking the site to Coldharbour Lane.

Officer comment: rights of access over this alleyway are not a material planning consideration.

Internal Consultees
None received.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policy R10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)states that the Local Planning Authority will regard proposals for new meeting halls,
buildings for education, social, community and health services, including libraries, nursery,
primary and secondary school buildings, as acceptable in principle subject to the other
policies of the Local Plan.

Paragraph 8.24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) defines secondary shopping areas as peripheral to the primary areas and in which
shopping and service uses are more mixed although Class A1 shops should still be the
majority use. Paragraph 8.26 states that as a guideline, the Council will normally seek to
prevent a separation or an increase in the separation of Class A1 units of more than about
12m, that is broadly the width of two typical shop fronts. Class A1 shops should remain the
predominant use in secondary areas and the Local Planning Authority will expect at least
50% of the frontage to be in class A1 use.

Policy S12 establishes that the change of use from Class A1 to non Class A1 uses in
secondary frontages where there remains adequate retail facilities to accord with the
character and function of the shopping centre in order to maintain the vitality and viability of
the town centre will be acceptable.

The Local Planning Authority's aim is to retain the retail function of all shopping areas to
meet the needs of the area each serves. Shops grouped conveniently together assist the
process of search for and comparison of goods and hence attract shoppers. As such the
Local Planning Authority will exercise strict control over the loss of shops to other uses.

Within this secondary frontage for Hayes Town Centre, there are 59 individual retail (A1)
units and 51 non-retail units. Hence, the existing percentage of units with retail (A1) uses is
at 53.6%. If the application proposal for the change of use was permitted, there would be
58 individual retail (A1) units and 52 non-retail units. Hence, the percentage of units with
retail (A1) uses would be 52.7% if the application were permitted.

When assessed against the Council's survey data for uses within the secondary shopping
frontage of Hayes Town Centre, the proposed change of use would result in the loss of a
further 4.7m of retail frontage which would bring the total A1 use down to 384.1m. This
would result in the retention of 57% of the total secondary shopping frontage in retail use
and as such, would remain above the 50% threshold as advised within paragraph 8.26 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). However, the
development would create a separation of more than 12m between class A1 units.

The proposal would therefore fail to retain the function and attractiveness of the secondary
shopping area of the Hayes Town Centre, and would fail to maintain its vitality and viability.
The proposal is therefore in conflict with Policy S12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Furthermore policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) resist any development
which would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the
design of existing and adjoining sites.

No alterations are proposed to the external appearance of the building and as such the
proposal would not have any impact upon the visual amenity of the site or surroundings.
Impact on neighbours

Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become detrimental
to the character or amenities of surrounding properties and policy OE3 states buildings or
uses which have the potential to cause noise annoyance will only be permitted if the impact
can be mitigated.

The site is located within a town centre location with residential properties located at first
floor level. It is considered that the applicant has failed to provide a robust case to support
the proposed use. It is considered necessary to provide a noise survey to quantify the
existing noise levels and the noise levels associated with the nursery use and to
demonstrate that the proposed opening hours would not detract from residential amenity.
Noise mitigation measures may also need to be explored and if necessary conditioned. It is
considered that it would not be appropriate to secure these details by condition.

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the traffic generated by proposed
developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic
flows and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards. These require a maximum provision of
1 space per 4 members of staff plus 3 spaces per nursery.

The application site does not have any off street parking and East Avenue is a Controlled
Parking Zone. This part of the Hayes Town Centre has good public transport links. The
application site is within walking distance of Hayes & Harlington Station and there are good
bus links on Coldharbour Lane. However, without details of the number of children and any
indication of hours of operation, it is considered that the applicant has failed to demonstrate
that the proposal would not result in additional on-street parking or congestion which would
be detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety. The proposal is thus contrary to Policies

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).
7.11 Urban design, access and security

See Section 7.07.
7.12 Disabled access

No issues raised.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to this application.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

These issues are addressed in the section above.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The issues raised have been covered in the main report.
7.20 Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

No other issues raised.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal would result in the separation of retail properties by more than 12m and as
such would fail to retain the retail function and attractiveness of the secondary shopping
area of the Hayes Town Centre. Furthermore in the absence of details in respect of
operating hours and noise surveys the applicant has failed to provide a robust case to
support the proposed use. It is considered necessary to provide a noise survey to quantify
the existing noise levels and the noise levels associated with the nursery use and to
demonstrate that the proposed opening hours would not detract from residential amenity. In
addition, the applicant has failed to demonstrate that the proposal would not result in
additional on-street parking which would be detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2015)

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

86 East Avenue

Hayes

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref:
40159/APP/2015/4610

Scale:

1:1,000

Planning Committee:

Central & S&G@¢ 118

Date:
May 2016

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

TILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 15

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 94 HERCIES ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: Extension of roof to create additional habitable roof space to include 2 new
side dormers and enlargement of existing dormers (Part Retrospective)

LBH Ref Nos: 19969/APP/2016/757

Drawing Nos: MB/3090/1
MB/3090/3 Rev. A
Location Plan (1:1250)

Date Plans Received: 23/02/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 23/02/2016

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The application property is a detached bungalow which has been previously extended
through addition of dormer extensions to the roof and rear extensions. The property has
extensive hardstanding to the front and a single garage on the right hand side served by a
driveway. No0s.92 and 96 Hercies Road adjoin the site. Both are single storey dwellings. No
96 has a dormer extension facing towards the site and is separated by a driveway. No.92
has secondary side windows at ground floor level.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

Work, already commenced on the application proposal, involves the extension of the roof to
create additional habitable roofspace including new gable end windows to the rear, two
new side dormers and replacement of existing side dormers.

The proposed development is a resubmission of a previously refused scheme.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
19969/APP/2000/168 94 Hercies Road Hillingdon
ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION

Decision Date: 07-03-2000 Approved Appeal:
19969/APP/2015/3567 94 Hercies Road Hillingdon

Two side dormers (Application for a Certificate of Lawful Development for a Proposed
Development)

Decision Date: 17-11-2015 Approved Appeal:
19969/APP/2015/3568 94 Hercies Road Hillingdon

Extension of roof to create additional habitable roofspace including new gable end window to rear
and four side dormers

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



Decision Date: 24-11-2015 Refused Appeal:
Comment on Planning History

A Certificate of Lawful Proposed Development was issued on 17/11/2015 for the erection
of replacement side dormer windows. By virtue of the conditions attached to Class B, all
side facing windows are required to be obscure glazed and top opening only.

Planning application reference 19969/APP/2016/3568 was refused for the follow reasons:

The proposed dormer windows, by reason of their cumulative size, scale, bulk and design
would fail to harmonise with the architectural composition of the original and adjoining
dwellings and would be detrimental to the character, appearance and visual amenity of the
street scene and the surrounding area. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policy
BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies
BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Extensions.

The proposal would result in the provision of habitable rooms with no or restricted outlook
and poor levels of daylight/sunlight to the detriment of the amenities of current/future
occupiers. Therefore, the proposal would fail to provide a satisfactory residential
environment, contrary to Policies BE19, BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5 and 5.3 of the London Plan
(2015) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions

The proposal, by virtue of its size, scale, bulk and proximity, would be detrimental to the
amenities of the adjoining occupiers by reason of over-dominance, visual intrusion and loss
of outlook. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to policies BE19, BE20 and BE21 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the
Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

ENFORCEMENT ACTION
An Enforcement Notice has been served and took effect on the 6th May 2016. The notice,
requires the removal of the roof extension including dormers.

2. Advertisement and Site Notice
2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Nos. 92 and 96 and 105 and 107 were notified of the application on 26.02.16. A site notice
was displayed from 01.03.16.

One objection and one comment received making the following points:

- Over developed with three new rear windows (the middle window or door is a different
size to the other two) which now have been fitted?

- Overlooking and imposing on ours and neighbouring landscape rear gardens.

- This extension has already been built up to 80%

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



- Completely removing and imposing the light from our downstairs side window.

- Two windows overlooking the side of our premises look odd with different sizes.

- Out of character with this road.

- There has never been any public planning notification displayed outside number 94
Hercies Road about any planning applications.

- We never heard or seen anything like it in forty years.

A letter has been received from the applicant outlining the following:

1. The scale of the dormers at the back have been reduced and made smaller as advised
by the Hillingdon planning officer who dealt with the original application.

2. The side dormer windows at the rear dormer have been re-located to the back the
dormer to ensure that there are no additional side dormer windows. The windows in the old
plan have been moved to the back of the property fit onto smaller scale dormers to protect
the privacy of both neighbours and do not overlook either 96 Hercies or 92 Hercies road.

3. All the existing side windows maintained on the existing dormers are fitted with obscured
glass to also protect the privacy of neighbours on either side.

NERL: No safeguarding issues

RAF Safeguarding - Northolt: No comments received

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to

neighbours.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main planning issues relate to the effect of the proposal on the character and

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



appearance of the original dwelling, the impact on the visual amenities of the surrounding
area, the impact on the residential amenities of neighbouring dwellings, provision of
acceptable amenity for the application property and the sufficiency of car parking.

- Visual Impact

Section 7.0 of the Council's Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential
Extensions recognises that creating a room or rooms within an existing roofspace is a
common way of providing additional bedroom or other accommodation. However, this
must be assessed against any possible detrimental effect to neighbouring residents and, in
particular, the appearance of the original house and character of the local area.

The property previously had dormer windows on both side roofs, these appeared as a
small subordinate elements of the original dwelling.

The application proposal, near completed, has materially increased the size of the dormer
windows on both sides of the roof. It comprises two dormer windows on each side 0.5m
apart which sit approximately 0.5m from the apex of the roof, approximately 0.5m from the
eaves and 1 metre from the front elevation.

There is no material difference in the effect of this proposal than that previously refused.
This application proposal has substantially altered the appearance of the dwelling, giving it
a top heavy and largely flat roof appearance. The alteration does not harmonise with the
architectural composition of the existing building, resulting in an appearance substantially
out of keeping with the over-riding character of the street scene. The small gap between
the dormers will not be readily apparent when viewed from the street. This harm is further
emphasised by the staggered nature of this property and its immediate neighbours with the
application site sitting further forward than No. 96 and thus being very visible within the
street scene. As such it is considered that the proposal is contrary to the requirements of
Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and Section 7.0 of the SPD HDAS: Residential Extensions.

- Impact on residential amenities and the amenities of the dwelling

The nearest neighbours are Nos. 92 Hercies Road (to the right) and 96 (to the left). No 92
is separated from the application site by a garage and driveway. There are small
secondary windows at ground floor level. To the left, No. 96 has its own drive and garage
on the right hand side. There is a dormer window in the roof which faces directly towards
the application site.

The applicant has indicated that the side windows will be obscure glazed and top opening.
Whilst this would be appropriate for the bathroom and en-suite windows, the use for
bedroom windows gives rise to concern. Obscure/top opening glazing for side facing
windows is a condition for permitted development and was a requirement of the recent
decision to issue a Certificate of Lawful proposed development. However, in that case, the
Local Planning Authority was not required to make any planning judgement. Use of obscure
glazing with top opening windows would result in a substantive number of habitable rooms
which would not benefit from adequate outlook and the result would be an oppressive
environment. It is also considered that for this reason use of obscure glazing is extremely
difficult to enforce since subsequent occupiers may alter the windows to improve their
amenities. If this occurs the neighbouring properties are likely to experience loss of privacy
by reason of overlooking.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



It is also considered that the substantial nature of the extensions would result in an
overbearing impact on neighbours. Since No. 96 has a side dormer which appears to serve
a habitable room (bedroom) facing directly towards the new dormers on this side, the
property is likely to be exposed to a substantial level of lighting from the windows which will
add to the overbearing impact of the proposal. The substantial scale of the development
facing side on to No. 94 is also of concern due to the scale and impact of lighting, although
this is mitigated somewhat by the presence of a drive within the application site and the
secondary nature of the ground floor windows in No. 94

It is also proposed to add a new rear facing window. This would face over the rear garden
and would afford views of the rear gardens of the neighbouring property. This is a normal
relationship in a higher density residential environment and does not, of itself, result in a
material loss of amenity.

Overall, the proposal would fail to provide a satisfactory residential environment for future
occupiers and for occupiers of neighbouring properties, contrary to Policies BE19, BE20,
BE21, and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012), Policies 3.5 and 5.3 of the London Plan (2015) and the Council's adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

Paragraph 3.13 of the HDAS requires sufficient garden space to be retained as a
consequence of an extension. The property benefits from a large rear garden and the
provision of the dormer extensions will not reduce the space available. As such, in this
regard, it is considered that the proposal is appropriate under Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

- Car parking and landscaping

The property currently has three bedrooms, one at ground floor and two in the roof space.
The proposal involves reconfiguring the internal arrangements but does not increase the
number of bedrooms. It is noted that one room in the extended roof space is referred to as
a study. However, this is approximately 6sq.m and it is unlikely that this could be converted
into a further bedroom. Notwithstanding this, the property has sufficient space for three or
more vehicles. Therefore it is considered that the proposal complies with the requirements
of Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan 2012, Part 2.

6. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed dormer windows, by reason of their cumulative size, scale, bulk and design
would fail to harmonise with the architectural composition of the original and adjoining
dwellings and would be detrimental to the character, appearance and visual amenity of the
street scene and the surrounding area. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policy
BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies
BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Extensions.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 123



The proposal would result in the provision of habitable rooms with no or restricted outlook
to the detriment of the amenities of current/future occupiers. Therefore, the proposal
would fail to provide a satisfactory residential environment, contrary to Policies BE19,
BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012), Policies 3.5 and 5.3 of the London Plan (2015) and the adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

3 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal, by virtue of its size, scale, bulk and proximity, would be detrimental to the
amenities of the adjoining occupiers by reason of overdominance, visual intrusion and
loss of outlook. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to policies BE19, BE20 and
BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

INFORMATIVES

1 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for
the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right
to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of
the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of
discrimination).

2 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012)
set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

HDAS-E> Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted December 2008

3 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2015). On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.

Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 124



September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive way. The Council's supports pre-application discussions in order to
ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an
application which is likely to be considered favourably. We have however been
unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the application as the principal
of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and negotiation could
not overcome the reasons for refusal.

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Part 1 Policies:
Part 2 Policies:
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy

to neighbours.

HDAS-EXT  Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Contact Officer: Peter Morgan Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

94 Hercies Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
19969/APP/2016/757 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & S&Gfls 126 May 2016

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Item 16

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 133B HIGH STREET UXBRIDGE

Development: Retention of outbuilding to the rear as built to be used as a community
centre/place of worship.

LBH Ref Nos: 68976/APP/2016/253

Drawing Nos: Design, Access and Heritage Statement
Location Plan (1:1250)
B3919-20
Date Plans Received: 21/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

Date Application Valid: 21/01/2016
2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The outbuilding, by reason of its visually unacceptable appearance would detrimentally
impact on the character, appearance and setting of the Grade Il Listed Building and Listed
Wall and fails to preserve the character and appearance of the immediate street scene
and surrounding Old Uxbridge/Windsor Street Conservation Area contrary to Policies BE1
and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and
Policies BE4, BE10, BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 127



BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to

neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
R9 Proposals for the use of buildings for religious and cultural purposes
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises an existing single storey, rectangular building located to the
rear of the retail parade on the eastern side of Uxbridge High Street. The building is
currently in use as the Eyup Sultan Educational Cultural Centre and place of worship,
which is classified as a D1 use.

The building is to the rear of the three storey terraced building, No.133 High Street, which
has a split retail unit at ground floor and residential accommodation at first and second
floors. The building is Grade |l Listed as part of a listing which covers Nos.129-133 High
Street. The application building is link attached to No.133a High Street through a brick wall,
running along the boundary with the footpath passageway between the High Street and
Redford Way to the rear of the site. The wall is protected as part of the Listing of the
building. There is a curved section of the listed wall at the rear of the existing building which
is hidden under render, along with an up stand of bricks (from the original wall) along the
north-west elevation.

No.132 High Street, The Good Yarn Public House, is located opposite the site. To the south
of the site is the two storey rear wing of No.134A High Street, this building is also Grade Il
Listed and was granted approval in 2012 to be converted into 3 x 2 bedroom flats.

To the rear (north-east) of the site is the nearest residential property, a purpose built
residential block known as Culham Court on Redford Way. Located opposite Culham
Court and also on Redford Way is Redford House, in use as a charity furniture store (A1
Use) and the building immediately to the north of Redford House also accessed via
Redford Way is a place of worship.

The site lies in the Old Uxbridge/Windsor Street Conservation Area and is located within an
Archaeological Priority Area as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012).

Redford Way and all the surrounding residential streets are located within a controlled

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 128



parking zone, with car parking limited to permit parking between 9am and 5pm Monday to
Saturday on Redford Way. The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 6.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the retention of an outbuilding, as built, to be used as a
community centre/place of worship (D1 Use Class).

3.3 Relevant Planning History

68976/APP/2013/799 133b High Street Uxbridge

Demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new single-storey building, for use as cultural
centre/place of worship (Use Class D1)

Decision: 10-07-2013 Refused

68976/APP/2013/800 133b High Street Uxbridge

Demolition of existing outbuilding (Conservation Area Consent).

Decision: 10-07-2013 Refused

68976/APP/2014/3478 133b High Street Uxbridge

Details pursuant to condition 6 (footings) of planning permission ref: 68976/APP/2014/467, date
17-06-2014 (Listed Building Consent for demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new
single storey building, for continued use as a cultural centre/place of worship (D1))

Decision: 18-12-2014  Approved

68976/APP/2014/3479  133b High Street Uxbridge

Details pursuant to condition 5 (footings) of planning permission ref: 68976/APP/2014/351, date
17-06-2014 (Demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new single storey building, for
continued use as a cultural centre/place of worship (D1))

Decision: 18-12-2014  Approved

68976/APP/2014/351 133b High Street Uxbridge

Demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new single storey building, for continued use a
a cultural centre/place of worship (D1)

Decision: 12-06-2014  Approved

68976/APP/2014/3829 133b High Street Uxbridge

Details pursuant to condition 6 (Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation and Watching
Brief) of planning permission ref: 68976/APP/2014/351, dated 17/6/2014 (Demolition of existing
outbuilding and erection of new single storey building, for continued use as a cultural centre/plac
of worship (Class D1)).

Decision: 01-12-2014  Approved

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 129



68976/APP/2014/3830  133b High Street Uxbridge

Details pursuant to condition 7 (Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation and Watching
Brief) of Listed Building Consent ref: 68976/APP/2014/467, dated 14/6/2014 (Demolition of
existing outbuilding and erection of new single storey building, for continued use as a cultural
centre/place of worship (D1)).

Decision: 01-12-2014  Approved

68976/APP/2014/467 133b High Street Uxbridge

Listed Building Consent for demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new single storey
building, for continued use as a cultural centre/place of worship (D1)

Decision: 12-06-2014  Approved

68976/APP/2016/254 133b High Street Uxbridge

Retention of outbuilding to the rear as built to be used as a community centre/place of worship
(Listed Building Consent).

Decision:

Comment on Planning History
See Section 7.21 of this report.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 130



area
R9 Proposals for the use of buildings for religious and cultural purposes
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 28 local owners/occupiers and a site notice was displayed. Two
responses were received:

i) Rear wall reduced with an unfinished appearance

ii) Interior wall probably needs some protection from the elements

iif) Water pouring from unfinished guttering

iv) Impact on Listed Building and Conservation Area

v) The Listed Wall needs to be properly repaired and rendered

vi) Visual amenity for residents

vii) Design, appearance and materials of windows and doors inappropriate for Conservation Area -
will they be PVC or wooden?

viii) Development has not been built in accordance with approved plans
ix) Unacceptable parking

x) Commercial refuse bins along Johnson's Yard impact on public access

Ward Councillor: Requests that the application is reported to committee for consideration.
Old Uxbridge Conservation Panel: No response received
Uxbridge Local History and Archive Society: No response received

Historic England: On the basis of the information provided, we do not consider that it is necessary
for this application to be notified to Historic England under the relevant statutory provisions.

Internal Consultees

Conservation Officer:

The site lies within the Old Uxbridge/Windsor Street Conservation Area, the boundary wall is
considered as listed as it falls within the curtilage of the grade Il frontage property and the site itself
also falls within the curtilage of this listed structure.

There are considerable concerns re this application:

- The Design and Access Statement advises that the building is to be retained as built, whilst the
drawings show the changes that were discussed with the applicant, such as changes to the boiler
flue, the removal of the metal door left hanging off the wall and replacement of the PVC windows. It
is important that these elements of the works are undertaken in order to ensure that the current
building is of a sufficient quality, in terms of the adjacent heritage assets and their settings, that it
can be retained.

- Where there are vertical gaps between the new building and original walls, these should be infilled

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 131



with brickwork toothed into the original structure. The wall should not be cut back. It is advised that
the gap to the south of the new building is corrected by the insertion of a brick pier located within the
garden space between the 2 structures, this can then be used to support the free end of the bowed
section of brickwork (to the original wall). It is advised that an appropriately experienced specialist
brick layer is employed to undertake these works and details will be required.

- The PVC windows should be removed and white painted timber, side hung casements of a
traditional appearance inserted in their place - detailed design to be agreed.

- The shiny white plastic fascia boards should be replaced in timber and the PVC down pipes and
gutters replaced in metal. The down pipe adjacent to the listed wall to the south must be run into the
existing drain.

- The new timber door design (in place) is acceptable and the door at the northern end of the
building should be replaced to match. The door in the original wall can also be replaced in timber,
however, a detail should be provided of this as its not to the same proportions as the other standard
modern doors.

- The existing stub of the original wall at ground level should be protected by a wide stone capping
with a DPC below, if required- it should not be capped with additional concrete, or be covered with a
flashing.

- The proposed "roof" cover to the end of the wall should be omitted, as this is proposed to be slate
covered in felt, which would be visible over the top of the existing structures. If a water proof cover is
necessary, this should sit below the roof/wall parapet.

- The rear elevation drawing and cross-section do not match re the roof profile
- Details of the repairs to the wall are required

- The wall and new building should both be painted off white, RAL colour/manufacturers colour code
to be confirmed

Revised drawings required

Officer comments: No revised drawings have been received to address the Conservation Officer's
comments. Whilst some of the issues raised could be dealt with through the use of suitably worded
conditions, it is considered that insufficient detail has been provided in order to fully address the
concerns raised by the Conservation Officer.

Environmental Protection Unit: No objection to the planning application.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The use of the building for a community centre/place of worship (Use Class D1) was
established as part of planning permission ref: 68976/APP/2014/351, dated 17-06-14. This
current application seeks to regularise the appearance of the building which has not been
built in accordance with the previously approved plans. There is no objection to the
continued use as a community centre/place of worship.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application site is located at the rear of No.133 High Street, which is part of a Grade II

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 132



Listed Building (Nos.129-133 High Street). The application building is attached to No.133a
High Street through a brick wall, running along the boundary with the footpath passageway
between the High Street and Redford Way to the rear of the site. The wall is protected as
part of the Listing of the building. The site is also located in the Old Uxbridge/Windsor
Street Conservation Area.

Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that new developments should retain or enhance the character and appearance of
the Conservation Area and those features which contribute to the special architectural
qualities. Policy BE10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) states planning permission will not normally be granted for proposals
which are considered detrimental to the setting of a listed building.

The Council's Conservation Officer considers that the outbuilding, as built, is visually
unacceptable due to an incomplete appearance resulting from gaps between the new
building and original listed walls and the use of PVC windows, PVC down pipes and PVC
gutters.

The development would have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and
setting of the Grade Il Listed Building and Listed Wall. The development would also visibly
impact, and fail to preserve the character and appearance of the surrounding Old
Uxbridge/Windsor Street Conservation Area. As such, the proposed scheme does not
comply with Policies BE4 and BE10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fails to
harmonise with the existing street scene. Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) requires alterations and extensions to existing
buildings to harmonise with the scale, form, architectural composition and properties of the
original building.

The outbuilding, as built, does not present an appropriate visual impact on the immediate
street scene due to gaps between the new building and original listed walls creating an
incomplete appearance to the building. Also, the use of PVC windows, PVC down pipes
and PVC gutters is not in keeping with the surrounding buildings, thereby appearing out of
character with the surrounding area.

The proposed scheme is therefore considered to not comply with Policies BE13 and BE15
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The impact of the proposal on the Listed Building (No.133 High Street), the listed wall and
the Old Uxbridge/Windsor Street Conservation Area have been dealt with in Section 7.03 of
the report.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires the design of new buildings to protect the privacy of occupiers and their

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 133



7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

neighbours. Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) requires new development to protect the character and amenities of
surrounding properties by reason of siting or appearance, traffic generation and congestion
and noise or vibration.

The nearest residential properties to the new building are located approximately 8 metres
away in Culham Court to the northwest across Johnson's Yard and the highway of Redford
Way. Further residential properties are located approximately 12 metres away in upper
floor flats located above the commercial premises at No.133 High Street and No.134 High
Street.

The previously approved scheme (ref: 68976/APP/2014/351) did not include windows on
the side or rear elevations. The current as built outbuilding has two windows on the side
elevation. It is considered that these windows, which face onto the neighbouring Public
House (The Good Yarn, No.132 High Street) would not result in loss of privacy or issues of
overlooking between the two buildings.

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires due consideration of the impact of new development in traffic generation on the
surrounding road network whilst Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) sets out the Council's Car Parking Standards.

Due to the small size of the development, the high PTAL rating of 6 for the site, the town
centre location and the controlled car parking in operation, the proposal would not result in
unacceptable levels of parking and traffic generation. The proposal would therefore accord
with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

Urban design, access and security

See Section 7.03 of this report.
Disabled access

Level access to and from the building would be provided. As such, it is considered that the
proposal would be acceptable in terms of accessibility.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

During the public consultation, concern was raised over the impact of commercial refuse
bins along Johnson's Yard on public access. Refuse storage and refuse collection
arrangements were considered acceptable at the time of the original planning permission
(ref: 68976/APP/2014/467, granted in June 2014). The current application to retain the
outbuilding, as built, would not impact on the previously approved refuse arrangements.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 134



Not applicable to this application.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

Two responses were received during the public consultation. The points raised have been
discussed elsewhere in this report.
7.20 Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

The application site had been in use as an unauthorised cultural centre/place of worship for
a number of years, and was considered immune from enforcement action. The use of the
site as a cultural centre/place of worship (D1 Use Class) was regularised through planning
permission ref: 68976/APP/2014/351 and the associated Listed Building Consent (ref:
68976/APP/2014/467), granted in June 2014.

There is currently an enforcement investigation on the site as the development has not
been built in accordance with the approved plans. This current application, and the
associated Listed Building Consent (ref: 68976/APP/2016/254) seeks to regularise the 'as
built' outbuilding.

7.22 Other Issues

None

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 135



2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

Planning permission is sought for the retention of an outbuilding, as built, to the rear of
133B High Street, to be used as a community centre/place of worship (D1 Use Class).
This application seeks to regularise the as built outbuilding, which has not been built in
accordance with the plans approved under planning permission ref: 68976/APP/2014/351,
and the associated Listed Building Consent (ref: 68976/APP/2014/467) granted in June
2014.

There is no objection to the continued use of the building within Use Class D1. The
outbuilding, as built, presents a visually unacceptable appearance that detrimentally
impacts on the character, appearance and setting of the Grade Il Listed Building and Listed
Wall, the immediate street scene, and fail to preserve the character and appearance of the
surrounding Old Uxbridge/Windsor Street Conservation Area.

The application does not comply with Policies BE4, BE10, BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). The application is therefore
recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Contact Officer: Katherine Mills Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



\

0.2my, N\
. m‘\\Sh\uer\

N

Cedars Car Park
(Multistorey)

Shelter’,/’/

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary 133B High Street %F I_-(IjILl_Il;lGI;)ON
. esidents services
For identification purposes only. Uxbndge Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . L . i 4y
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 68976/APP/2016/253 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant ;
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: (Talsst
© Crown copyright and database | e
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Central & sd:)lﬁﬂe 137 May 2016 I “} ILLINGDON
100019283 LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138



Agenda ltem 17

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 133B HIGH STREET UXBRIDGE

Development: Retention of outbuilding to the rear as built to be used as a community
centre/place of worship (Listed Building Consent).

LBH Ref Nos: 68976/APP/2016/254

Drawing Nos: Design, Access and Heritage Statement
Location Plan (1:1250)
B3919-20
Date Plans Received: 21/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

Date Application Valid: 21/01/2016

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises an existing single storey, rectangular building located to the
rear of the retail parade on the eastern side of Uxbridge High Street. The building is
currently in use as the Eyup Sultan Educational Cultural Centre and place of worship,
which is classified as a D1 use.

The building is to the rear of the three storey terraced building, No.133 High Street, which
has a split retail unit at ground floor and residential accommodation at first and second
floors. The building is Grade |l Listed as part of a listing which covers Nos.129-133 High
Street. The application building is link attached to No.133a High Street through a brick wall,
running along the boundary with the footpath passageway between the High Street and
Redford Way to the rear of the site. The wall is protected as part of the Listing of the
building. There is a curved section of the listed wall at the rear of the existing building which
is hidden under render, along with an up stand of bricks (from the original wall) along the
north-west elevation.

No.132 High Street, The Good Yarn Public House, is located opposite the site. To the south
of the site is the two storey rear wing of No.134A High Street, this building is also Grade Il
Listed and was granted approval in 2012 to be converted into 3 x 2 bedroom flats.

To the rear (north-east) of the site is the nearest residential property, a purpose built
residential block known as Culham Court on Redford Way. Located opposite Culham
Court and also on Redford Way is Redford House, in use as a charity furniture store (A1
Use) and the building immediately to the north of Redford House also accessed via
Redford Way is a place of worship.

The site lies in the Old Uxbridge/Windsor Street Conservation Area and is located within an
Archaeological Priority Area as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012).

Redford Way and all the surrounding residential streets are located within a controlled
parking zone, with car parking limited to permit parking between 9am and 5pm Monday to

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 139



Saturday on Redford Way. The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 6.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

Listed Building Consent is sought for the retention of an outbuilding, as built, to be used as
a community centre/place of worship (D1 Use Class).

1.3 Relevant Planning History
68976/APP/2013/799 133b High Street Uxbridge

Demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new single-storey building, for use as cultural
centre/place of worship (Use Class D1)

Decision Date: 10-07-2013 Refused Appeal:
68976/APP/2013/800 133b High Street Uxbridge
Demolition of existing outbuilding (Conservation Area Consent).
Decision Date: 10-07-2013 Refused Appeal:

68976/APP/2014/3478 133b High Street Uxbridge
Details pursuant to condition 6 (footings) of planning permission ref: 68976/APP/2014/467, dated
17-06-2014 (Listed Building Consent for demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new
single storey building, for continued use as a cultural centre/place of worship (D1))
Decision Date: 18-12-2014 Approved Appeal:
68976/APP/2014/3479 133b High Street Uxbridge

Details pursuant to condition 5 (footings) of planning permission ref: 68976/APP/2014/351, dated
17-06-2014 (Demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new single storey building, for
continued use as a cultural centre/place of worship (D1))
Decision Date: 18-12-2014 Approved Appeal:
68976/APP/2014/351 133b High Street Uxbridge
Demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new single storey building, for continued use as
a cultural centre/place of worship (D1)
Decision Date: 12-06-2014 Approved Appeal:
68976/APP/2014/3829 133b High Street Uxbridge

Details pursuant to condition 6 (Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation and Watching
Brief) of planning permission ref: 68976/APP/2014/351, dated 17/6/2014 (Demolition of existing
outbuilding and erection of new single storey building, for continued use as a cultural centre/place
of worship (Class D1)).

Decision Date: 01-12-2014 Approved Appeal:
68976/APP/2014/3830 133b High Street Uxbridge

Details pursuant to condition 7 (Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation and Watching
Brief) of Listed Building Consent ref: 68976/APP/2014/467, dated 14/6/2014 (Demolition of
existing outbuilding and erection of new single storey building, for continued use as a cultural
centre/place of worship (D1)).

Decision Date: 01-12-2014 Approved Appeal:
68976/APP/2014/467 133b High Street Uxbridge

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 140



Listed Building Consent for demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new single storey
building, for continued use as a cultural centre/place of worship (D1)

Decision Date: 12-06-2014 Approved Appeal:
68976/APP/2016/253 133b High Street Uxbridge

Retention of outbuilding to the rear as built to be used as a community centre/place of worship.

Decision Date: Appeal:
Comment on Planning History

The application site had been in use as an unauthorised cultural centre/place of worship for
a number of years, and was considered immune from enforcement action. The use of the
site as a cultural centre/place of worship (D1 Use Class) was regularised through planning
permission ref: 68976/APP/2014/351 and the associated Listed Building Consent (ref:
68976/APP/2014/467) granted in June 2014.

There is currently an enforcement investigation on the site as the development has not
been built in accordance with the approved plans. This current application, and the
associated Listed Building Consent (ref: 68976/APP/2016/254) seeks to regularise the as
built outbuilding.

2. Advertisement and Site Notice

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
3. Comments on Public Consultations
EXTERNAL

Consultation letters were sent to 28 local owners/occupiers and a site notice was
displayed. One response was received:

i) Impact on Listed Building and Conservation Area

ii) The Listed Wall needs to be properly repaired and rendered

iii) Visual amenity for residents

iv) Design, appearance and materials of windows and doors inappropriate for Conservation
Area - will they be PVC or wooden?

v) Development has not been built in accordance with approved plans

vi) Unacceptable parking

vii) Commercial refuse bins along Johnson's Yard impact on public access

Officer comments: Points i), ii), iii), iv) and v) have been discussed elsewhere in this report.
In regards to Points vi) and vii) parking and refuse storage are planning matters which have
been dealt with as part of the associated planning application ref: 68976/APP/2016/253.

Old Uxbridge Conservation Panel: No response received

Uxbridge Local History and Archive Society: No response received

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 141



Historic England: On the basis of the information provided, we do not consider that it is
necessary for this application to be notified to Historic England under the relevant statutory
provisions.

Ward Councillor: Requests that the application is reported to committee for consideration.
INTERNAL
Conservation Officer:

The site lies within the Old Uxbridge Windsor Street Conservation Area, the boundary wall
is considered as listed as it falls within the curtilage of the grade Il frontage property and the
site itself also falls within the curtilage of this listed structure.

There are considerable concerns re this application:

- The Design and Access Statement advises that the building is to be retained as built,
whilst the drawings show the changes that were discussed with the applicant, such as
changes to the boiler flue, the removal of the metal door left hanging off the wall and
replacement of the PVC windows. It is important that these elements of the works are
undertaken in order to ensure that the current building is of a sufficient quality, in terms of
the adjacent heritage assets and their settings, that it can be retained.

- Where there are vertical gaps between the new building and original walls, these should
be infilled with brickwork toothed into the original structure. The wall should not be cut back.
It is advised that the gap to the south of the new building is corrected by the insertion of a
brick pier located within the garden space between the 2 structures, this can then be used
to support the free end of the bowed section of brickwork (to the original wall). It is advised
that an appropriately experienced specialist brick layer is employed to undertake these
works and details will be required.

- The PVC windows should be removed and white painted timber, side hung casements of
a traditional appearance inserted in their place - detailed design to be agreed.

- The shiny white plastic fascia boards should be replaced in timber and the PVC down
pipes and gutters replaced in metal. The down pipe adjacent to the listed wall to the south
must be run into the existing drain.

- The new timber door design (in place) is acceptable and the door at the northern end of
the building should be replaced to match. The door in the original wall can also be replaced
in timber, however, a detail should be provided of this as its not to the same proportions as
the other standard modern doors.

- The existing stub of the original wall at ground level should be protected by a wide stone
capping with a DPC below, if required - it should not be capped with additional concrete, or
be covered with a flashing.

- The proposed "roof" cover to the end of the wall should be omitted, as this is proposed to
be slate covered in felt, which would be visible over the top of the existing structures. If a
water proof cover is necessary, this should sit below the roof/wall parapet.

- The rear elevation drawing and cross-section do not match re the roof profile

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 142



- Details of the repairs to the wall are required

- The wall and new building should both be painted off white, RAL colour/manufacturers
colour code to be confirmed

Revised drawings required
Officer comments: No revised drawings have been received to address the Conservation
Officer's comments. Whilst some of the issues raised could be dealt with through the use

of suitably worded conditions, it is considered that insufficient detail has been provided in
order to fully address the concerns raised by the Conservation Officer.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main planning issue relates to the impact the development has on the Grade Il Listed
Building, No.133 High Street, and the boundary wall next to the existing outbuilding.

Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that new developments should retain or enhance the character and appearance of
the Conservation Area and those features which contribute to the special architectural
qualities. Policy BE10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) states planning permission will not normally be granted for proposals
which are considered detrimental to the setting of a listed building.

The application site lies within the Old Uxbridge/Windsor Street Conservation Area and falls
within the curtilage of No0.133 High Street, which is a Grade Il Listed Building. The building
was once a merchant's house and would have had a generous sized rear yard/garden
befitting of this eminent building in Uxbridge's historic town centre. The boundary wall to
Johnson's Yard in the backyard is brick built, of historic interest that is an attractive feature
and is of visual amenity value to the adjacent Johnson's Yard passageway and to the wider
locality of the Old Uxbridge/Windsor Street Conservation Area.

The Council's Conservation Officer considers that the outbuilding, as built, is visually
unacceptable due to an incomplete appearance resulting in gaps between the new building
and original listed walls and the use of PVC windows, PVC down pipes and PVC gutters.
The development would have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and
setting of the Grade Il Listed Building and Listed Wall. The development would also visibly

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 143



impact upon, and fail to preserve the character and appearance of the surrounding Old
Uxbridge/Windsor Street Conservation Area. As such, the proposed scheme does not
comply with Policies BE4 and BE10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

The application for Listed Building Consent is therefore recommended for refusal.

6. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The outbuilding, by reason of its visually unacceptable appearance would detrimentally
impact on the character, appearance and setting of the Grade Il Listed Building and Listed
Wall and fails to preserve the character and appearance of the immediate street scene
and surrounding Old Uxbridge/Windsor Street Conservation Area contrary to Policies BE1
and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and
Policies BE4 and BE10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 The decision to REFUSE Listed Building Consent has been taken having regard
to all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to REFUSE Listed Building Consent has been taken having regard
to the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012)
set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building
Contact Officer: Katherine Mills Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 144



\

0.2my, N\
. m‘\\Sh\uer\

N

Cedars Car Park
(Multistorey)

Shelter’,/’/

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary 133B High Street %F I_-(IjILl_Il;lGI;)ON
. esidents services

For identification purposes only. Uxbndge Planning Section

This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . L . i 4y

Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1988 (the Act). 68976/APP/2016/254 1:1,250

Unless the Act provides a relevant ;

exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: (Talsst
© Crown copyright and database | e

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Central & SOURfe 145 May 2016 HHILLINGDON
100019283 LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 146



Agenda Item 18

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 27 KINGSTON AVENUE YIEWSLEY
Development: Single storey side extension

LBH Ref Nos: 67220/APP/2015/3631

Drawing Nos: SD1552(P)02-A
SD1552(P)03
Site Plans

Date Plans Received:  29/09/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 16/10/2015

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises of a two storey end of terrace dwelling along Kingston
Avenue. The property is set on a lower ground level than the adjacent highway and is
characterised by a hipped roof with the front access via the flank elevation. The property
benefits from ample garden area to the front and rear, with parking only available on steet.

The surrounding area is characterised by semi-detached and terraced blocks that vary in
size, form and appearance. A fair proportion of houses have created off road parking
spaces within their curtilages however Kingston Avenue still depends heavily on on steet
parking as a result of the wide grass area directly opposite the row of terraced blocks.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

Householder permission is sought for the construction of a single storey side extension,
following the demolition of the existing temporary single storey side element.

The proposed side extension would be set back from the principal elevation by 2.6m and
would measure 4m in depth, 1.1m in width and would be characterised by a flat roof with a
maximum height of 3m.

The extension would be finished in materials to match the main dwelling.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
67220/APP/2010/2068 27 Kingston Avenue Yiewsley

Single storey rear extension and single storey detached outbuilding to rear with 4 rooflights for
use as storage.

Decision Date: 12-11-2010 Refused Appeal:
67220/APP/2011/9 27 Kingston Avenue Yiewsley

Single storey rear extension with 2 rooflights and single storey detached outbuilding to rear for
storage use.

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 147



Decision Date: 10-03-2011 Approved Appeal:
67220/APP/2015/3634 27 Kingston Avenue Yiewsley

Single storey detached outbuilding to rear for use as an entertainment area, gym and store
(Retrospective)

Decision Date: 05-05-2016 NFA Appeal:
Comment on Planning History

There is also an extant enforcement notice relating the independent residential occupation
of the single storey outbuilding located in the garden to the rear of the house.

2. Advertisement and Site Notice
2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

A total of five neighbouring properties including the Whitehorn Residents Association were
consulted via letter on 19.10.15 as well as a site notice which was attached to the front on
19.10.15.

One comment/ objection received from the owner of 29 Kingston Avenue stating:

As long as the bricks match, isn't an eyesore, is added on the side of the property and not
used for additional occupancy, then no objections.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 148



LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments
5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main planning issues are the effect of the development on the character and
appearance of the original building, the street scene and the level of impact on the
residential amenity and light levels of the adjoining neighbours.

- Character and Appearance

Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part two (Saved UDP Policies) requires alterations
and extensions to existing buildings to harmonise with the scale, form and architectural
composition of the original building. Policy BE13 requires the layout and appearance of
extensions to harmonise with the existing street scene and Policy BE19 ensures any new
development complements or improves the amenity and character of the area.

The Council's Adopted SPD the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement:Residential
Extensions (December 2008) or HDAS, contains design guidance for all types of
extensions. Section 4.0 states: single storey side extensions should not dominate the
existing character of the original property but appear subordinate to the main house. The
width and height of the extension should be considerably less than that of the main house
to appear subordinate, and be between half and two thirds of the original house. Flat roofs
will generally be acceptable over single storey side extension.

The proposed side extension would be set back from the principal elevation by 2.6m, 4m in
depth to line up with the rear wall, 1.1m in width and would be characterised by a flat roof
with a maximum height of 3m. The proposed extension would be less than quarter of the
width of the original house, and would extend the full depth of the existing house as well as
flush with the flank wall of the existing single storey rear extension. The extension would
also retain a 1m gap from the shared boundary to retain access to the rear garden. The
proposed extension by reason of its size, scale, bulk, and height is considered to be a
subordinate addition to the main dwelling.

- Residential Amenity

Policy BE20 requires any new development to be laid out so as to protect the daylight and
sunlight levels of existing houses. Policy BE21 requires new extensions by virtue of their
siting, bulk and proximity would not result in a significant loss of residential amenity to
neighbouring properties and Policy BE24 should protect the privacy of the occupiers and
their neighbours.

The neighbour to the north at No. 29 benefits from no windows across the side flank
elevation, and by reason of the size and scale of the proposed side extension it is
considered to have a negligible impact on the light levels and residential amenities of the
adjoining neighbour.

The adjoining neighbour at No.25 is sited on the opposite side of the proposed development
and would not be visible from their outlook.

The proposed single storey side extension would comply with the objectives set out in
Policies BE19, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 149



- Possible breach of planning control

There is a live enforcement investigation into the use of the existing single storey rear
extension regarding concerns that it is occupied as a separate residential unit. The existing
floor plan shows no direct link between the main house and the existing single storey rear
extension. Whilst the submitted floor plans show this area to be a bedroom, the
enforcement investigation is seeking to check allegations of a possible creation in this
space of a separate kitchen area and separate washroom.

This extension would create the link between the house and the room in the rear extension
to overcome the current need to exit the house to get to it. This would represent the benefit
of tying the extension back into the main house.

Each planning application must be judged on its own merits and the Council could not take
into account the ongoing enforcement allegation. Any grant of planning permission for the
proposed porch would not an impact on the Council's ability to take future enforcement
action if it is later established that the rear extension has been subdivided from the main
house and is being used as a separate independent dwelling.

It is recommended that planning permission be granted.

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HO4 Materials

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building
in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2015). On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 150



Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Part 1 Policies:
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

3 You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
approved drawings as humbered above. The development hereby approved must
be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any
deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local
Planning Authority.

4 You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 151



application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
development that results in any form of encroachment.

5 Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at
any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved
are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7 The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
- carry out work to an existing party wall;
- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining

building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls.
The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by
the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission
does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the
specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
should consult a solicitor.

9 Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 152



particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours
of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public
health nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek
prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate
any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
adjoining premises.

10 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take
appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in
action being taken under the Highways Act.

11 To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
insulation.

12 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made
good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Contact Officer: Naim Poptani Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 153



Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

27 Kingston Avenue
Yiewsley

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
67220/APP/2015/3631 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & S&Gflf 194 May 2016

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 166



Agenda ltem 20

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 176



Agenda ltem 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 184



Agenda ltem 22

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 196



Agenda ltem 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 197



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 206



Agenda Annex

Plans for
Central & South
Applications
Planning Committee

Wednesday 18th May
2016

THILLINGDON

OOOOOO

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 14 MOORFIELD ROAD COWLEY
Development: First floor rear extension

LBH Ref Nos: 69313/APP/2016/203

Date Plans Received: 19/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 25/01/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 208



| i ;...
/ w C
/ | ,
{ \\
/
- - _= ‘
B
| }
i
//. Wj\_ |
| | | (@)
&
o
>
©
o

o

myag

I | e

E%__:_:::;;%___E%EE::%:_EEE






] <]

nl el

Notes:
Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 {the Act),

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database

rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100012283

Site Address:

14 Moorfield Road

Cowley

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Flanning Application Ref:
69313/APP/2016/203

Scale:
1:1,250

Flanning Committee:

Central & Soft@ge 211

Date:
May 2016

W T A
ING DO N

LOKDOR

ILI




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 4 MOORFIELD ROAD COWLEY UXBRIDGE

Development: Three storey building to create 6 x 2-bed self contained flats with associated

parking involving demolition of existing house (Outline application with some
matters reserved)

LBH Ref Nos: 42162/APP/2016/915

Date Plans Received: 03/03/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 03/03/0016
Date Application Valid: 08/03/2016 03/03/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 212



development of 4 Moorfield Road, Uxbridge, London, UBS 35L

umber: 2

wwwww

2 = o]
n_LC-)OgD

0
o=
o~
o
.g>§
O
o
58
0o
Qe
59
T e

[
o2 o
30;
o
oL O
po D
Q5 2
ol
E 2l
20 ¢
558
5059
w00

0 10 20 30 40 50 Meires
l I I 1 1 T

Page 213




91°20°8T 2i0d
TVB0oL:l 2028

€ uaguinp Buimpig T 1

I

Buysixg upjd ajis :SWoN Bumpid saian 0l
1SE€ 89N ‘Uopuo] ‘SBpPUAXN ‘PPOY PISIHOOW P Jo jusiidojeAspay (10s{0k

asnoH Buysixg

b

Page




91°20°8T -2ing

TVYE001:1 2028

§ uaquuiny Buimeig

Buysixg suoypas|3 ;3o Bumpic
1S€ 849N ‘Uopuo? ‘eBpUGX( ‘PROY PISCOW P JO juswdojarapay josoid

[

1

[ T T 1 _
seisw 0oL 64 8 £ 2 § ¥ £ 2T | 0

YuoN BuriooT uoypas|3 epis

s—]

uoypas|3 Uspling
;

L ON

2SNoH Duljsng

Boundary

Boundary

Boundary

Page 215




91°20°8T -2ing

TVYE001:1 2028

¥ Uaquuiny Buimelg

Buysixg suoypas|3 ;3o Bumpic

1S€ 849N ‘Uopuo? ‘eBpUGX( ‘PROY PISCOW P JO juswdojarapay josoid

LT 1

I

ssieiN 0L

b

yinos Bupjoo uoyoas|y pig

UOHDAS| {8348

S50H BUlsiNg . 4

20N J

B 70N

Boundary

h

Boundary

Boundary

Page 216




91'20'82 &3j0d

TVB00L:1 8iPoS

LL saguing Bumeoig

pasodoid ubjd aji§ awop Buimoig

1§€ 88N ‘uopuo ‘eBpLgXn ‘POOY PISIHOOW ¥ jo juswdojarspay josloid

10|14 MON

LT 1

I

ssieiN 0L

b

[
8

I
£

Page




FL'€0°70 =i2d

ZvE00L:1 2P2g

W UOISIA®Y 1 equunn Bumbig

pasodold SUOYDASII + SUDB|d :SWDN Bumpbig

1€ 88N 'UopuoT ‘@BPUAXN ‘PPOY PISIHOOW ¥ JO juswidojaaspay :}03[01d

UODAS|T USPIDS + 2315

C T T T 1

I

s ol 6 B

up|d Joold punois)

[mnl N M

Vil Ea/of og LIy .r;/
A
Y Iy v \ J
UBUDIA uayomy | |
wooipag wooipag wooipag wooipag
L d L d L | L ]

(SMOPUIM OU YJIM JNQ SLUDS UOIDAS|F Y4NoS) UoyoAs|3 YHUON

L

__1

[T
9 g

Page 218




91°20°8T 22d

va00L:l 2028

€1 Uaquiny Buimeig

pasodoigd Suoypas|3 2Wop Bumeig

1S€ 84N ‘uopuol ‘ebpuqx ‘pRoY p|RIHooW p Jo Juswdolaaspay (joaloid

LT T 1

[ T T 1 _
seiaN gL 6 8 L 9§ ¥ £ 2 | 0

yioN BupjooT UoDAS|T SPIS

s—]

|EHEEH]

EHE]

¥

UCUDASIT UspIng

S10J] MaN

CON

7

Boundary

Boundary

Boundary

Page 219




91°20°8T -2ing

TVYE001:1 2028

Z1 dequiny Buimelg

pasodoid suoypas|3 :BWoN Bumpig

15€ 84N ‘uopuo] ‘eBpuqX) ‘POOY PISHOOW ¥ Jo juswdojeAspay :1oa0id

LT 1

ssieiN 0L

[ T T T T 1
68 L 9§ ¥ £ T | 0

yinos Bupoo] Uoyoas|3 Bpis

UOHDAS| {8348

20N J

SO MER . 4

Boundary

Boundary

Boundary

Page 220




Philpots *. |
Bridge:™ 77"

. l|
" Blsub sk

Motes. Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH

Fer identification purposes only COWIE}' Planning S ection
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW

This copy has been made by or with
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

the suthority of the Head of Commities

Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the - - - 5 £
e R Flanning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1288 (he Act) 42162/APP/2016/915 1:1,250

Unless the Act provides s relevant

Sxception o copyright. Flanning Committee: Date:

& Crown copyright and database "
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey Central & Sofutge 221 May 2016 ! O N
1000122832 LOWDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 4 MOORFIELD ROAD COWLEY UXBRIDGE

Development: 4 x 3-bed, semi detached dwellings with associated parking and amenity

space involving demolition of existing house (Outline application with some
matters reserved)

LBH Ref Nos: 42162/APP/2016/912

Date Plans Received: 03/03/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 07/03/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 222



development of 4 Moorfield Road, Uxbridge, London, UBS 35L

umber: 2

wwwww

2 = o]
n_LC-)OgD

0
o=
o~
o
.g>§
O
o
58
0o
Qe
59
T e

[
o2 o
30;
o
oL O
po D
Q5 2
ol
E 2l
20 ¢
558
5059
w00

0 10 20 30 40 50 Meires
l I I 1 1 T

Page 223




91°20°8T 2i0d
TVB0oL:l 2028

€ uaguinp Buimpig T 1

I

Buysixg upjd ajis :SWoN Bumpid saian 0l
1SE€ 89N ‘Uopuo] ‘SBpPUAXN ‘PPOY PISIHOOW P Jo jusiidojeAspay (10s{0k

asnoH Buysixg

b

Page




91°20°8T -2ing

TVYE001:1 2028

¥ Uaquuiny Buimelg

Buysixg suoypas|3 ;3o Bumpic

1S€ 849N ‘Uopuo? ‘eBpUGX( ‘PROY PISCOW P JO juswdojarapay josoid

LT 1

I

ssieiN 0L

b

yinos Bupjoo uoyoas|y pig

UOHDAS| {8348

S50H BUlsiNg . 4

20N J

B 70N

Boundary

h

Boundary

Boundary

Page 225




91°20°8T -2ing

TVYE001:1 2028

§ uaquuiny Buimeig

Buysixg suoypas|3 ;3o Bumpic
1S€ 849N ‘Uopuo? ‘eBpUGX( ‘PROY PISCOW P JO juswdojarapay josoid

[

1

[ T T 1 _
seisw 0oL 64 8 £ 2 § ¥ £ 2T | 0

YuoN BuriooT uoypas|3 epis

s—]

uoypas|3 Uspling
;

L ON

2SNoH Duljsng

Boundary

Boundary

Boundary

Page 226




91°20°8T 22d

va00L:l 2028

9 usquiny Bumelg

pasodolyd upjd ajs 2WDN Bumeic

1S€ 84N ‘Uopuo] ‘eBpUgX( ‘PROY PISIICOW ¥ jo juswidojarapay (0a(0id

uspiog

uspIng

[

I

I

ssieiN 0L

b

[
8

I
£

0

Page




91°20°8T 2i0d
TVE00L:1 2028
$ Uaguinp Buimpig LT T T T 1T T T I
pasodold SUOHDAS|F + SUD|d ‘SN Bumpig seHSWN DL &6 8B £ 2§ ¥ £ ZT I 0
1SE 89N ‘Uopuol ‘sBpuUgXN ‘PROY PIBWICOW P Jo juswdolarspay jos(0id

UDid SO0 punolsy - | adA] asnoy uonoas|] sy - | adA] ssnoH

LELIN

[CLL]]

i,
Bujuigjusysy ﬁ Q H_ Q
upld locd punois) - z adA] asnoy uoloAS|3 Joey - 7 adA] 8snoH n%w ‘&v IH_E (L
i oM

—r— —— o

= = I ==
3

I UM ML

| upid ool jsii4 - | 2@dAl asnoH
Bulcg/usuouy

@ _ﬁB._ : E | Eoo_nwﬂ ucooﬁmm
V)

upld Jooy jsild - g 2dA] ssnoH

i

]

wioapay

uolDAS|3 3PIS - 7 2dAL asnoH UoHDAS[ juol] - Z @dAl asnoH uopAsg 8pis - | adAl asnoH UolpAS[] Juold - | @dAl 8snoH

Page 228

% y Z..MEE g




91°20°8T -2ing

TVYE001:1 2028

£ Uaquiny Buimeig

pasodoid suoypAs|3 :3LUDN Bumpic

1S€ 89N ‘uopuo] ‘aBpugx( ‘PROoY PI2IHoOW P jo juawdojaaspay (joaf0id

LT 1

I

ssieiN 0L

b

yjnos Buyoo uoyoas)g epig

SSS00H MBN 2 &

UOHDAS| {8348

20N J

ZON

Boundary

Boundary

Boundary

Page 229




91°20°8T -2ing

TVYE001:1 2028

g uaquiny Buimeig

pasodoid suoypas|3 ;3L Bumpic
1S€ 849N ‘Uopuo? ‘SBpUgX( ‘PROY PIBCOW P JO juswdojarapay josoid

1

[ T T 1 _
seisw 0oL 64 8 £ 2 § ¥ £ 2T | 0

YuoN BuriooT uoypas|3 epis

s—]

UCUDASIT UspIng
i

TN

x

CON

1l

m

Boundary

1]

Boundary

Boundary

Page 230




Philpots *. |
Bridge:™ 77"

. l|
" Blsub sk

Motes. Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH

Fer identification purposes only COWIE}' Planning S ection
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW

This copy has been made by or with
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

the suthority of the Head of Commities

Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the - - - 5 £
e R Flanning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1288 (he Act) 42162/APP/2016/912 1:1,250

Unless the Act provides s relevant

Sxception o copyright. Flanning Committee: Date:

& Crown copyright and database "
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey Central & Sofu@ge 231 May 2016 | O N
1000122832 LOWDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address BRUNEL UNIVERSITY KINGSTON LANE HILLINGDON

Development: Variation of condition 2 (Submitted Plans) of planning permission Ref:
532/APP/2014/2161 dated 24/02/2015 to alter the parking layout (Installation ¢
52 additional parking spaces)

LBH Ref Nos: 532/APP/2016/210

Date Plans Received: 19/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 18/02/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 232



JL0Z 099 S umwE  glasy mEE Y@ oont o

Widil i ous Bunsixy

AL TR T | uepbiulfH ‘sue voisbury
Ausuanun punsg

MIHES + SINAVE AVHD sy Bne
mepu) e Ay vomas
¥ Suw &L v o e Dunyg
L L0 i D rige sy Bugerg
s Sy
@ Rl £l ) DOy CHETEN D)

Iyt @aeif yim weishs
pub wendwoo sans
‘sheg Bupjed Bunsig

WADUS | ON Suaisod Jsueg meu fuy

“UMOLS 100 Sainpasod uawkedsxersaoueiua wed jed o) aBeufiig,
‘(s00z 1sed ping ybaypeos gio ‘Ba)

s1e0 Wb sebie) 1oy apqeunsun a0 ABwW SK AN '00FZX008Y AUE sazis Aeg
'UONESUCUINE Ap0D

A Ll SIBUUEG BIA DISSET08 BJE B1IS (BUNIE BUI WIgHM seaue Buped |1y .
UONINSUOD O

deud 2)1s U0 PE¥IAYD S0 0) pus paRddng LOMRUUOJU WOJ) PRWNSSE 51888 ,
UGBS0

1o Bumas o) Joud a)s UO PENDAYD B 0) SUOMSCH BIMIBE SIS ,
‘uoionsued g no Bupes o) Joud S1IS UD PaYIBYD G O) SUCIELBWIC 1Y .
'SSIEMIORU) LIEIIOD PINCD SlojRiaL) PUB ejep sw) |0 webjewe ue s

PUB §LOZ Jegoiag pelep dew sndwes 8 ' [00g pelep Aanns aau B 'SLOZ 280
B 900z Bny polep ABans [E2IG0IDCD WoJ) USYE] SEUCTBWUOU) ABAINS S L.

sajoN

wol

ueg SSBID

abelo) Bunsixg

peol aend fem oML

‘afieuielp sajep, soeung Bunsixg

SBUO0IS QoY
818J0U02 pawJojaid
i Juswaaed
ajalouog Bunsixg

Buiping amo ydasor

Vid/I ul 8)s Bunsixg

sajdepy AevuoN sael |1y

ajdey
Ae
Bung

wcwEm_Gwm_

sBuippng Jo el
0] asuenul paleD

e



Umumuw._v_cwm G umeip  GLsey s Ly eopuy  ees

Ibdil w aug Bunsig

uepBuliH ‘sue uoisbury
Angaamr jpunig
(esodolg Suming

‘abeulesp
=TT
aoBung
Bunsix3

LGS LON SUomsod e mau Ay
LGS 10U v d awhed sy weilUa sied ed o) afeubig,

*(5002 150d pling uBypeos yo “Ga)

s Wb sabie 1o) aigelinsun aq Aew S A'N 00FZX008EF 2I2 Sazis feg ,

| uohesoying spas

Ao Y SIBLIBG BN PESSA0OE I8 SIS [BUNUE BU) Ul seaue Bupied Iy .
LanIsue oy

Joud BI% un PERDSLD B OF PUE PEUNS LONBULTI Wy PAWLNSSE Sjana ,
“UBHOASUON

w no Bumas o Joud a)js uo PaxsayD aq o) suoiisod alIAEE NG ,
UCRINASUTD § N0 BUies o) Joud 1S U0 Pax2ayD aG O} SUHSUBWIC I .
‘SBITEINDOBU UIEIUOD PINCD SU0jauel) PUE E1E0 SW) |0 WEDBWE U 5i

PUB §LOZ 480100 paep dew sndwes &' 100z palep feans B84 B "G10Z 290
2 g00E By palep Apwns (exbojodo) wol USYE] S| UoNBULOH ABAnS Siy,

SejoN

Kayy uoneoo] slg

20BLINS 8)8J0UCd U0
sheg Bupped Bunsixg

Pavement

private side road

abeiojg aunoag

peos apis ajeaud

ovd/

aide

| Ul &)IS Bunsix3

peos
uo Bunjey
Bunsixg

Bueysean
Buipying
joaun

‘abeueip
J91EM

aoeung
Bunsix3

abBeuleip
Js1ep jnod
Bunsixg

anual podsiojop [Burug

Page 234



ov0z 9095 e v S i Avd/I ul 8us Bunsixg

Qe BuS Bunsixy

i
s yenud fert o
UepBUIH "euE uoisBury ped
Ausianrn jaunig
[esodolg Suiieg
mepu L g JroUten
W amy L oo sy i3 BuRimg
H g 8l s 1m0 o Banrrg
g pangodn
5 Gy ow e i O i

SToP

sjanp

20lMTE
Buysixg

%,

abeijo4 Bunsixg o&_

%,

00\ | I (e B 18
881n00
81em
[BINjEU
Bunsixg

SIBUNS S}8J2U02 UD

sheg Bunyey Bugsixg
-afeuelp

Jzlep
80BUNg Y
Bunsiag

Page 235

UMOYS | ON suotisod sawen mau fuy
A f wied je0 o) abieudis,
{500z 150d pina uBiypec) jo Ga)

e Wby Jebie; Jo) algeynsun aq AR SIU) 8N TODFZX00BE Me saas Aeg ,
“UOHESUOLINE BROD

Aay Y SISLIBG BIA DBSSBO0E BIE S| [EUnig ay) uiym seade Gunped |y .
UGHSMISU0a &

100d BYS LD PAYIBUD 9 0) PUE PaItANS LONBLLCIUI WEY PRUNSSE SjaRaT ,
"uofjonisUCD

g ino Bumes o) soud ays ue payaayd aq of suonsod aolnEs aYS .
WOnINNSU0D g Ino Bumas o) soud as uo PeNDAELD B0 01 SUSISUBLNG (Y .
“SBIDRINITEU UIBILGD RINGD SJCI3RA PUE BIER SI41 JO weiEwe ue 5|

PUE GLOZ J8GEI90 PEIED dew sndwed B LONZ PAIEp Aans s B ‘5102 990
¥ 9002 By paten Aawns eaboodo) W) USHE) ST UONBULIOIUL ABRNS $ILL,

TUMOLS 0L

ss8ID)

Pavement

private side road

sajoN

fey| uonEoo BlIS

SSRID

auy

2

s au| i



050Z'7099

GLaen dirp

oL e

Wd ut Buisieg pasodoly

MIHS + S3aNAYE AVvHSD
g e

[
mew 6l

uepBulfiH ‘sue uoisbury
Ausuanun punsg
(esodolg Subieg
Ay

w
8 su®g sl

E s 1)

Bunybe] Q8w 49 $S-05EHOTI0FEMH
asguinu [Epow ‘Bunytin 037 pucwed Aemubiy 8q o) jsod dwe) map .

DLO 198 Aiijenba au) pUg BOOZE0ZGL
SLNID OO PEpURS USIug 1S3 0 Pajelsul squey paddap sof Buwed sioe]

afeubis Alajes e Addns o] J0128U00 ,

WD G
peasie aq o punodwos pasnbes Aus g Buip/eoy JOIDBIU0D JO SUOTEI0T ,

uonesyeds pUR SEElap 5,30
o) “shemeyeos Aue Bupnious Jsiem soeung pue INoj 4o} suru slisuelp may ,
fang| afa 18 SArq pajgesId §0 Uy W padeidaIn aq o) sBeubs aleudoiddy |
umEls | ON suohisod Jateg smau Sy,
LMD 0L o Jusifed sy wied seo o) ebeubis
‘{500z 1s0d.png ubkypeo: yo Ba)
sies B Jabe jo) ajaeinsun aq few s aN DDFZX00RE e seais Aeg
uCRDIDRUS PUB SIEIBP 5,30 895 " SHom AemyBiny 1oy uoneoyiasds,
[wH) Anusby shemuBin yum aouepionse u Buyouney pue steq Bused ,

‘BUBYDS BOUBLBIUIEL
w Buwapied e 5 pung oju) pajelodsodu) 54 o) pappe Bugued smau Auy |

“Auoyimy Bulugld 2007 8l o JUSSUD uslium soud )
NOGHM ‘DSIRRID aSMUaI0 10 Bnp aq [BYS SRYIUEI] JBUI0 S0 SUR UlBID O -

PUE IWING BQ [JEYS BISEM JO S|BLIBL Opy -
PRUOHEIS JO PEIEIE 84 JIBuS sBuppng Amiodws) 36 Bupimg op -
PRIOIS B0 J|Bus e |0 S|EuRieL o -

fanap punouB u safiueys ouBg eys aiall -

TSRO B5aL) W enamed U pUB S:u0M aug) O BEIN0D Bu)
Buunp pacumsipun wiewa jeys Bususy aagoajoud pascidde auy) uigw ease

| ‘paldwiod s juawdoasap [nun worisod ) pauieas aq (eus Buus) auy ,
{5 LoN09g) Z10Z:LE855E O Joke; q)ssaudwon B UD SPUBoG pOjEDS
Buimng apis pue ouge; apxaroal yum paisaoud 80 0 SEE WonDeoud 100y .
uonaaieud 1004 10y S8 510618 1B BasE Aue u paunbas BuBBio puey ,
SRS PIOJRIS S0 ST LI YIGMBLWEL BIOJEDS
PEoEg 0) PAoBULDT Sisued usaw pram Yby yim ey wee 8q o) o fg
pajoaya 8q o} sie soay) alaym ease Aue U sadoues aax o) Buioua) aanseold .
‘LONaRUISUDD
0o Bumas o} soud B)iS Ut LEYIAYD B Of SUDIISOD B2IABS 8IS .
uoganIsueD
o] Joud BYJS U0 PEYIBYD BO 0] PUE PENGUNS UONBWUDJU WoJ) DEWNSSE 5|88,
WOIHUSUDS B 1IN0 BUmas o Joud 15 uD PENIEuD. 80 0) SUOISUEW Iy .
"SHIDEINIGEU WEUOD RINOD BIDjAIEY) PUe Bjep Sy jo webiewe ue 5
pug §102 1830190 Palep dew snowed & 1002 PSIEP ABnnS san 8 'GL0Z 980
2 qo0g By patep fanwns @0ibojodo] Woup UDYE) SI LONBULOILY ASANS U] ,

sajoN

woL 8 9 ¥ ¢

sjueg sseio

e fugpunog

saoines Bunsixe uim sensst ,_,
ou Bulunsse aoueIes|d Wg 10}
Moj|e 0] yoeq 18s sheq Bupped

Buined
BIO.) Uit

Buiyoey Aeq paigesip
quay paddoig

= |
mik Ll

juiod jno Bumes Vo

pale00|aypaAoLIB]

afielo; Bunsixg

ag o} s150d ubi
SJUBLIBAE

maushieq Bupued Jo jang)
Q) MBUBA0D JUBIDAY/SIBADD
BjoyUBW SSB08Y

Buipjing emo ydasor

1sod
dwe|
mau

sfeq Bunped
Pa|gESIp Wol) SS8008
Joj sqiay paddaoig
‘Bunsixe yoiew

o) Juawaned map)

janesf upm Wwashs
puB endwos
$aNS sfeq mau

V{d/| ul Buisied pssodold

(sxiom Aq pajoayeun)
sajdey AemuoN saa1) |y

‘abeulelp Jeep, acepng Bunsig

™0

Buimed Al
ajioe) yim

(0]
gqiay paddoig Ewﬁ@m
e
jued no Bumes ? i
paueal i
1s0d !
dwe|

pajielap se
uohosjoud
EEI

panouia)

‘aq oy abeyjoy
Bunsixy

sBuipiing Jo Jeal
0] aouBuT palen)

[




090Z°7099 SLumep  gLew e yeons e

Brd) n Buiyiey pasodougy

LA R i i i uepBujy ‘sue) uvoisbury

Ausianrn jaunig

MIHS + S3aNAYE AVvHSD |esedog Buming
e g Ay ey
¥ amsew w st e e B
B Lm0 8l TRCOn Wi i ey
irprargs m T
@ 50 i s D, (AN b i)

BB gsv A9 PS5OSO I00EI0MH Jeawny japow ‘BunyBy g3
pucwer AesuBiy 80 o) 1sod dwe) wan L0102 198 AlEnba BU) PUB BO0ZE0EST
SLNID (0 PIEPUELS YSIUE 158 0) PajiEIsw Sqay paddap o) Buined apoey ,

afeuis Aajes (e fddns o) sopenuon ,
B L
poaube ag ol d p fug g B o e
co_“wuu.gaw pue m__.ﬂm_u 530
0 “sheneyecs Aue BUIpniou) JOiEm GoBUNS PUE (N0 J0y Suns sBEUIRID MEN .
1ana) 8he 18 Sleq PeIORSID jo U0y U paldedsip ag o sbeubis sieudouddy
uMAUS LON Sutrsed aweq mau Auy
UGS 10U saunpantld Juswled siasasuenus wed Jeo o) ebeulig
‘15002 150d ping yBiwpeos yo Ga)
=ie2 1B sefie) 1oy ajgaynsun a0 Aew i) TGN O0FZX008r 2B saas feg ,
.._o_ﬁu_._._umam PUE SIIEI80 5,30 898 mfa.s AemuBy Jop uopempsads,
() AouaBy stemuBiy yim Iy 5 u pue sheq Hused .
BUWBLDS BOUBLEILIEL
» Buwspet jeiann $ [pung o paisodioou ag o] peppe Buiued mau fuy |
Aoy BUULRL] (2207 BU) J0 JUSSUOD USLs Jowd &)
INGLM "PAIESID SSIMISWIC 10 BAD 24 |ByS SaYDUBI SIS0 JO SUMI LIBIP ON -
PUE JLING B4 ([BYS SISEM J0 SBUSIEL O} -
“pAUCE)S 0 pajoain ag jeys sBuping Aesodwa) Jo Buipiing op -
PaIols 8q yeys Jued jo SsEualewWw o -
jana) puncul vl sabiueyD ou B ||BuYS aey L -
(SRRUE G5B UIEINSMIED U1 DUE SYI0M BU J0 353000 B4
Buunp pegqinisipun wiewas (eys Buious) aandeimd pasoudde au) i eae
Bl “paa|tiues 51 JUSLIdGRASP [IUN Lcthised Ul PaURIa) B4 (iBys Bupus) ay) ,
(6 UoNDS) ZLOZ /ERGSE O sake S|qssaudWOD B LG $pIeng Dloyess
Bunng apis pue auge) ajl B g p d 8q 0} SE2JE Liof d ooy .,
uoiaai0sd 100) J0) S9a0 S1088 18y sase fue ur pasnbas GuiBBip puel ,
“SOWE(D DIOIEIS 40 Buleh LI SOMIWE PIO|EDS
PEIRIG 0] PEDBULOD sPUEd ysaw plam YBk W uBiey we'Z eq o ‘jiom Ag
PElIaNS B0 0} 2I8 5960 suaym ease Aue ur sandoues s o) Suue) anoaiold ,

UGN AMSUGD

F 1no Buies o) Joud a)s UG Payoayd 8y o) suonised S21MSS SIS ,
UanIMSL0D

a) Jopd ais uo paN2sya aq 0] puE paydd: A L} slanat,

‘usanAsues g ino Bumes o) soud aus uo EENI8UD B0 O] SUSISUBUIT 1Y .
"SBIDEINDIDEUT UBII0D PINOS SI0JaUa01 DUB BIED S 0 WeBPwe ue 5|

pUE G10Z 1990100 pelep dew sndued 8 *|L0oz pelep Asuns aai B ‘G102 290
B op0z Bny pelep Aesang 1eoiBopodo) Wosp UsHE| 51 UONBLLOU ABNS SIy) ,

sajoN

fany co;muﬁ aus

woL 8 9 ¥ ¢ 0

syt

|laaeiB Yy wizlshs
pub wendwos sang
‘sheg Bupjed Bunsixg

(adojs 0z ut | uey;
559|) “Buipuels
ey Buysixg

STOP

..cw(cw__fmm

peos
uo Bumied
Bunsig

peos spis apeaud

avd/| ul Buiyied pasodoud

: : e @um_z_.ﬁ fer oMl
.EwEm_Zm&
siyut [pAeIB yim
wialshs pub ueydwoo
sans sheq man
pays sbeioig @ N~
g
3 ™
E 8 al
@ Aeq [0}
2 Bupyied mau Jo (93] 0) (@)
¥ 1BN0D JUBRIDAY SSB08Y ©
o
L i o) _rl |
.
— 4
Aeq Buiued
10 [9AB| 0] S18A0D
9 55819 ajoyuew sseosy  @beRURID
-y FEY=TYY
aoepng
gl Bunsixa
| &
L -
—— T Ll
4 saaias Bunsixe yim sanss! ‘abieulesp
. ou BulluNSSe 80URIES|D WY 10} 131 Ino4
_— | mo||e 0] ¥oeq jos sheq Bupiey Bunsixg
BgRs
8 |
iod no Bunes

uoneayioads pue sjelep
s Jeauibug [eowos)3 o) sheg
BuiBieys Joj yuod BuiBieyn



JL02°7099 SLumep  gLew e yeons e

el il D — —

wol

D) un Buisieg pasoday
LA R i i i uepBujy ‘sue) uvoisbury

Ausuanun punsg

MIHS + S3aNAYE AVvHSD [esodolg Buieg
o) ] [
v e W D 20 2 Bt
A m s i s e
R MO
3 anwl @ 5 Gy DORECOR i

Bunubry gsy A9 #5050 108E0MH

Jaquinu Epow ‘Bunybi g3 puoweg Aemubiny 89 01 150d dwel mapy ,

0102 198 Alente 8u) BUS B002:60251

SL/NZD (0 PIEPURIS USHUE IS8 O) Dajelsy: sQisy paddosp Joy Buined apoey ,
abieulis fiajes (e fiddns o) Jopoenuan ,

DD LI

pesube ag o] punoduwsos pasmbas fue g Blapreoy JOIDBAUCD |0 SUDNE20T .,
uonEdyDads pue spe1sp 5,30

o “shemeyeos Aue BUIRniou JaIEm BIBLNS DUE NG) JOj Sung seump map ,
|BaE) Bha je sieg pajgesip o oy u patedsip aq o) abeubis ajeudosddy
umMays 10N suotsod Jauieg mau Auy

‘umoys 1ou sasnpasoud wawdedsixesasuenua yed 1eo o) abeubig | S|IBlep 10} 807
{500z 1sod pying ubiypeos Jo *Ba) Buimelp aag
sue0 1By safie) o) ajgeunsun aq ABw SIY1 @ N "O0FZX008Y 28 saas Aeg .

uonesyseds pue sElap 5,30 995 " syiom Aemubiy Jop uonestyisads,
() Anuabiy Loy WYY D ur B | pue sheq Bunied ,
BLLEYDE S0UBUSILIEW
w Guuspreb geiasg 5 jBunig oul pejeiediosur aq o) peppe Gujued mau fuy ,
Auouny Buiuueld (8207 S4) j0 JUSSU0D uallim Joud By)
InoLw "PATEID BSIMIBLIO 10 BNp B4 [BUS S2UDLRIL JBI0 JO SUM B DN -
PUE TWNG 30 |[BYS S)SEM JO SIELSIEL DN -
PAUCHEIS J0 paloaa aq feys sBuping Aeiodwa so Buiping o -
DAIDIS 80 EYS JuBld jo SIELEIEW Oy -
jans) puncufi ul sebuByd ou B ([BYS BB -
SRR BEAY) U IB|Roed W DUR SHI0M BU) J0 85N B
Buunp paginisipun uieway [eys Bunus) sanasiosd pasoidde syl urim ease
ay) ‘paje|twed st uBwdoEASD [lun LoKEed U peuRIAL Bq |eys Buiduay g ,
{5 Uonoas) 2102 0558 o) fade] ajqssaudwon 8 LD SpIend ployes
Buigng apss pue 2uqe| 9 0 p d &g ol SeaE Loy d 100y .
uanaeicsd 1001 J0) S8aU) 512848 1By) BaUe Aue Ut padnbal Bu)Bip puen
“SUWRID DIOJEIS 10 BUM I HIOMEILE) DIOjEIS
paneia o parauuod spued ysaw plam by wm uBieu we'g 50 o) yom g
Pajoaye B0 U} 318 $95) SIsUM BasE AUk Ul SeidouRD Bau] 0) BuIous) antaRl0ld ,

‘uolBNIStoa
g na Gumas o) soud ays U0 PEN2EYD 50 0] SuoHsod SRS SIS
UORINASL0D

O] JOid B)ES UD DENIBLD BG O PUB D ) L0 SjNET .

“uonannsuos g ino Bumes o) soud aps :o.vaxus_._.u 90 0} SUDISUBUIG IV .
*SSIOBINIOBUI UIBIUOD PIN0D SX0J858U) PUB BIED $I4) 0 Webiewe ue 5|
PUEGLAZ 180000 pRleR dew sndwen e ' LO0Z PelER ABng Sai) B 'Gi0E 280
7 0002 Gy pajep Aaung jeaiBoedo) wosy use) 1 uonELLoU Aarns Sy,

S9IN paAowal
spJejloq
Bupsix
80Uz
‘Buissoio
pa|gesip
MOjjE 0}
usaaed
10 UoIDeS
MapN

fey| uonEoo BlIS

private side road

S58IE)

palieisp se
uopoajosd
EEIT

Buined ajnoe) uim qiay paddoig

Buyoley Aeq pajgesip

pauleal
1sod duwe|

D7d/I Ul Buied pesodold

ajdew peas

uo Bunjed
Bunsixg

poe (802 Buimelp
85) USHIPUOD

uo Buipuadap
paoe|dal/0ea0|es
pue o@,o.._.%o_amz

ﬁ:ﬁm..%t._ou 1o

- pua) juod 108 Bumes
o
[sEilzlelo EET] L
jsoddue)

Bunsixa aoeds

Bupped woy

8oUBIES|O WY

. i 1oj mojje o) @

Lo .w % psoddo aoeds
uied no ' :

Bumes saojAas Bunspa yim sanss

ou @EE:mmm BOUBIESID WG JO)
Mo|[e 0} 3oeq 85 sfeq Buryed

paaowal
80 0} JAUIBIUOD

-abeueip
Ja1eM, INo4
I Bunsixg
‘abBeueip
JBIEM anuan podsioop [sunig
RIS
Bupsixg

liyun jeaeal yim weisAs
pub ueydwos ggns sAeg mau



08027099 Gaw e e ooy mes

Qi) up Buisiey pasodoug

uepBulfiH ‘sue uoisbury

Ausianrn jaunig

MIHS + S3aNAYE AVvHSD [esodog Buing
=g ] Jre——
¥ g El Dinge a0y s
L] B L TR LT W P I
s Em oty
5 s @ i xp EpTn By

Q102 108 Ayenba syl pue go0Z'6025E
SLNID 00 PIEDUEIS USIUE |58 OF Pajeisy) souey peddosp Joj Buined anaey .
afeuliis Aajes e Aiddns ol Jojoeauog ,
RUCT-RHITS
pasbe 8g o) punodwos pannbas Aue § Buipieoy J0j2eNuea J0 sucleo"
uonedysads puB SEIER 5,30
o) ‘shemeyeos Aue Buipniou) seem a3euNS pug ndy 10) suru sBeueip map
|ana) ads 12 sfeq pajgesip jo 1oy U padeidsip aq o) abeulis seudouddy |
UMOUS | suspsed Jaeq mau fuy ,
umoys jou saunpaosoud Juswiedsipasacuenua ywed Jea o abeudig ,
. 200z 150d pyrq ybiypeos yo -Ga)
sieo by Jebie) Jo) IGEINSUN 30 AR SI41 G N DOEZX00RY e $azs Arg ,
UoHEDDEE PUE SHRlap $,370 885  syiom AemyBiny o) uoneopDads,
(wH) Aouaby I Y I8 Ut | pue sheq Busied ,
“BUEYIS SOUEUSILIBL
3 Buwapued jjeiann 5 unig olu paleiocioou aq o pappe Bunued mau Auy ,
Auouiny Buiuued 12207 B0 0 JUSSU0D UM Jowd s
L PRIEDID BSINISLI0 J0 BN eg (|BYS SBYDUBI JBLI0 SO SUMNI WEID ON -
PUE SUING B0 |[BYS BISEM J0 SIEUSIEW ON -
“PAVCHES 40 AR aq eys sBuppng Aeiodwe) o Buiping o -
Peuols 8 jIeys Jued jo sjeusew oy -
el punoab v sabueys tu 8Q Rys aiBy) -
'3eaUR 5584) Ul JBinaed LI PUE SRIOM BU) JO 8SIN03 au)
Buunp paqimsipun wiewal jeys Buroua) annoeioud pascidde auy) uiim eare
ay) pajaidwod s uawdoEaap [un uolsod U peuiEa) aq (ieys Guoue) ayy ,
(6 uON2es) Z10Z-LEAG5E O JAAE] S|QISSadI0D B UD SPUBDG RIOYEIS
Buming aps pue DUge) apxeost Y paiaeind 89 0] Seale Uit jooy
uagoslesd 1001 10) $98U] S10aY5 JeU) Base Aue Ul pasnbes BuBBip puey ,
"SOWED PIORBDS 10 S0 LI $IOMSIUE DIOHEDS
pacaiq o) palsauucd spued ysaw plam ybing yus uBiay we'z a0 o) ‘Siom Ag
paloaje aq o) e S9al) aaum Baie Aue ul sadoued aan o) Buicua) angoenosd
‘UORIMIIEUCD
g ind Bupias o] soud as U0 payaud 8g o) suonsod aoas aNg ,
UORDMASLOD
) Jod S)IS U0 PayBYD G &) PUR DEddng UDIBLLIoIU WY DSWNSSE SanaT
“LOIANZUOD § In0 BUMas &) toud S}S UG PaYIaLD B O} SUDISUSWIA |y ,
“SBIDRINI0R UIRILDD DIN0S Bs0jasau) pUE 2lep syl jo webiewe ue si
PUE §L0E 1aama0 palep dew sndlled e 00g palep Aawns 8al) B '510Z 280
g an0z Bry palep Aevens e0iBojodol wosy usket s1 uoneULo Aanins sy ,

sajoN

fey| uonEoo BlIS

=z —

wol

Buined a)oB) yim qiay

doug ‘paseye yied juswaned

|ans| U abueys
D]EPOWODDE 0] passasal
Janoa sjoyuew Bunsixg

sjonp
aoinas Bunsixy

2SIN0D J81EM
|esnjeu Bunsixg

uonisod mau o]
paoe|daypaiedcal
Buides aloweois

uonsod
MaU 0] PaloRo[al
jsoddwe| Bunsixa

abieyo Bunsixg

uomsod mau u|
peoejdaypeioecial
wesuq aliym |ews

2107 Bumesp

aag "ajdep
paseday/pajeanisy
0 Uolysod

uonisod
Mau o}
pajoecjal
jsoddue)
Bunsixa

iod 1no
Bumes

pajielap se
uonaayoud
2a]

peol awend

fetn OML

|

awy

dvd/I ul Bupped pesodoid

sselb pue

BUOIS GidY

7 R W
S
| S S . -
7. — B
7I - ¥l
7 £l
| 2l
| L
| e |
_. o .m!. 1%
7 &
I
i
i f———
=
@
3 g
Fol) [ .|
[&}
m 7
£
o 5
= i
@
g
= 21
= 7 £l
| |
| z
| el
w | [ |
g
-3
| |
B
||||||||||||| :

aw|

©gToP

aoeuns
DRUDUOD
uo

sheg
Bupueq
Bunsixg

-abieuieip
JBEM
aoeung
Bunsixg

private side road (Tarmacadam)

Buined ajioe)
U gy doug

e 239

[yt |oDB
Yim wafds
pufb eydeeo
5ans

sheq mau

sheq Bupped jo
sjielap Jol 02
Bummeip aag

580185
Bunsixa

LIim S8nssi
ou Bulwnsse
SOUBIESD
wg 10} moj|e
0] %oeq 185
sheq Bupued

sheq Bupied jo
| SiEleR 40y L02
_ m.c_s,m_ommw



N e e

(I S S |

i

Motes:

Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database

rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100012283

Site Address:

Brunel University
Kingston Lane

LONDON BOROUGH

Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW

OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
532/APP/2016/210 1:1,250
Flanning Committee: Date:
Central & SE#GE 240 |  May 2016

LOKDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address BRUNEL UNIVERSITY KINGSTON LANE HILLINGDON

Development: Variation of condition No.2 (Submitted Plans) of planning permission Ref:
532/APP/2014/2163 dated 24/02/2015 to alter the parking layout (Installation ¢
42 additional parking spaces)

LBH Ref Nos: 532/APP/2016/211

Date Plans Received: 19/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 15/02/2016

Central & South Planning Committee -18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 241



0¢LZ'v099 i

Asy uoneoo aig

glaey mep Ly e o0uE  mes

D1l i Bus Bunsixy

uepBulfiH ‘sue uoisbury
Ausuanun punsg
(esodolg Subieg

¥ mew & o i A B
[

B L0 EL e e plm et
spesipe et

o sw0 om o e D Dnmai]

upL 8 8 ¢ ¢ 0

Buipying uondsoay
o] 8s0j0 pue Bubiied uvew Wwoy
pajesadas Bupped pajgesig

aoueiua
ediea
uisixg
sjun pajeas
un juawdinbe

uoneysgng
jeouioale Bunsixg

‘siaueq [elew Buipueiseay Ag
Peyo0|q BOUBHLT 'OBULIE] S| 80BUNG
“wiedien 0] aaUeUa SNolAdld

nusayD
BULAMOLY sseib
Huid .

sseub

sheq Bupped

ay) Buppew sy2ug aliym
passacal ujim ainopiey
pausnio pajoediwod

aue sheq Bunsixg

Bupyng
sUYor1g
o} yBnouy)
anoy

UMDLS [ Suonsed JsUieq mau Auy

"WMOLS Jou D ! i oueiuS yed seo o) abeub
"[5002 180d piing yBiypeol yo Ba)
sieD B sebue) Jop sigepnsun ag Aelt SAD BN 00FEX008E B8 sezs Aeg
“UDNESLOYINE 3p0D
Ko Ui SIBLIEG BIA PISSHOTE BIE SIS jBUNIE BU) wiyim Seae Bunped Iy,
LIRSS 0}
Joud ays ub Pe¥saYD ag o) puR payddng LoKERUDIL WoLY PALNSEE SfEMaT
“UORSNASUOD
% 1no Bumas o) Joud als o PaXSAYD 8 0] SUOHIEDD BIMISS IS .
‘uoonIstod g Ino Buias o) Joud S)s UD PAYIIYD G O] SUCISUBWIC IV .
‘SOITRINIOEU WIBIIOD PIROD SU0jBUaY] PUE BIBP Syl jo weblewe ue s
PUB GLOZ JRGoi20 paER dew sndwed 8 ' Lgog pelep Aenns aad B '5L0Z 280
% 9007 Bny paiep faans [exbojpdo) wod) uye; S UoTELLOLI Samns sy,

saj10N

0ld/I Ul 8us Bunsixg

Page 242

Jxa
Wedies
Bunsxg



QELZ D099

Bl umwp Loy mep iV eooLE e
O T I v Mt Dl i Bulyied pasodosy
ik | o uopBuljiH "sue) uoisbury ;
Ausuanun punsg b
MIHS + SINAVYE AVHD o BB \
BT A —— 7
f i =0 a1 ‘.Arlgx‘gfﬂﬂa?ﬂaﬂﬂ
St mm el
ER = e g
woL 8 9 ¥ [4 0
Buiping uondaosas
o} 8500 pue Bubyied UIBW Wos uonEolioads pue sjiesp
pajesedes Bunyed pajgesiq s Jeouibul |eouyoa|g 0 sAeq
BuiBieys soy Juod Buibreyn
pajielap se ey
uonosoud T B ____
281] o e X : i
20} uoHE3D| .....\.1..-.. A X \
Jaieq isixg } ¥ b
\ i ! 3
,._ k ._. §
§ 1 1 !
K 5 | xidjy s
y Aa ke = !
i 1 yige T . |__
.. 2 ¥ _._ __ ___
11x3 sped len \ | ! \
| | |
\ \ ___ ,__ %
__. Y n __ e
30 = y
o el
7 wed jno Buyies g
seale T Buined anoe)
uonoaosd 1004 . pue qiay paddoup
0} uoIsnAsul UM papuaixs yied E
[BLUIUIL U =%
N0 payew ) | | l
paau Auo o T ___ ____ | \ \
sheq ‘eaie — | \ | | | |
siy ul Bunsie . \ \ | \ b w _
st jpresb | | ____ o =1 \
payedwod g | X ____ | = Sl | \ ___
! | ....__ x| L __ | | | \
2| 1 i 1 | \ \
e - | 1 1 | \
2 | ___ e | n 6y
[ \ a o
T =
sj|un pajeas =
. wiuswdinbs seale uonoalold
2 uonesqgns 100 O} UOISNUSU [BUIUIL 4)IM N0
jeowyoale Bunsixg payiew paau Aluo sheq ‘eale siy)
u) Bunsixa s1 janelf pajoedwoo ) i
" oy 1
- W] ...__ et \
- ...__ ___ | 1
_ \ _
L 1 1
b

198 Aujenba aul pUE 8002360251 SLINGD OO PAEOUEIS USIIE ISE 01 Pelleisy| sqia paddoip Jo) Buied sjioe .

0Loe

abeubis Ajajes (e Addns o) Jojoeauos

“juays i peaibe 9 o} punodues pannbss Aue g BUIpIEOY JOINEGUOD O SUNIEDOT ,
uohespoeds PUB SIRIBH 5,30 0 ‘shemeneos Aue BUIDNoU SSIEM B0ENS PUR N0J J0) Sury sBeump may .
[Bne) Bl e sAeq paIgesp 0wy w peledsip aq o) aleuths seudniddy |

UMOYS [ON Suoi
o awked

sod e smau Aoy ,
“UMOYS JoU et
‘{500z 1s0d ping 4Biwpeos yo ‘Ba)sieo by Jebre) sof ajgeynsun ag AR S0 BN O0FZX008Y 4e So2is Aeg ,

aug - Suow femybiy so) voneagoeds; (yiH) fousby

wed jea o) abeubig ,
uopempads pue SHEEp 5,30
WG i 82 g Buny; | pue sAeg Dupped .
‘awsYIs suEUBIUIEW ¢ Buliapuet |B19A0 5 BUNg 01U paleiodioau 8q o] peppe Bupueid mau fuy ,
“Sausoyiry Buriuely
[BO07] BUY JO WBSLD LU 10U Syl INoym "PaIBSID BSIaL0 10 BNp 90 IBYS SSYIVEI] SO IO SUry LIBIE O -
pue ‘Jung aq ([EyYS 1Sem JO SEURIEW O -
‘DAUOIIETS 40 D&I08sS aq yeus shu AKiesodws) o Burping oy -
_ paJcis aqg jjeys Jueld jo sjeusiew op -
N
Q) UCIIEDO| PUB UDHE||BISUI
Jalleq aouBijug "Sadeuns
Bupsixs uo pasinbas
oM O 8sn Jo) pajelsulal
8 01 8ouBHUB ied JBo (Wwepeoeuue]) peol sleaud Aem om]
8J0IPIEY paYsSNID
Bunsie ay) uo sfeg
izl A I
au} ¥iew o} syoug sheq Buppied sy}
i Bupew syoug
SYM passasal jo Sin poesedal
asn yum Bunsixe sy : WM 9169
y2iew o} sheq mapn ]
piey pajoedwos

aue sheqg Bunsixg

_w?m_u:=90:_ww@m;oo:mn__w:w9mﬁ.
_mﬂw_wmmmﬁc_.ﬁ_:u_cmac_EmeozméﬁmﬁzoueE
Guunp pacumsipun upEwas leys Buisus) swoeioud panosdde oyl iy eaue
au| paraduiod st uawdopaap (jun uonisod b pauleas ag jeys Burouag ayy ,
16 U0NoeS) 21002 LCESSH 01 18AR] jgissadiu0g B UD SpUB0q PIOjEDS
Buning apis pue ouge) aiixeiost uim papeoid ag o) seaE uonssod 100y .
uoiioud 1004 10} S88K 519848 1ey) Bae fue w paunbas BuiBBip puey .
“SOWELD PIOREDS J0 BN LM HIOMBLIEY IOJBDS
paoes o} PEIORUUCD Sfaued ysaw plam yBiy yim Wybiay WE'Z aq o) "om Ag
P28 8g O e saan auaym eaue fue U sadoued san o Bujoue) sanoeold ,

LOINANSUeD
® 10 Bumes o soud S11$ Lo DEXIAYD B 0f SISO BIJSS 3NS5 ,

LansUnd

6 300G SIS UD pERIBYD 30 OF PUB peuddng UoNRILIOJUN WoJ) PELINSSE SionsT ,
UORINASUOD B N0 Builas o Joud S UD PENDEYD G Of SUISUIWIC I .

SIDEIADDELI LIEJUOD BINGD BI0KEIE) PUE BIED S} jo weBjewe ue s
pUE §10Z 4850130 PRI dew sndwes | 007 Paiep A3Mns 8o B '5L0Z 290

% 900z By patep Aaans |2xibojodo) wous UBYE] S| LoIBuUO A3Ans Sy ,

S0

0ld/| Ul 8)s pssodoid

Bunsixe yoyew o} sapis
UI00 QU PasIel YImM paAowal
Buined apoe) pue squay doip
‘papusixa aq o} yied Bunsng
'ucied0| 8ouelue snomeld
0} paaow aq o) 1xa Bunsixg

Page 243

300

iod no
Bunjes

m.r._._Q_:m
suyor 15
01 yBrosy)

ainoy



UOUN O@@ 6L umap GLaey M iy @ 00LE e ll.ll
e 2 rR Gd/| ul Buiied pasodoid

Selj Uy Bupjieg

pasodolg pue Bunsixg /.\.\\.\\.\.\.\.\\\\ nm__mamﬁ 30 mmmV
Bunsixa yojew

o TR i i uepBujy ‘sue) uvoisbury

——————————— Angaamr jpunig ;i 07 [lyu) mgﬁ._m
MIHS + SINAYE AVEHD Josoriosy Buiied SSBID Ui Lisishs
e e : pub jueydwos
¥ sLsoN @l P vy L Doy 2 ¥ .
Bl d0LS sans au
Ao -
5 woa & s s oG D) ) WIOJ) PBYINIISU0Y
Juswaned saoeds map
‘Buined Buyoiey Aeq peigesip
peol oyenud Aem oM SINE] LM
quay paddoig wuiod 1no Buimes paueas jsod due
) g
uswaned sewe) | | B = | | -
oz
| L |
| 2

|

0Lz 108 Aljenba Bu) puR SODZ:E0ZS1 |
SU/NID Q0 puepuEs usnug (SE 0) pajEsuy) sqiey paddoup so) Buned apae) |

abeubis fiajes & fddns o] Jo1aenuoD I ‘oot _

“TUBHD Y
pesibe ag of punodwod paanbar Aue ¥ BuUBcY JOIDBAUDD [0 SUONEIOT ,
uonesipeds pUE $IBE0 5.3
03 ‘shemeeos Aue Buipnioul alem a0pns pur Mo} 10} sury aBeueip may ,
jana) afa e sheg paygesp jo Juoy u) padedsp aq o) efieulis ajeudouddy |,
UMOUS | ON Suolisod saureg mau Ay |
"UORBSUOYINE 8p0d
Ay yiiee SIBLIBG BIN PISSA00R BIE SIS |BUNIg By Wik seeue Bupped iy .
MO 10U SBINpacosd uaWAR SExe SA0uRIUa Wed JED o) alieubis ,
(5002 1s0d ping yBypeo jo Ba)

g0 by saBie) 10) sEEINSUN 50 ABwW SN 'E'N 00FZX00RE S48 S8715 ARg Aeq Bupued £81E 1004 Ul }JOM 0U
uceaytads pue siejep 5,37 aag " Suom AemyBiy 1o voeayiosds, 3 =
i) A NSRBI L e G il BN RGH DG SASE Balbe abeio4 Bunsixg 1O BpISING SESJE Ul papnial puUE paulelal aq O} a8y
‘BBLIS BoUBUBIUEL pue panowal Buipuess pieH

% Buisapuel Eiano 5 jeurug ol peieiodicoul g o) pappe Bunueid mau Auy |
“Ascapny Busuuelg oo e o uasueDd uayum soud ag)

OYIN ‘PEIBRID SSIAIBUIO J6 BND 80 RS $SHLDURI JBUI0 J0 SUNI LRI apf - m&\ _ C _ m..: m @ C _“_.m _Xm

EAUE AN B0 [EYS SISEM 0 S[RLSIBLE ON -
‘pAUONES 10 palaaa ag rus sBupyng Aewodws so Buppng oy -
pRI0IS B4 [[BUS Wueid JO SieusEw oy - /n\\\\i\\\\\
|aneq puncud w sabueus ou Bq BYS BwEy) - y
:SEDIE 2Sal Ul JENOEd U pUB SHIOM Ul J0 3SIND3 Ul
Buunp pagums|pun urewa |jeys Buisuay asioaioud pasosdde syl bim esie sse
AU patedwod 5 juswdolanap (un uonsod Ut pawelal aq eys Buinual syl .
1§ uoNDag) ZL0E 4 £RGSH 01 JafE] SOISsaXdW0D B LD SPIBOG PIOjEDS
Buimrg apis pue suGe) aEeest uim pelosioid B 0f SesE uonomoud ooy . mo._.m
ucnsajod J00) 10) Sa8i) S10048 18y) ease Aue u peinbas BuBBip puey |,
'SOWED DIOJEDS 10 SHM LM JOMBWE] plojjeas
paceig 0] peloelues spued yseaw praw USig yis ybey Wwe'z ag o) Hom Ag
pai2a)ia 00 0] GUE SooU a5y eae fue ul saidousd pas 0] Buiauay anioaloly ,
UOTONASUOD
o} Joud 8115 uD PEYIAYD 8q O U papddns LONBLUOKU! WOy PALLNSSE S@anaT , fu _.w___,m._m U Wwejshs
LOIINNEU0D e :
B 1ne Bupes o) Joud SIS un PEYIEUD 80 O] SUCHS0 SIAISS A1S pub juendwos sans
‘wonaneUoa  ino Bumes of 1oud S U PANDSYD G O} SUGISUBWIC Y . peod ajeand Aem om] spigjoq ‘sheg Buied Buisixg
'SSIIBINDIEU) LIIUOD PIRCD AI0jBIBL] PUB 1Ep Syl Jo webiewe ue s } i
pue §L0Z J8001a0 palep dew sndwed e 'Loog palep Aanns aaul 8 ‘5102 280 ajaJoucd
#9002 By palep Asans (exbojodo) wouy uaye) S| UoNBULOHU Aanns S|y],

sajoN

Page 244

Juswaned SRULIE]

Buipuers
Aoy uoneoo elig EQM_.HM
: PadlojLIB)

$SBID)

@ous4 Alepunog

; abieljo4 Bunsixg
L= _
==l




Al HiANHNL

e

R e AR

o e

I TR - . =, =t

o

'
e o e e e

Motes:

Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 {the Act),

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database

rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100012283

Site Address:

Brunel University
Kingston Lane

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
532/APP/2016/211 1:1,250
Flanning Committee: Date:
Central & Sot@H€ 245| May 2016

LOKDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address HAYES FOOTBALL CLUB YARD KINGSHILL AVENUE HAYES
Development: Erection of two linked portacabins for use as a day nursery

LBH Ref Nos: 29439/APP/2016/322

Date Plans Received: 26/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 15/02/2016

Central & South Planning Committee -18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 246



Address: KINGSHILL AVENUE
Title: LOCATION PLAN
Scale: 1:1250 @A4 Drawing: 4871-IB
Date: 26.01.2016
;L& O\

Q

o

o

Dale Venn Architects Ltd
Chartered Architects, Planners & Surveyors
Tel: 01895237345 Fax: 01895 237346



ZLI8Y T

) N SN wori ey TNOS

-~

\

~

SYELEZGERIO0 XISTWOAIN NOTONTHH

'OV0H NOLONITEYH "ISNOH HOIH

SI0KBAING ' SIBULE|d ‘SPBIOIY

S1O3LIHOYEY NN3A 3Tva
J

-~

.

~
SNYd 0350d0Hd
OMMVED

TIOLE HLNY
ANITD

aage ¥an

'SIAVH

"BNNIAY TIHSONI
AHISHNN SALHVINS

sor )

4PS D TN T LT MO DTS TV
DT IHDALGD
A uve SN

05°) HOOTd GHNNOHD

NOULAADE

AHFEHNN

Page 248



(e

€-1/8p o e

91NV 2uva L

e S e
‘M o oHwvED W TTYOS oo Emoama

4 N

SYELEZSEBL0  XISTIOTIN ‘NOTBNITIH

“OVOH NOLDNITHYH '3SNOH HOIH

SI0ABAING ' SIBUUE|H ‘S1Da)yaNY

S1O3LIHOYY NN3A 3TVa
L - —
£ N

SNOLLYAS T3 0350d0ud

SNIMVHT

TIOLS HLMNE

ANTTD

aas #an

'SIAVH

"INNIAY TIHSONIM

AHISHNN SALHYING
L aor A

OINEFETH LHONEAICD
Al v BANIAONINY
NOLLYAZTS HLNOS

OLLYAZTE 18V3 NOILYATTS HLHON 00L:4 NOILYASTE 153

Page 249




rosvenor Playing Field

Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site bound
M IR Hayes Football Club Yard O LLeDON
Fer identification purposes only Planning Section

Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW

This copy has been made by or with
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

the suthority of the Head of Commities

Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the - - - 5 £
e R Flanning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1888 (the Adt). 29439/APP/2016/322 1:1,250

Unless the Act provides s relevant

Sxception o copyright. Flanning Committee: Date:

& Crown copyright and database i R |

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Central & sdiagf 250 May 2016 Pl L]
100019283 LDk DoN




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 1 SALCOMBE WAY HAYES
Development: Erection of a lean-to structure (Retrospective)

LBH Ref Nos: 48976/APP/2016/520

Date Plans Received: 09/02/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 24/02/2016
Date Application Valid: 23/03/2016

Central & South Planning Committee -18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 251



pimjog Buisny

Sy v
g .
¢
2 ¢
’
.~
o
\\.\\r\a
. \\\»\\

S
o

V18 #8N ‘SIAVH ‘AVM 3GN0DTVS |




— e — e — e — - - — e B C— - e ——

005l 3238 sajoN depw

\ /. rroISNVNBLYD

04,- 737

Page 253

camee .
e "=
\vl . « X

V18 #89N ‘SIAVH ‘AVM I9INODTVS L



........

............

518 R A5 5 8 U ) Hst e

5 10 0 1 AL . 5 A ) 0

T3 Bk =g pan i
B ER EEERASNEBAE. ”__,_
B2, S S I BB S e :
...—. R .. T .—‘
=15 | i [ B = | +4

b 44

3254— 1 0 Y M

::?-‘e_a%e

it e bic st et g Ria] et st aapatist
SREE RS S i PR = i i B2 BEEHEEESANEREE DR RS

_ _ | | L1 i H ! i 1 1 ¢ .m.,._.“_ = [EEr 1
sSEERREERAN]EZERE ERERH EsEEl IEERa! | __:_..__._ i ER EESERERA ks
e o] L_. _ i L] m __ .“ TH | 88
GLE AT ST LI Jomep Ve [ ¢ ik TR HETHITHET




o)
N

HiPagedshtr

e EauaERayRRaRy b LY LG 1L A} w\;.\w.w.N SRR REBEH ERRRS RRREK uSk i BERSE RRRES RARNR[ =72 1) 72t &) JARE Tr.2 7R

... _ i __ i = | .._ 1




_ ! I 0 0 O O O Y R | ] |
r 1 . F1a Ll ] T S B A ! 1 T L ”
| _ ST 0y ﬁ ” w = ”
— 4 .“- . ] ___ ] e B § 1 4
i FEEe WL ) s e == ! _ I . 1 m
I : | ! Hd ! =2 1] i { - } :
_ | | == _._.tn.: H H ” B8
1 ﬂ R 1 i SERNE(IEREEE _ m R B ] I __
v ! 1 1 Q_f. N SEEWE| .. L MO0 TR0 A0 N D ] S G I O S {14 WSl 11 _
I Y et I B i B _ BB SEEEE NS L 1 4]
_ ! B3 % — | il ENENENEmE WRER | _ !
8 | il _.mw..."_ = A SRS . | l _ my | L]
| NS 3 -
| * | __—..c__ el Sk T._,r [y | T H 1 ]
mend me .“.wﬁ____..“_ HE — ) 1 | Wi
| { { |
. ‘ 1 o - i SO
m ._ | L e b T r o
_ [ i | | .
i 1 | | ~ 1 t 11 o
1 . __ T TR TR ] o
_ _ _Dmu_

_

HHH
. tH | _
= “__ ._ L L 00 00 0 0 0 00 O 0
s i H ” : __ w
| LT | HEEEH
_ _ _ ﬂ_ | x{. _
! | i 1 § ! 1 t Al A S
__ EaERE H H i T EARA SRR s _
] R e i ERE N REEE Rwe 0N Il
_ oNg7 | 29

g HE i
] _ +

W%wmq._.

\AQ\S WWM\Y\Q\MQQW N |

_




T

Motes:

Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 {the Act),

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database

rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100012283

Site Address:

1 Salcombe Way

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Hayes
Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
48976/APP/2016/520 1:1,000
Flanning Committee: Date:
Central & Sotdd€ 257 | May 2016

LOKDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 49 CENTRAL AVENUE HAYES
Development: Change of use from Use Class C4 (HMO) to Sui Generis to create a 7-bed
HMO.

LBH Ref Nos: 38444/APP/2016/744

Date Plans Received: 23/02/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 26/02/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 258



Sheet #

im zm am Lm sm

om

Scale 11100

of3

Drawn By:

MS
Date:

21/02/2016

Scales: 1:50
1:100,1:200,
1:500,1:1250
@IS0 A3 (297
X 420)

(s1auap Ins) uonednaog ajdiynpy
ur asnoH pag-L e se asn 03 (¥ sse|) asn) uonednido
ajdnjny w asnoH pag-g woiy asn jo abuey) :jesodoig

P31 seipadoid |gs uedyddy

g
i o
[Te]
o~
N
-
éLIJ
|
<
g Q
23
<
o
=
£ 0
=
<
QO
(@)
=
'
§
5
§‘--.
N = ]
[ ]
§ 0
—
B
<
EQ
25
' A
y
! o
O
|
m

Page 259

0T ATy
[T-ONH-v26% i'joy Buimesg

maz tgan xppin ‘sehey
‘anuany [eajua) 6% :ssauppy



0T ASY

[Z-ONH-v26% i"joy Buimesg
Maz €an xppi ‘sakey

‘anuaay [eijua) 6% :ssaippy

(suauap ins) uonedning ajdiynp
P31 seipadoid |gs uedyddy

ur asnoH pag-L e se asn 03 (¥ sse|) asn) uonednido
ajdnjny w asnoH pag-g woiy asn jo abuey) :jesodoig

(o x

L67) &y OSI®
oSzr:t'o05:T
'ooz:t'ootiT
05:T :sB|edS

gtozfzoftz
:@3eQ

S
:Ag umelq

€jo N

#13199ys

ws

d007T4 1SHId ONILSIX3

wth

(00L:L 3VOS)

(ZmL'a)
Woowa3a
(zmosL)
wWoodo3g
. -
(zwooL)
™ WOoua3d
I
COTIT AjEIS
T T 1
wE wz wt wo

(ooL:L 3VOS)
HOO0T4 ANNOYD ONILSIXT

HoMOd
| | 1 1
v
(zng'zi)
{zmost) Wood
| WOOHA38 ONIA
o
|
(zmpzi)
H3NIO nooy
I NIHDLIM ONIATY
|
AWANTIVH
Mo i Tl o T
(2ns 6} (ZW5's)
£ Wooxa3a WODHO3g

(00Z:1 3TVIS) ONIMHVC
HLIM NV1d 3LIS ONILSIX3

INNIAV TVHLINID

Laa T — e

aere eE e e

WOSERL
F0vdS KAGHYD

Page 260



Sheet #

im zm am 4m sm

om

u

Scale 1:100

of3

Drawn By:
MS

Date:

21/02/2016

o g8 5 (suauan ins) uonednadg ajdiynpy

o § s ul asnoH pag-L e se asn 03 () ssep) asn) uonednidg

;; "o 401 2o ajdnjn u1 8snoH paq-g woiy asn jo abuey) :jesodoig
(=T =] o

T‘é g 524 p¥1seipadoud |gs suedyddy

G HA®x

18
8
o™
-
E ™
W
I
Q
)
Z
i g
a
z
F,Q
o
<
%)
o
] =

&
-
i B
"\‘_
w
B
<<
: O
25
-z
Lﬁn-
X
B
(@]
|
)

Page 261

o' T'ASY
/T-ONH-¥26% i*joy Buimeig

Maz €gn xppiN ‘sakeq
‘anuaay [eaua) 6% :ssalppy



LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW

Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

ILI

Site Address:

49 Central Avenue

Scale:

1:1,250

Date:

May 2016

Flanning Application Ref:

38444/APP/2016/744

Flanning Committee:

Central & SS@f 262

Site boundary

Motes:

Fer identification purposes only

the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the

Copyright, Designs and Patents

This copy has been made by or with
Act 1888 [the Act).

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey

100018283




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 86 EAST AVENUE HAYES

Development: Change of use from Use Class A1 (Shops) to Use Class D1 (Non-Resdential
Institutions) to use as a nursery

LBH Ref Nos: 40159/APP/2015/4610

Date Plans Received: 17/12/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 15/02/2016

Central & South Planning Committee -18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 263



1k Buy A Plan C.-|®

UK's Fastest and Easiest Planning Site

S#e Plan shows ares bounded by: 5099854, 180132.95 510126 82, 180274.37 (at & scale of 1:1250) The representation of a road, irack of path is no evidence of a right of way. The representation of features as iines is no evidence of a property boundary.

Produced on 215t Dec 2015 from the Ordnance Survay Naticnal Geographic Database and Incorporating surveyed revision avallable at this date. Repraduction In whle or part is prohibited without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey. © Crown copyright 2015, Supplied by buyaplan.co.uk a
ficansed Ordnance Survey partner (100053143). Unique plan reference; 800087047-F2FTAC ;

Ordnance Survey and the OS5 Symibol are rej of Ord Survey, the national mapping agency of Great Britain. Buy A Pian lego, paf design and the buyaplan.co.uk website are Copyright £ Pass Inc Lid 2015

Page 264



LL-SE-8L 9LOZE0/E0

(woojpderou mmay/:dpy) Jejuud 4adeAou o} julid 0} pasuadl| jou si jey; uoiesldde ue wol 4Qd SIU} pejealo noA -

[ faqob
i el Bugsix3
AT : HIANNN ONIVAEA hn_ uvesg | pr—.| ANSS| 40 Is04HNd NOLLJIYOS3a ALNIgYLINS | BNLYLS 3000
. @ou_.._v” 8 laquiny 8¢ﬂ._m_ 9LOZR060 1
v @) aeas | equinu joa aled
81INPqy peeng a0e|d AuueN LSeN 7 i - .
_ g -
N3O 103roYd | aled uoijarnssg ON
00k L /g
— $ —.
uejd bunpsixg "
bs'w gL easy [ejoL
To)
’ — ; ©
| oslel — ooy, 1 N
s ) e T f T %
00zt i e g : ot \ G| 8 bswziemoy SusL S
*— e 2 3 ZiopluoD o
e =, Hopuoo | B Vg = bs'w ZjalioL
oozr K Buvedo . = all 8 ¢
L 05/2 J 006 w!ié./ = bs'w | 18110 | -
LU Py i £ 00 e _ m i R &
S \ m ooer L W R bes lleH ueyy sul |8
S =9 gL o w \%.. ..../ﬁ o w | jeol L
ﬂ ealy uondsosy m gL Al M bswg 1 — = &
|\ 9 & L Wooy z wooy ealy eV
€ z 7
i _ 059¢ £60¥

Aea Kaiy

oLs  S9.L

059 0%0L"

’




SE8Z-81 9LOZZ0/E0

(woo'jpderou mmm//:dny) Jajuud JgdeAou o} jJuud o) pasua2i| jou si Jeyl uoneoijdde ue wolj 4qd SIUl pejesio NoA -
T Toqob _
WY lasmemo Ueld pasodold
AaM mmmE_JZmu?:d_____._.&n__ hﬂF.e.ﬁ__ﬂ.i - ANSS| 40 Is04HNd NOLLJIYOS3a ALNIgYLINS | BNLYLS 3000
[ soquin pelosd | 91022060
ey @) oos | Jequinu aldid _ ajeq >
INTID 103r0Yd | aleq uondisag ‘ON
bs'wi g} 1 B3Iy BJO]
T 0816 — _osvz, 1
; ‘,%« e e e e E- S e = = = ©
00y P [ ol e}l 8 bswzeior SLsL I 9
il === 1IopLLIOD mumﬂm.“ ; s ke ml.__ ) ¥ bs'w Z loL i N
0% ) S e . mM?m I o
c m; F B Smmﬂ@a; X5 bsw | iap0) ©
#vm& o € .\\ m_ wow /ﬂ.wH m O m | m o
EIRES S 2 | 00El .F Wﬁ - £Wo0ISSE|T Sl o
B8 omtten |l e g A S Gfe b el _ l
I uondaosey | @ AUZL Augl g bswg a = & |
1 i a | w | Wo0ISSEe|D & Wwoousse|D H BalY A &3 3 and
_ I 8 ¢ - = B ¢ Buuad B o
i | 0s9e £60% / 2 TR N/
=== ] ~| ._.|.w-.. ZEE=s= = ‘ = .M..-x.
0858 | “ose" 018" 088" sss o6 0615 "o’ goszL | osob | 0SOL
8
Rep Aaiy 8
o b |
oLk /4
— 1 \‘_
ue|d pasodoud -




Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 {the Act),

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database

rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100012283

Site Address:

86 East Avenue

Hayes

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Flanning Application Ref:
40159/APP/2015/4610

Scale:
1:1,000

Flanning Committee:

Central & Soft@He 267

Date:
May 2016

LOKDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 94 HERCIES ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: Extension of roof to create additional habitable roof space to include 2 new
side dormers and enlargement of existing dormers (Part Retrospective)

LBH Ref Nos: 19969/APP/2016/757

Date Plans Received: 23/02/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 23/02/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 268



24/09/2015 ﬁr
i\

94, HERCIES ROAD, UXBRIDGE, UB10 9ND plansdesigried

50 & - a0 0 ‘0 110 120 130 140 150

Scale: 1:1250 | Area 4Ha | Grid Reference: 507046,184705 | Paper Size: A4

~ Mapping contents © Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
Ordnance
0!' Survey. 100035207 Page 269 Groundsure

|NSIGHTS



=7 — NV1d 400714 1SylId e NV1d 00714 ANNOYO

sdes [y @ oot 05

"SNOLLVAITE § SHYd DNLLSIXT
]

ANG OLBN NOODNITHH
'OVOH SIOUIH V6 oy,

o T =
CEPYCT CEQI0 | uondig |
WYL VUOT TVANLYALM Y B SR TR ALHYND =
{14 5004 ) UIMPIOG YL t
yrezpaubrapructan
FONNOT
| NOO¥a3E
Z WoOo¥a3g [r| Ewoouazs : ONINIO
NOILD3S gl . ﬂ r
. — S I (<
WOOYHLYE
o NIHOLIM

"EW £/°€| = SISWIOP OU Z X

cw /89=68GXZ/[¥L 1L Xx¥E L]
1 uole|najeD SLWN|OA JawloQ

IOVHVD

€ NOILYATT3 3aI1S NOILYAIT3 30IS NOILYAZT3 Uv3y NOILYAZT3 LNOYd

‘ Page 270

e g

; ) . I I 2] B
E T J [E0 1o ‘ NS

oess

mnEm




] oo L NV1d 400714 1SylId NV1d 00714 ANNOYO

sides Ly B 00KL 08 .,

‘SNOILYAZNE ¥ SNYId 0350d0dd

woarkerag

'ONE OLEN NOOSMNITIH

'OV0H SIDHIH ¥ ey,
TEMBUE0 d BN

NOILLD3S

WXy
€ Wooxa3g

WZEXVE
£ WOOHa3g

adiduns |

AQNLs adiduns

DEVICT CERI0 ¢ Soydey
AUV L VLD TRANL LS 9 VLA TR g &
fumn ek e UIMP| DG Y40 |
. :
=TT A
. 39NN0T
1 WOOYa38

i NOILJ303d

ﬁ

ONINIa

=t
ﬁ

NIHOLIM

i

FOVHYD
"S9ABD [eUIBLO WOy WO O wnuwiuiw dn }as aq 0} siowiog MaN
w/ "L aroqe sBuluado yym paze|B-ainosqo aq o) smopuim Buioey apis
asnoy Buisixa 0} Je|ILis aq 0} S|elsjew MaN
*JOOJ UleW UBY} JSMO]| "UIL WLWIQQE UMOP }OS SISULIOQ MaN
FONVHD ON
2 NOILYAZT3 3018 NOILYAZIT3 3AIS MNOILYAIT3 Y3y NOILYAZTT LNOYS

il Ei

o=

=

BlE3s

e g

- _

L0

g

EE
O

mm

‘ Page 271



.

/,

d
v

Motes:

Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 {the Act),

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100018283

Site Address:

94 Hercies Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
19969/APP/2016/757 1:1,250
Flanning Committee: Date:
Central & S&W4F 272 | May 2016

LOKDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 133B HIGH STREET UXBRIDGE

Development: Retention of this outbuilding to the rear as built to be used as a community
centre/place of worship.

LBH Ref Nos: 68976/APP/2016/253

Date Plans Received: 21/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 21/01/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 273



This Plan includes the following Licensed Data: 0
Masterhap Colour PDF Site Location Plan - Mini by the

COry g i revision available at the date of

production. Reproduction in whele or in part is prohibited : e e
mmd-amd;ha&orm&mm&am

of way. The representation of features as fines is no evidence

of a property boundary. © Crown copyright, All rights reserved

2013, Licence number 0100031673

o2+ plans ahead ., emapsie




P TTILE  A - E O R I 2 o o

i ﬁﬁ*-@%ﬁ%ﬁiﬂg‘ E z! EME

ottt | =s 5:§§ 28 2 [alf Eiee

‘_,'5 }fi g 352 g £ mE| O m | %;:O

At g %iﬁ gy gg*‘!ﬁaésé’ég’ % o5 o] |

il | I ‘ N ‘E i ag & ¥ = Le

o — 5?3;;%5 s§§ I fE a;ﬁiéiwfiﬁ Hillg gs gnfia snésszii §§ i g
r EE;
E

5 Es
* e - \!-_ x
§ i . - :
: i
S%ga
l’—rj §§s§§3
T | &
sidiee E§§ = 3§g E
. M eﬁgiég ggg
' O , o II
i} .
BIE z
T8 = < — 5
[1* {8 g i T : :
B = s | @J =1 ll1E
vl Il g I __rl 8
KT e .
? i
I £
I
= i 1
: §i
o 3;2
i : lye
3 g e .
- -
Il Page 275
lg | |




Cedars Car Park
[(Multistorey)

Police Stati

Motes:

Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 {the Act),

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database

rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100012283

Site Address:

133B High Street

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Uxbridge
Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
68976/APP/2016/253 1:1,250
Flanning Committee: Date:
Central & SE¥E 276 |  May 2016

LOKDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 133B HIGH STREET UXBRIDGE

Development: Retention of this outbuilding to the rear as built to be used as a community
centre/place of worship (Listed Building Consent).

LBH Ref Nos: 68976/APP/2016/254

Date Plans Received: 21/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 21/01/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 277



This Plan includes the following Licensed Data: 0
Masterhap Colour PDF Site Location Plan - Mini by the

COry g i revision available at the date of

production. Reproduction in whele or in part is prohibited : e e
mmd-amd;ha&orm&mm&am

of way. The representation of features as fines is no evidence

of a property boundary. © Crown copyright, All rights reserved

2013, Licence number 0100031673

2% plans ahead ., emapsie




P TTILE  A - E O R I 2 o o

i ﬁﬁ*-@%ﬁ%ﬁiﬂg‘ E z! EME

ottt | =s 5:§§ 28 2 [alf Eiee

‘_,'5 }fi g 352 g £ mE| O m | %;:O

At g %iﬁ gy gg*‘!ﬁaésé’ég’ % o5 o] |

il | I ‘ N ‘E i ag & ¥ = Le

o — 5?3;;%5 s§§ I fE a;ﬁiéiwfiﬁ Hillg gs gnfia snésszii §§ i g
r EE;
E

5 Es
* e - \!-_ x
§ i . - :
: i
S%ga
l’—rj §§s§§3
T | &
sidiee E§§ = 3§g E
. M eﬁgiég ggg
' O , o II
i} .
BIE z
T8 = < — 5
[1* {8 g i T : :
B = s | @J =1 ll1E
vl Il g I __rl 8
KT e .
? i
I £
I
= i 1
: §i
o 3;2
i : lye
3 g e .
- -
Il Page 279
lg | |




Cedars Car Park
[(Multistorey)

Police Stati

Motes:

Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 {the Act),

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database

rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100012283

Site Address:

133B High Street

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Uxbridge
Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
68976/APP/2016/254 1:1,250
Flanning Committee: Date:
Central & S&#9E 280 |  May 2016

LOKDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 27 KINGSTON AVENUE YIEWSLEY
Development: Single storey side extension

LBH Ref Nos: 67220/APP/2015/3631

Date Plans Received: 29/09/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 16/10/2015

Central & South Planning Committee -18th May 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 281






v—20(d)zss1a

S e | & @ 00Lh
(I | GL0Z—60-G) __
SN HOOTS

ANNOHSD 03S0d0H ONY DNLLEING
m

Page 283

88 48N
NOLAYHG 1S3M
INNIAY NOLSONIN L2 - [T [T ] I
Wi pymbaspuraliops | g Caikiind
et wreen
EHTTrRD e T l-.-..l.‘..l-“
i A o A
M i Nvld HOO14 ONNOYS a3S0d0dd NYld HOO14 ANNOYD ONILSIXI
we: i e J =
W, - P > = — ] S
&
=
] _ z
/ = 2
7 E
. ileon il _ =
———— — o ﬁ z
- L o m
_ =z
(o34 | g m

— = m=—

w wr g w - 0 _ _
I | —— !
== w _

0SZL'L 3WIS
N¥d 3L1IS NIHOLM 4 YIMOHS _
‘susgnesad B Uo Ajejeg
2 uEeR apesondde pun ‘sucqunBand OD 0 Ui
BB BULMEUS 40 BIIsuOdeas 51 J0IDENUNT Byl as8 r—

“ponoskle @b

10 jeebue sed pasareBor 19WO0 pepEnb dgems

16 4 400 PiLIiED B4 [ SUCILRIEISIS J0NOE PUB SBD) ML

f1d By} w w

“AEYIIED) 158 LONEIDIEU] UMG091E [ 105 ¢ R
BIENB0 495 01 §0 4400 B 10 BrE0as STl sl T ! T T T T
BUL UDNdwng SRom [EXUREE BU 0 SAER OF uRIm — 1 1 1} 1

BEHPIID UONEIGEI-0S B (JOPA0H] SUMSE aU) A
A3ECANE 00 B4 OF PUSS ) 5) UOSIDd JUBBGWoD By L

o v Buspiing pue Bunutmg
AIESSH00U 1B FOSWIY AS1ES PUB BUNSSE 0 JIDEALOD
“SIBHEL BAOS3 O pasn Bq piam siumern

] Lk LOGINNIC U] SHIGM JO BINPBYSS I SandSs
AT DIOAE O “HI0M [0 BIIDBLIS U LoEDDads |In)
“HMASH UL W0 SR O B BU 18 15enba pEogs

SODRILGD “S0M B 10} pasn 55 Buswesn syl sisum
spncudde

ANV BUDBG BILSILWOD O] LON S W0M pue Eeoidde
vioneinBay Buping pui uomsiued Buliueid 1o
a0 su s Bumeap syl o asodind Bos 2]
“peaduWon S5 Aewsn;

1L [N DISUSLULIGN 1 SHOM U T SINSSEO) 1
sopenuoa pue Adde pinom geE1 10 98 [0 Auey
“suofenbay Bumpng wawnd i AEeo o) 51 oM
Y PR BSWMIBLED SSEUN Sasodmd uoangsueD
23y SHUIMEIR BY) DA PAIEIS G O) USSUBD Oy
“RisiEpan

Spuosed

i o i 8
gy 0} pagda) B IBNW SeoUBdaED Sy

SO
uyBuibefiue o} Joud Biis uo RENUDY peOdde By fg

Page0s 94 0} e SEUMEID U0 POEIPL ST Sinoed
10 SUO(BI0) PUE SLOENG '2BZ]E 'SHENE; ‘SUOISUSLID Iy

SILON WHINID




ppppp

a5 . = TV @ 0011

R | SL0Z-60-SL

SNOILYAT S 0380d0Hd ONY DNILSIXE

NOILVAZT3 LNO¥Y4 3S0d0dd

NOILYAZN3 30Is d3S0d04Hd

T
rag 480
NOLAYHA LS3M
INNAAY NOLSONIM LT
i
e rmSsepreliops - gy Bkl
e T —— ]
EFECE - s [ m—
o s £

‘susesd B Uo Aajeg
P U wedosdde pur 'sucqunBag OO M0 Y
e BULMEUS J0) BIIsUCdeas 53 JDENUT Byl

“pangskie gnba
10 jeewbue seb pasarsbar 19WO0 pepenb dgems
1 A 30 PRI I B SUSIIESE JN0E DU SE0 SRL

(v Bayg)

“AEDYILED) 1591 WOAEITIELI D451 | L0/SE ¥ pUE
BB Yas B 4O K03 € 4JOG Ba908) 18Tl JuSD
B UONAHIITD SHH0M [BIE B 0 SAER OF URg
BIENIE0 UOGEIGHIE0-BE € (I0MADRT UM SUj BIA
fapecupne ooy 34 o) pUas 0 5 Uosiad JuRBduco Byl
"EHIOM JO JUBLIBILBLIWED 35 Buuopus) Gopeq pantidde
o v Busping pue Bl
.rmmwswz.___sis:i.ﬁ_swn:m!_snnsgag

“SIAHEW BNOSE) O pESN B pnom shumen

U] ok LGINNICE U] SHIGM JO BIAROYSS I SandSs
AR DIOAR 0], IO [0 BNDELIS PUE LoED|Inads |in)
"SNP ) 00 ST 0 U BU) 18 JSenT nogs
JORIRAUCD "SI B JO) PEEN 5 BB S B
spncudde

NS BI0jBG BIUBWOD O] LN S W0M puE [Eadde
vone|nBa BEging pur uomsIuted Bulueld jo
w0l By st BumEsD i) o escding Bj08 B
“papaiduun 5) Agewsn)

B [N DEIDUBLULIGE ST HIOM LI B SINSSE0) 51
sopenuoa pue Adde pinom gE61 10 908 g Aued
“suciienBay Busing wawnd umm Ao o) 5 yom
Y PR BSWMIBLED SSEjUn Sasodmd uoangsueD.
23y SHUIMEIR BY) W04 PAIEDS B O UHSUBUD Oy
“Risiepatin

i o sk 1
81 0} paoday Bg 1ENW SeoUBdIrE|D iy
S
uy Buibeue oy soud sys uo mPeguoD peundde By Ag
PoguD 9 O} H SEUMRID U0 PHEIP ST SR
|0 SLOfBcD) PUB SUCHIS0D 'SBEIE 'SHENGY SUDISUBLID Iy

Sposnd

SILON WHINIO

[ ]
B

[

SINL DNILEXT
HILYIN OL H3aNFH

NOILYAZTI LNOYd ONILSE3

C ]

SIUL
HOLY OL SHOHE

J

[ |

E

NOILVYAZT3 ANNOYO ONLLSIX3

Page 284




Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 {the Act),

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100018283

Site Address:

27 Kingston Avenue

Yiewsley

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW

Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
67220/APP/2015/3631 1:1,250
Flanning Committee: Date:
Central & Sof#d€285| May 2016




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 286



	Agenda
	3 To Sign and Receive the Minutes of the Meeting Held on 31 March 2016
	6 14 Moorfield Road, Cowley - 69313/APP/2016/203
	7 4 Moorfield Road, Cowley - 42162/APP/2016/915
	8 4 Moorfield Road, Cowley - 42162/APP/2016/912
	9 Brunel University, Kingston Lane - 532/APP/2016/210
	10 Brunel University, Kingston Lane - 532/APP/2016/211
	11 Hayes Football Club Yard - 29439/APP/2016/322
	12 1 Salcombe Way, Hayes - 48976/APP/2016/520
	13 49 Central Avenue, Hayes - 38444/APP/2016/744
	14 86 East Avenue, Hayes - 40159/APP/2015/4610
	15 94 Hercies Road, Uxbridge - 19969/APP/2016/757
	16 133B High Street, Uxbridge - 68976/APP/2016/253
	17 133B High Street, Uxbridge - 68976/APP/2016/254
	18 27 Kingston Avenue, Yiewsley - 67220/APP/2015/3631
	19 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	20 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	21 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	22 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	23 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	PART I - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee

